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Building a lasting momentum
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Five-Year Financial Summary hFEB i E

2011 2012 2013 2015
—E——F —E——F —E—=F —T—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BT BT BET T b BEET T
(restated)
(Fe&E51)

Total assets

e 85,934,537 89,703 818 94,440,825 14,654,676 12,909,389
Total liabilities

e 74,275,957 77,410,789 81,424 503 3,617,900 1,965,058
LB Mt CEsEs 11,658,580 12,293,029 13,016,322 11,036,776 10,944,331

BEFEERE

Net assets value per share

i e e B HK$30.80 7t % HK$32.47 7= 7% HK$34.38 ;= 7% HK$29.15 7t %% HK$28.91 7t
BREEFE

Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company 600,371 480,010 543,460 2,356,935 410,366
DERARRRRR 2 ANEE

Basic earnings per share

SREART A HK$1.59 T  BHHK$L.27 ¢ B HK$1.44 7t #B HKS6.23 7T B HK$1.08 it

Dividend per share

e 7B HK$0.30 ¢ % HK$0.28 © M HK$0.28 ;= M HK$0.40 = % HK$0.42 T

Dividend payout ratio
(from continuing
operations only)

KRB R (R R B RFEKE)

19% 22% 39% 38% 39%

note 1: Dividend per share in 2014 did not include special cash dividend of HK$2.80 per share due to the completion of Partial
Offer (the meaning ascribed thereto in the Company’s circular to shareholders dated 4 December 2013) for disposal of
Chong Hing Bank Limited shares (“CHB Shares”) and the special dividend by way of distribution in specie to the
shareholders of the Company in the proportion of 1 share in the issued share capital of Chong Hing Bank Limited (“CHB”)
for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the Company.

fidE—: —Z-NEESRRETEFERTKEEAIRRITERARRN ([GIFRITRMN ) BB (EART =4+ AUABRRBRAE
F R MKENFHRERESEER 2.807T » RAEBDDIRFARARREEHTRAT 10 AA 1 REIERTARAR ([8IHRT]) 2%
TIRRANT IR S Z R RIAR S

note 2: Dividend payout ratio in 2014, if including the special cash dividend and the special dividend by way of distribution in
specie, the ratio should be adjusted to 81 %.

MiE=: MEEFHNRSRERAEYDRZFHRE  —F—NFZREHL KRG HEEL%

note 3:  Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,356.9 million recorded in 2014, including the profit from
discontinued operations of HK$1,963.3 million.

M= ZZE—NFEHERARBIREZAFERFIAEE 2,356,900,000 7T + EFER 8 B 42 1E 48 &% 7B 1,963,300,000 7T ©
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| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s business
performance as well as some observations from the overall economic
evaomrmentforthe vear 2015 and expectations for the year ahead.

ARANRAR BT2

RIBZEBEME ’%%E%@Z%%O

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Group’s business
performance as well as some observations from the overall economic

environment for the year 2015 and expectations for the year ahead.

2015 REVIEW

We continued to live in turbulent times during 2015, the world being
plagued with terrorist activities, refugee crisis, contagious diseases
and climatic anormalies — the rise of Islamic State of Irag and al-
Sham (ISIS) and the organized terrorist attacks in Paris and Bangkok
causing great numbers of casualties and concerns over public
security; the massive flee of refugees from Syrian to European nations
causing social and economic issues; the emergence and spread of
the Middle East Respiratory Syndrome (MERS) causing health scares
and a reminder of the SARS epidemic; and the abnormal heat waves

and cold fronts that the world has experienced during the year.

The financial world was not saved from turmoil either, with the global
bourses going on roller-coaster rides. Central bank interventions were
necessary at times but we have not yet seen the light at the end of the
tunnel. In the US, a 0.25% interest rate increase ended the Federal
Reserve’s 8-year rate-based stimulus and we have yet to see how this
will play out during 2016. In China, GDP growth finally missed the 7%
mark and even reduced to 6.9% in the third quarter of 2015. This
instigated a series of stimulant measures taken by the Chinese Central
Government, including a devaluation of the Renminbi (which was a
logical approach but naturally received criticisms from Western
countries) and an easing-off on bank deposit reserve levels and other

controls on the property sector.
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Chairman’s Statement TEmMSEE

In Hong Kong, we saw further slowdowns in economic growth, down
from 3.7% in 2014 to 2.4% in 2015. Tight controls over the property
sector remained in place and the Hong Kong Government reiterated
its steadfast stance on keeping property prices in check. Our society
continues to be scarred by the political divide which even went to the
extreme level of the recent Mongkok event. All these did not help the
already deteriorating retail and service industries which remain Hong

Kong's core GDP-growth constituents.

BUSINESS RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded profit of
approximately HK$422.3 million, it represents a decline of 87.5%
when comparing with the year of 2014. However, if excludes an
exceptional gain of approximately HK$2,983.6 million mainly on the
completion of partial offer for disposing of Chong Hing Bank’s share
recorded in 2014, it recorded a slight increase of profit of
approximately HK$19.4 million, representing an increase of

approximately 4.8% when comparing to that of year 2014.

The Board of Directors has proposed to recommend at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 27 April 2016, the
payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.26 per share. Together with
the interim cash dividend of HK$0.16 per share paid on 23
September 2015, the total cash dividend amounted to HK$0.42 per
share for the year 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

HK PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING BANK CENTRE

The Group’s flagship headquarter building located at 24 Des Voeux
Road Central has a total gross floor area of approximately 108,000
square feet, out of which approximately 81,000 square feet has been
leased to Chong Hing Bank Limited as its headquarter office. Total
rental revenue recorded for this building for the year ended 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$67.9 million. As the tenancy
has a 5-year fixed term, rental revenue for 2016 is expected to be

stable.

BEREBERREENE AT —MOFH
B7%HE_FT—HFN24% - FRFEE™
REBDALEN  BERRRNERSZYE
Emi FTERERBNIISEE - BUAD
BREEHABTELS  BAELHNEAS
HEMEERE - E—EHEPHRERNE
LHNTEXMRBEE - MEEXMRS =X
EIEREBEER R

HEXE
BE-_T-—AF+_A=1+—ALEE" XK
£ BEXSHF 454 422,300,000 ' R=-F
—PUEF TEK87.56% - EMBR T —NFEXE
RIS R RIRITIRMD I D ZA MR
FEAEH 4 UL 25 8 5 2,983,600,000 7T * ANEE
i FE = T — PO 4F £ FH47A% 19,400,0007T -
EIN%I4.8% ©

BN T R"FOA-_TLBRETZ
EERREFAS ERRERARSHI
BRE¥O26T - ERRN_F—RAFNA
“t+=HABREZTHESRESERER0.16
T —E-AFEZREREASHAR/ERE
¥®0.427T -

EBEER

BEHEMEXE

BIEERITR O
AEBENEEAT BN EEE D 2455 -
HRFEEETEIFE A9 108,000 F 5 R - B 4781,000
FHREEABIERITIESEA - BE—
T-AFt-_A=1—H ZAEEESWK
A& 5 7% 67,900,000 7T © R T EE
b —2-RF2ESRaEGEIRE o



Grand Jardin, Foshan f# L ERE

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square maintained a high occupancy rate throughout the
year, which stood at 99% as at 31 December 2015. This 20-storey
retail/lcommercial building is located in the heart of Mongkok, Kowloon
and provides over 182,000 square feet of F&B and commercial
space.

CHONG YIP CENTRE

Chong Yip Centre is a shopping centre in Sai Ying Pun (just three
stops by the MTR West Island Line from Central) in the western part
of Hong Kong Island with over 54,000 square feet of F&B and retail
space. This shopping arcade was approximately 75% let as at 31
December 2015 and the Group is now studying plans for its
renovation and facelift.

Bl g5

BIEESFAREERERSE R —1
F+-—A=+—BHAEXAEPO% - LTE T
¥RNEVENEEALEMT  Ea=+E
IREEIS200F T RTK AN EEE -

RIXES

AIXmERREERNALR (HEAEER
HTPREZWIZ)NBYPL  KRERTE
HiE# 54,000 F TR - ZASR_FT—0%F
T-A=t—HAZHBEXRRHNT% - AEE
B AT EEM R A BuE RS E -

Sl 7T E %3 JONVNYIA0D F1VH04HO0D ANV M3IAZY SSANISNE

09

BT HEXT R

N

i 7



sejze the

_.“ ,a“.l -
: £
mA_H_A _!'.....» .
N\ - ulll. -
X = -
_MHHH_WA.I e -
I %
_O ~
/
S .
” &
=3
() .
o
w '
5 S
; s
= 3 =~
y S N -
- =
o 2 5
m ~
< < N S
U - % :
Y -3
(@ .
O .
e
1
N Y
¢ ks
A
c f 2 &
D A v &
Q & R
m ¢
IS ¢
L N
W \ ¥ J



Chong Hing Bank Centre, Hong Kong & & £l #4847 0
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Chairman’s Statement T EHREE

FAIRVIEW COURT

This low-rise deluxe apartment block located in Repulse Bay is 60%
let as at the date of this report. As this property has not undergone
any major renovation, the management is considering several capital
improvement options in order to position it for better returns in the

long run.

CHATHAM GATE

Chatham Gate is a redevelopment project undertaken by the original
shareholders of The Belcher’s, in which the Group holds a 10%
equity interest. The project consists of two blocks of 32-storey
residential building on top of a 2-storey commercial complex and

carports.

TAI PO PROJECT

The Group acquired this 262,000 square feet plot of land in Tai Po
district, New Territories as a long term investment. Pending relaxation
in regulations for its development, the Group is considering several
interim options for its use and will implement its development when

the opportunity arises.

NEW HOTEL & SERVICED APARTMENT

Western Harbour Centre used to be a 28-storey full sea-view Grade A
office building with a gross floor area of approximately 162,000
square feet located at Connaught Road West and within close
proximity to the Western Harbour Tunnel. The Group is converting
this property into a hotel & serviced apartment building, and
construction works are now being undertaken in full steam. It is
currently expected that the end product, a 183-room hotel and
serviced residences, will be able to commence operation before 30
June 2017 under the direct management of a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

EEH

BZEARER RN BKEZER
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Chong Hing Square £I# &5

PRC PROPERTY BUSINESS

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

This flagship property of the Group, located at 288 Nanjing Road
West in Huang Pu District of Shanghai, is a 36-storey Grade A
commercial building which commands a strategic location and
enviable view over The People’s Square just across the street. With a
total floor area of over 516,000 square feet of office and commercial
space and 198 carparks, this property was 96% let in terms of office
space and 100% let in terms of retail space as at 31 December 2015.
The Group intends to hold this property as a long term investment.
Total rental revenue generated from this property in 2015 was
approximately HK$159.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 3%.
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Chairman’s Statement TEmMSEE

THE GRAND RIVIERA & THE GRAND JARDIN, FOSHAN

The Grand Riviera is a large-scale residential development project
currently undertaken by the Group. Situated on a plot of land of over
260,000 square metres at 1 Guilong Road, Luocun in the Nanhai
District of Foshan, it is conveniently located 5 minutes away from the
new Foshan West Station (under development and expected to be
renamed as Guangzhou West Station), within half an hour’s drive from
the Foshan financial district and within an hour’s drive from downtown

Guangzhou.

The project is divided into four phases and marketed under The
Grand Riviera and Grand Jardin brandnames. Phases 1 and 2, now
fully completed, consists of 847 and 1,542 residential units of
different sizes respectively, out of which a total of over 1,730
residential units have been sold. Phase 3, consisting of over 1,500
residential units, is expected to commence pre-sales by mid-2016.
Construction of Phase 4 is also expected to be commenced during
2016.

CHINA BUDGET HOTEL

This budget hotel project had consisted one budget hotel in Shanghai,
one in Guangzhou and another one in Beijing, all of which were
operated in rented locations under a franchise agreement with the
PRC domestic budget hotel chain known as “Hanting”. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, total revenue recorded from this business

was approximately HK$41.7 million.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Liu Chong Hing Property Management and Agency Limited,
established in 1976, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
principally responsible for managing certain properties developed by

the Group. Its revenue remained stable in 2015.

BBl ER A AR T B R R IR B
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2016 OUTLOOK —E-RERSE
We are watching the run for US Presidential Candidacy Nominations F MRV EERALK IR IR AIRZ S - &

with much interest and although the expected results are becoming AFBHIE R eSS HIEEN - BEEEESE
clearer, there is still a long way until the election proper. The new US ERZE T EARENBREE - HIEEHE
President will have a lot on his/her plate, both domestic and foreign, ¥ BERNINEFHEBEREHE T—EEZH
and the next US administration’s policies towards China should largely BT %f /0 B B0 B SR FE a2 (R4 A SRR — BR3IE
remain the same — that is, unless Donald Trump becomes the US  E47E . &AL A AR 4D - HFIFEET - &
Commander-in-Chief. We expect that the Federal Reserve will AEREEFZERBEBIIRESEEFNER0LS% @ B
increase US interest rates by another 0.5% during the year, barring  3EHIRE( N A] 8 B E A B et o

any unforeseen economic crisis.
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Chairman’s Statement T EHREE

Although further slowdown in China’s economic growth could be
expected in 2016, we expect and hope to see a reduced decline. We
remain cautious about the availability of credit but optimistic that
businesses (including the property sector) will have some breathing
space to grow. There is still a large supply of residential units that
needs to be offloaded by developers but demand should remain fairly

strong, with the official lifting of the one-child policy earlier this year.

We had hoped that with the subsidence of debates concerning
universal suffrage in 2017, Hong Kong would finally see some focused
and constructive developments for the betterment of its economy and
society. This rosy picture was marred to some extent by the recent
Mongkok events but we did see some progress such as the approval
of additional budget for the Express Rail Link. The road ahead for
Hong Kong will remain to be a rocky one but we reiterate our hopes
that our politicians and society could exercise restraint, be practical
and have a long-sighted vision for the future of Hong Kong. For too
long have we neglected Hong Kong's development and
competitiveness over bitter divides, it is now time to rebuild this city

for just for this generation but the next in line.

In 2016, we will continue to improve our core asset portfolio as well as
continuing to look for growth and investment opportunities, both in
Hong Kong and overseas. Our prudent business approach has paid
off in us being financially solid with stable dividend returns to our
shareholders amidst troubled times. With our new ventures in the
hospitality industry, we hope to bring in new income channels and
steady growth for the Group.

AT - RFPELBEER L BRI/ A
B — PR - FRMITERT I A B RRIB AT I -
HEEHERMBREEE  BHEHE(BE
BHETTE)BE —Lin SAERZEM - HA
AR REHEE - HARERELRETEM
& - BREESFY) [ —=%BUR ] B IEX ARRR -
FEFBRKNRFEERY -

BPFHE BER T LFEENFERH
H BEBRREBRENUNERLEBENMHLERE
MEREER - GSRERXFEEXEE LRI
HISE A AE M ATBOR - BRANES D
—LERPINRB S EE SR c BERK
BRENGREIERT  HMERHE2RMANK
BRMEGEERRFERS  BE - WHEFE
ARBERABRERE - REIUE AR5
B SBRMARBETEENERNGF N - B
TE-RET—RK REEFHRERZE @R

N

m o

ZE AT ERREEBREN  RME
BENSRMOZOEEMRS  WEESK
ERMEEHS - BENERERY KM
HOLERHSBRMPBERE  RERR

RIRERBERE - IRMBMBUE D R o
BREBMMFEBEEES  BAFEHRATR
REBFEAFHRARE - WHERBEEE -



The Grand Riviera, Foshan 1112255 4t B

L = F LY
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| would like to express my heartfelt thanks to stakeholders and
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Dr. Liu Lit Mo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 March 2016
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We never stop challenging and exceeding our limits
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Directors Report EF@WHEE

The Board of Directors of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (the
“Board”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders its annual
report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are property investment and investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures are
shown in notes 38 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“Companies
Ordinance”), including a fair review of the business and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year 2015, and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the “Five-Year

non

Financial Summary”, "Chairman’s Statement”, “Summary of Financial
Highlights”, “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate
Governance Report” sections of the Annual Report. The above

sections form part of this report.

RESULTS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set
out on pages 105 to 212 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.16 per share was paid to
shareholders on 23 September 2015. The Board recommends a final
cash dividend of HK$0.26 per share, making a total cash dividend of
HK$0.42 per share for the year.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the movements in
reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 December 2015 comprised the accumulated profits of
HK$4,983,310,000 (2014: HK$5,056,553,000).
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the year are set out in

note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES
HELD FOR SALE

Movements in properties under development/properties under
development for sale/properties held for sale during the year are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 May 2012, which replaced the
previous share option scheme, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 8
May 2022. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to outside

eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders.

Options may be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of the nominal value of the Company’s share on
the date of grant, the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the closing

price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options have been granted under the above mentioned scheme

since the Scheme was adopted.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars relating to the subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED
Details of bank loans and other borrowings repayable within five years
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s interest capitalised during the year amounted to
HK$30,248,000 (2014: HK$27,166,000).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are shown on page 73 of this annual report.

The term of office of each director, who has been longest in office,
shall retire by rotation and offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr.
Ma Hung Ming, John shall retire by rotation in accordance with
Articles 105 of the Company’s Articles of Association and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with Article 97
of The Company’s Articles of Association, any new director so
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out on pages 78 to 88.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independent pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the Company
considered all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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COMPLIANCE OF THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

All directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules throughout the review period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the directors and the Chief
Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which have
been notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, or have been recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

THE COMPANY

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited

BFLTATNESFETEHFX M
FEFA

REEHRE - FrAEEEER fBZ%E?%iFJ:?ﬁ
HRAIM SR 10ME 2 L AR ESRE 5%
ZHIEESTAZ RTE -

ESEXAQTIREMEBEERTZ
Rz & 1 22

RZE—RAF+_A=+—H EFRITHK
BENARARREBEEER (EXRRFH R
BIGRAIZEXVE) 2 ’ktn - HEARD REHPH#E
BIREE %"&Hﬂfﬂmm%XV*ﬁ%7&%8
BEHGRRARBEEBARIMAERR
(TBEZZFT]) 2 s - HIRIBEBHF RS Mﬁu
%352 6B R ARR A FFE B LM 2 s
SIRBEETBITAEFTETRIFIRGZ2ITE
TRIBMNEARR R RERZ ATz =T

EXASIREEBZENRG RHER
Bz 3 h B #E &

NS

BPRIEEEBERA

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES HELD 75 % ER R 3% E

Family interests
(interests of spouse

Personal interests or child under 18)

Total interests
as approximate %

Corporate interests of the relevant

(held as RikER (interests of controlled issued share capital

Long/short beneficial owner) (BB 1855 corporation) EREEL

Name of director position BA#ER AT % DEER Total interests ERTRAE

EEpg BE/ KB (BREE) ZRR) (ZEHARZER) ol BREDE

Dr. Liu Lit Mo Long 795,600 — 138,326,710 139,122,310 36.75%
BRREL 7E (notes 1 and 2)
(MiEF1%2)

Mr. Liu Lit Chi Long 24,000 — 185,547,000 185,571,000 49.02%
BRI EE e (notes 1 and 3)
(s 1%3)

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston Long 2,570,000 — — 2,570,000 0.67%

BeBLEE e

Dr. Liu Lit Chung Long — — 132,326,710 132,326,710 34.95%

BRBEE ) (note 1)

(MzED)




The Westwood FEFEH;

notes:

Chatham Gate SF3

132,326,710 Shares are beneficially held by Liu's Holdings Limited, of which Dr. Liu Lit
Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung are amongst its shareholders. The above
numbers of shares are duplicated under the corporate interests for each of these
directors.

Eternal Wealth Limited, of which Dr. Liu Lit Mo and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 6,000,000 Shares, and thus is included in the corporate interests of
Dr. Liu Lit Mo.

Alba Holdings Limited, of which Mr. Liu Lit Chi and his associates are shareholders,
beneficially holds 53,220,290 Shares, and thus is included in the corporate interests of
Mr. Liu Lit Chi.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Company, the
following persons (other than the directors or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member

of the Group:

TEBRRRAEMATHER
R-T-—EF+=A=+—8 REXTMR

M THAT(RARZESKITHRABRRIN)
%K/‘EﬂZH&TﬁWHEﬂH&@#ﬂ%*ﬂ‘ffﬁdﬁé’é
KBGO EXVBE2REIDBZHEEA
MARNRBE 2 ERSOAE - KBS REE
BEAETABER TRASEET@MEMEKE

RAIREAE LIRE 2 A RERIRAEES%
A E 2 R

Name of substantial shareholder Long/short position Capacity No. of ordinary share held % of the issued share capital
TZRRER BR/ KR g4 RS BERRAEE HERTRABD
Liu’s Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 132,326,710 34.95%
BREEERAH #E ERBEAA (note 1)
(HFzE1)
Alba Holdings Limited Long Beneficial owner 53,220,290 14.06%
EERERRAR #E ERBEAA (note 2)
(HizE2)
notes: BdaE -
1. Liu’s Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by, 1. BREEBRAR IR EBFEMKS 2FLARE] -

amongst others, Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung. Such corporate
interests are also disclosed in the sub-section under “Directors’ interests in Share
Capital of the Company and its Associated Corporations.”

2. Alba Holdings Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, is owned by Mr.
Liu Lit Chi and his associates. Such corporate interests are also disclosed in the sub-
section under “Directors’ interests in Share Capital of the Company and its Associated
Corporations.”

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any
person (other than the directors or Chief Executives Officer of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more as at 31 December
2015 which were required to be disclosed to the Company under Part
XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

BEABREPARBL - BB KL REZRE
£ o ZERAER DTEEM:?U%HFﬁ%EZK’AET
R EARROEB A 2 AR | D EEE o

2. %IEBEATEE’\%/%DEH%}EXiziL/\AT
%‘JEElfﬁ'J*”f‘EE&HH?%/\j:%H%ﬁ ZER
T*E RINE R E5I & A [EEAEAR R REBBA

B 2 A S| DB -
Br EALPREESN - WRAEMAL(ARRE

SHITIHAAHFRIN) BEERIBE 5 RS 50
EXNVHER—_E—RF+_A=1+—HFFA
AR E 5% A E 2 D RABBANRD < R =k
REMARNEHWELHE  IBBELFRRE
GOIEIBCIKRETHF2ELMAMGDERE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
“Related Party Disclosures”, no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had, whether
directly or indirectly, a material interest, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not terminable within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In February 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
the landlord, a company wholly owned by Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman,
and his spouse. The Company leased the property for a monthly rent
of HK$400,000 with retrospective effect from 1 January 2014 for a
term of two years. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$4,800,000.

In February 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement with
the landlord, a company owned by Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer, and his associates. The Company leased
the property for a monthly rent of HK$360,000 for a term
commencing from 14 February 2014 and ended on 31 December
2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate rent
paid by the Company amounted to HK$4,320,000.

EFSMER

BERA BB MK M EH36HR [ BB A LB
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In March 2014, the Company entered into a lease agreement with Dr.
Liu Lit Chung, a Non-executive Director. The Company leased the
property for a monthly rent of HK$75,000 with effect from 1 March
2014 for a term of two years. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the aggregate rent paid by the Company amounted to HK$900,000.

In March 2011, the Company entered into a service agreement with
K.A. Kho & Associates for architectural and consultancy services
provided to the Company. Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher, a Non-
executive Director, is the sole director and the sole shareholder of K.A.
Kho & Associates. In addition, a supplemental agreement with revised
service fee of HK$12,900,000 was signed in February 2016. For the
year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate service fee paid by the
Company amounted to HK$4,092,000.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions,
details of which are also disclosed by the Group in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the directors who do not have any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in the above transactions, the transactions were
conducted in the ordinary course of business of the Group on normal

commercial terms.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers and the Group’s turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers were less than 30% respectively. None of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Board owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or

customers.

RZTE—NF=F AAREIENTERE
NABERTHEGN HERBABYK
75000 H=—ZE—MFE=A—HEEX -
BHMFE BHEZT—AF+A=+T—H
IEFE - AR R HZ TS 900,000 7T ©

RZT——F=F  FoRAMEREARQF
B — RS H®E - RRARREEERE
BRI ARTS - KRR ZIEMITEFTERE
ENeRAMEsE—EERE—RE -
S—RHABER T —A"F-_AFK - BB
B RER] 2B 12900000 HE =T
—AF+ZA=+—HLEFE ARAIHZ
HEERS B8 ¥ 4,092,000 7T °
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EILE] RS2 EHRITHESIF 7405 [IREBEEE
£ AR R H5 B B E XX 5 B H 0 A BRED B
] RRABZBEN D EEFERANEERER
BRPRAEBE - ZHEEREBETR EWR
AL 14A6IRB L EBERER R KT EHE
ME SRR B BN AR E P IS IHRK MM EF 3617
MBRBERERERS TR ZBEERER - A
RAIE S E BAZ SR ok 1 B A X 2B

AETH AR U BERKEENELES
RRLERZHBANEBEREXH - LR
—RREEIRTETT

FTERFRRMUED

REEAR AEEZAAAEEERKEAE
BXREIAEADZ=1T MAKEZAAX
EPAEAEEEZERTIREANZ=T &
NREABREZERABBALTREMRR(EEE
AERARNRBCETRABD 2AHAL)
BEGEEZDIARBRANE P EM RS -



W

c

w

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES BE -  HExlEDEKSY Z

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company and its BE_T—F&+_A=+—BItEEN - I

N )

subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the shares ARRREMBARTEREE  HEHED

in the Company. ERIARR 2D © 2

>

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION FiRE# 5

TOP 10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS BFRERSH10MKE §

According to the register of members of the Company as at 31 BEXAAFTBREEZMHER  R=Z—1 Py

b

December 2015, the top 10 largest shareholders are as follows: F+-_A=Z+—HER=RSMWI0MBRED B

m

T 2

<=

m

Number of shares held % )

Name of shareholder BR &% BERHHE BAk E

=

L. HKSCC Nominees Limited BETPREE (REA)BRAA 147,179,568 38.88 r‘-'?l

e

2. Chong Hing (Nominees) Limited £lE (RIB)BRAT 141,275,288 37.32 o

[5]

3. Alba Holdings Limited EEEEERAH 35,000,222 9.25 E

D\

4. BTMU Nominees (HK) Limited BTMU Nominees (HK) Limited 10,000,000 2.64 ‘nj

R

5. Leung Hok Pang Leung Hok Pang 8,068,000 2.13 il
6. Win Ever (Nominees) Limited Win Ever (Nominees) Limited 8,000,000 2.11
7. Wragg Limited Wragg Limited 3,620,000 0.96
8. Cheng Kee Man Cheng Kee Man 3,000,000 0.79
9. Cheng Kee Hong Cheng Kee Hong 2,800,000 0.74
10.  On Luk Tong Limited On Luk Tong Limited 1,090,000 0.29
Total &t 360,033,078 95.11
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LOCATION OF SHAREHOLDERS
According to the register of members of the Company as at 31

December 2015, the location of shareholders are as follows:

B 58 53 o
RESATRRBEMOER R -F—
F+-A=+—BREIHMT :

Number of shares held %
Location of shareholders BRA BEROEE B
Hong Kong BB 378,521,140 99.9835
China and South East Asia R KRR 36,060 0.0095
Europe BOM 800 0.0002
US and Canada XERMNEXR 16,360 0.0045
Others Hit 8,580 0.0023
Total o 378,583,440 100

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT EPZ2ABBRE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the
end of the financial year and of their respective profit or loss for the
year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the directors
are required to select suitable accounting policies and apply them on
a consistent basis, making judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable; state the reasons for any significant departure
from accounting standards; prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis, unless it is not appropriate to presume that the
Company and the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable

future.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and of the Group and
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and

other irregularities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREEE

Audit Committee report is shown on pages 35 to 36. The principal B&ZEE&REFINEISE36E - EXELE
duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the internal controls and @2 EXZREAEEAEE 2 NEPEERRF
the financial reporting requirements of the Group. The Audit RFAMBREZENR  ERETES—RKRE
Committee meeting will normally hold twice of each financial year FHEMKX  TBEFFE B E K
immediate before the Board meeting for approving the interim and REIEGE A S % %E/ﬁi%mﬂﬂz

Lol
N3
)]Ib] bt
i

z=
final results. The committee is satisfied with the Company’s internal  RI3PES A2 7 & B 75 3R 25 P 45t 22
control procedures and the financial reporting disclosures.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEES

Nomination Committee report is shown on page 37. The report T;—%%és\%#&iﬁw\\%w o ZMEITE
showed the main duty and the work performed by the committee EBE&€HETERENN T AFMETHT
during the year of 2015. fE -

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HFINESE

Remuneration Committee report is shown on page 38. The report HEEZEESREINFEIBE - iZHE
showed the main duty and work performed by the committee during B EZEREMR T —AFMETHT
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the year of 2015. fE o
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE HWITEBREZEE i
The Executive Management Committee was established on 30 #HfTEEZE8eEeR T —WUF+A=1+H
AV BEEREZEREERNERE B

October 2014. The current members of the committee comprised of XL ° & &
Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, ©E&4E BHEHMEERSEELE - BIE
Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the duly approved ZEEEEAENBESE ZESERE
terms of reference by the Board, the committee is authorized to BARFREMBAGNE ®EIE N EER
discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on all matters relating RBIEERE © FICEE - WIEHREK - £ 8
to the daily management and operations of the Company and its G wmEARTEESE W25
subsidiaries. It also helps to discuss significant daily operational — F&IR » SWEEE ISR NAEREEE EHE i o
issues, review business performance and take prompt corrective EEFEHE TES 7R REEES(E
actions as appropriate. The Board believes that the function of FHEBHER 2 AESIRASIBIOREA S E
committee could help to relieve the Board of detailed review of  Z&= o

information and to increase the operational efficiency among different

departments.

Detailed terms of reference could be seen at the Company’s website. BiESEZFB B2 R ARR) @ -
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Directors Report EF@WHEE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has substantially complied throughout the year ended
31 December 2015 with those paragraphs of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with

which it is required to report compliance.

Guidelines and procedures for corporate governance of the Company

are set out on pages 50 to 72.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for directors and officers liability
insurance for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for
the benefit of the directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when this report prepared by the directors is
approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies

Ordinance.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the Board of Directors
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are as follows:
Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Mr. Cheng Wan Yen

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have expressed their
willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, a resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Lit Chi

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 2 March 2016

1% B0 B

REFZHEEMBHRRERD « @RS S
FHERTTEZ R EREMTTER TEBEME
EERBBL - UL RITZERREBFA
ELRERE-BRBERUNEEREY « Bx

BR7TEETRIIT RN B Z B -

EEESMm

B2IE
EFREIERITHARE

o)
Cc
@
=
m
(7]
(7]
P
m
=
m
=
>
=
O
(2]
o
P
)
(@]
=
=
m
[}
@]
<
m
Pl
=
>
=
(»]
m
e
S
[5]
&
&
5>
Il

Iy

Tz

=
73

EvEeRTHNE Y

e

B



W
»

GT0Z 1¥Od3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited Simplified Organization Chart
BB E B R ARG & E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
£

REMUNERATION AUDIT ST Gl 2 NOMINATION
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE SEGE BN HOHERIIC 2 COMMITTEE
i i COMMITTEE COMMITTEE v
RIS AEEE HITEREAS CREREAR ==H

Property Sale and Leasing Legal and Corporate
and Property Management Communications
S-Sy Department Department
ABSRRGEE MEEEABRNE TS SERRRRARS

Human Resources and

Secretarial Department Administration Department

WER

Finance Management Project Development and
and Information Facilities Management
Technology Department Department

BB EER AR AR RRRRIGEEH AR

Hospitality Management Business

B R

Department Development Department



Audit Committee Report EZZ B &

The Audit Committee is made up of four members, all of them are

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company.

The committee oversees the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. In this process, management is principally
responsible for the preparation of group financial statements including
the selection of suitable accounting policies. External auditor is
responsible for auditing and attesting to the Group’s financial
statements and will report to the management of the Company from
time to time on any weakness in controls which come to their
attention. The Audit Committee oversees the respective work of
management and external auditor to ensure the management has

discharged its duty to have an effective internal control procedures.
The Audit Committee had performed the works as follows:

° To review the audited financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015;

° To review the interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2015;

o To review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence;
o To review the system of internal control of the Company;
° To review the audit plan and the engagement of external auditor;

° To make recommendation on the re-appointment of external

auditor; and

o To review the sufficiency of manpower resources of account and

finance team of the Group in order to carry out the duties.

It was reported that no major internal control weakness was found
and all the recommendations previously suggested by auditors were
agreed and implemented by the management in 2015.

Based on these review and discussions, and the report of the external
auditor, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board approval of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 with the Auditor’s Report thereon.
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Audit Committee Report EZZE €

g

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board that the
shareholders be asked to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor for the year of 2016.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Hong Kong, 1 March 2016
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Nomination Committee Report IRZEE@HEE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) consists of four members.

The main duty of the committee is (i) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of the directors and succession plan for directors, in particular the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The NC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The
terms of reference were duly authorized by the Board.

In the year of 2015, the NC had reviewed and discussed the following
issues at its meetings:

1.  to review the composition and structure of the Board.
2.  toreview the attendance record of directors of the Company.

3. to review the scope of responsibilities of directors of the
Company.

4.  to recommend the Board for the appointment of additional
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in order to
comply with the requirement under the Listing Rules.

5. to review and confirm the independence of all the Independent
Non-executive Directors.

6. 1o review and amend as required from time to time the Board
diversity policies.

The NC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are
circulated to the Board for information.

The NC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Nomination Committee
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Lit Chi

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Hong Kong, 1 March 2016
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Remuneration Committee Report %r B

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) consists of four members, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The main duty of the committee is to formulate the Company’s
remuneration policy as well as to determine and/or make
recommendation to the Board with regard to the structure of
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
When necessary and appropriate, the Chairman and Managing

Director are consulted on such issues.

The RC discharges its responsibilities by reference to the terms of
reference which set out their roles, responsibilities and duties. The

terms of reference were duly authorized by the Board.

The RC, having consulted with the Chairman of the Board, had
reviewed and discussed the following issues at its meeting:

o To review the Company’s remunerations policy, structure and
the remunerations packages for all directors and senior

management;

o To determine and/or make recommendation to the Board
regarding the directors’ fees and other allowance for the year of
2016; and

° To review and approve the annual performance bonus and its
policy.

The RC is accountable to the Board and minutes of the meeting are

circulated to the Board for information.

The RC meets when required but at least once per year.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman)
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Hong Kong, 1 March 2016
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Summary of Financial Highlights B # £

Revenue
oz

1,193,032 565,875 110.8

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company (note 1) 410,366 2,356,935 (82.6)
DEEREARRRE 2 AF R (1)

Basic earnings per share
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BIREARET
from continuing and discontinued operations 5 = - =
o [ A R | AR B HKS1.08 7T 7B HK$6.23 7T (82.7)
from continuing operations J5HE HK$1.08 7T 5B HK$1.04 7T 3.8
REFELE
Net assets value per share g — . _
SRAEEE 7SS HK$28.91 7T PSS HK$29.15 7T (0.8)
Dividend per share
B R
e U HK$0.16 7T SEHE HK$0.15 7T 6.7
Final N — - _
St 785 HK$0.26 7T 7B HK$0.25 7T 4.0
Total 5 — St —
A4t B HK$0.42 7T B HKS0.40 7T 5.0
Dividend payout ratio (from continuing operations only) o o
T8 (R A1 ok B S AR 99% 38% !
Special cash dividend (note 2) - B HK$2.80 7T N/A
BRI S A% E (FTEE2) NiEMA
Special dividend by way of distribution in specie - 1 share of CHB N/A
(note 2) for every 10 shares NiE A
INEY IR FRIARE (HiEE2) of the Company
10/
PiN/NG ) <)
RIS EC 1A%
BIFRIRITIR D 39
®
m
note 1:  Profit for the year attributable to owners of the company of HK$2,356.9 million recorded in 2014, including the profit from discontinued operations of :
HK$1,963.3 million. *
PIFEL : =T —EH B AN A AR 2 AR F % A7 #E 2,356,900,000 7T B2 5 2R B B 48 LE 44 &% A7 % 1,963,300,000 7T © g
note 2:  The payment of special cash dividend and special dividend by way of distribution of CHB Shares were due to the completion of Partial Offer for disposal Z
of CHB Shares. -
FizE2 : TRERRIR SRS RIAD IRAIFERITIR G 2 B BIRR B T5 B 52 pk i & Bl FERITAR (D B0 ZE 4T © I
|
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Management Discussion and Analysis BB E z 5 i Mo
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Management Discussion and Andalysis

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded profit of
approximately HK$422.3 million, it represents a decline of 87.5%
when comparing with the year of 2014. However, if we excluded the
profit from discontinued operations (mainly relating to the disposal of
CHB Shares) of approximately HK$2,983.6 million recorded in 2014,
it recorded a slight increase of profit of approximately HK$19.4
million, representing an increase of approximately 4.8% when

comparing to that of year 2014.

Revenue under continuing operations had increased from
approximately HK$565.9 million to approximately HK$1,193 million.
The change was mainly due to the recognition of revenue from Grand

Jardin, Foshan.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue mainly referred to the revenues generated from property
investment, property development, property management, treasury

investment, trading & manufacturing and hotel operation.

Other income referred to various miscellaneous income other than the

main revenue.

Other gains and losses mainly comprised of net exchange losses,
gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments, gain on changes
in fair value of investment properties and impairment loss recognised

in respect of properties held for sale.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

OVERALL RENTAL REVENUE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s gross rental
revenue increased by approximately HK$24.3 million to approximately
HK$375.3 million, representing 7% increase comparing to that of
2014. Major changes were due to increase of rental revenue of
approximately HK$10.5 million from Chong Hing Square,
approximately HK$9.3 million from Chong Hing Bank Centre and
approximately HK$4.5 million from Shanghai Chong Hing Finance

Center.

OVERALL OCCUPANCIES

The occupancy level at the Group’s major investment properties was
successfully maintained at approximately 95% as at 31 December
2015.

BB & WA AT

BE-_T—AF+-_A=+—ALFE XK
£ BRI FI 478 % 422,300,000 * BR=-F
—POE R§87.5% - MR =T —HFRH

B4R 1E 48 & BT 155 7 4078 1 2,983,600,000 7T

(FZREEAIEBITRG ) - AFERMER

T — PO F | F 47 ¥ 19,400,000 7T + 3 0

#494.8% °

2R B 5B 4 & P S I B 4978 565,900,000
TCIE AN E 49765 1,193,000,000 7T » WAL K
FEREHLUBEBRERERZWA -

o Tt
AT BEANERE  MERE  WEED

B HHRE  BHRUENREEEEH
BE HE MRS o

H b U AR £ Z Was SASMNY B EFETE A ©
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B 2 Wzt R 5 B YR ORE R IR IER
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The Grand Riviera, Foshan #1125 &M E
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HONG KONG PROPERTIES

CHONG HING SQUARE

Chong Hing Square, located at 601 Nathan Road Mongkok, is a
20-storey ginza-type retail/commercial building, offering over 182,000
square feet of retail and commercial space. For the year of 2015,
Chong Hing Square generated rental revenue of approximately
HK$117.0 million with occupancy of 99% as at 31 December 2015.
Due to the declining of Hong Kong and China economy, the
management expected a modest increase of rental revenue from this
building in 2016.

CHONG HING BANK CENTRE

Chong Hing Bank Centre, located at 24 Des Voeux Road Central, is a
26-storey Grade A office building. Having retained several floors for
Company’s use, the office building was leased to Chong Hing Bank
Limited for 5 years with a monthly rental of approximately HK$5.66
million starting from 19 February 2014. For the year ended 31
December 2015, a total of approximately HK$67.9 million rental
revenue was derived from this building. Given the 5-year fixed
tenancy, the rental revenue to be generated from this property will
remain stable in 2016.

A\

W it 4

B o

y
o)
pEm S|

e

-y
¥
1

FEEME

R ES

BIELES - (LR ABBUE60LN - RER
“THEZREATE WERNE EfE
182,000 F h REE RRERM - R=—F—H
F RARESELAZHEHSRENER
117,000,0007T * ZAER -ZT—AF+_H
=+ —HZHEXREI9% AREBMFPE
REEL ERERHEHSWREE TR
F R ELIRIE h0 o

BB ERIT PO
BIBERITHR LN PIRIEH BT 245 - /12
BT AEBEZFRARTE BREBEHRN
NEIBRASN - AR AEELE T AIEERTT
ERAR HHAFE K -_F-—WOF_HA
THAEHE 8 AESLE%5,660,0007T °
BE_T-AF+t_A=+—HILFE %
RESFHEES YR 4B % 67,900,0007T °
ERNTFETHEY —T-—RFzlsks
HREHEFRFIRIE

w
c
&
=
m
(7]
7]
el
m
=
m
=
P
=
o
o
(=)
)
T
(=)
=
=
m
()
o
<
m
3
=
>
=
o
m
e
S
5]
i
&
»
Il
S
o

EvHyERTHRE H

N

i 7



»
S

GT0Z 1¥Od3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

Management Discussion and Andalysis

CHONG YIP CENTRE

Chong Yip Centre is located at 402-404 Des Voeux Road West. It
provides over 54,000 square feet of retail and commercial space. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, this retail and commercial
shopping centre generated rental revenue of approximately HK$21.6
million despite the decreased occupancy to approximately 75%.
Rental revenue increased by approximately 6% comparing to 2014
was mainly due to the rental revision. The management expects a
modest increase of rental revenue in 2016 if the tenancy renewal and
occupancy level could be improved.

FAIRVIEW COURT

Fairview Court, a low-rise residential building, is located at 94 Repulse
Bay Road. The Group holds 5 units, each with a gross area of over
4,100 square feet for leasing. For the year ended 31 December 2015,
Fairview Court recorded rental revenue of approximately HK$3 million.
It only achieved 20% occupancy as at year ended 2015. In 2016, two
further units were leased and overall occupancy had been increased
to 60%.

PRC PROPERTIES

CHONG HING FINANCE CENTER, SHANGHAI

The mainland flagship property located at 288 Nanjing Road West in
Huang Pu District of Shanghai is a 36-storey Grade A commercial
building which commands a strategic location and enviable view over
The People’s Square just across the street. With a total floor area of
over 516,000 square feet of office and commercial spaces and 198
carparks, this property was approximately 96% let in terms of office
space and 100% let in terms of retail space as at 31 December 2015.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, this office building generated
rental revenue of approximately HK$159.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately 3%. The management expect a moderate
increase of rental revenue from this property in 2016, however, overall
rental revenue may be partly offset by the depreciation of Renminbi.
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Fairview Court =M

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HONG KONG

Western Harbour Centre Redevelopment

This was previously a 28-storey office building located at 181-183
Connaught Road West, and will be redeveloped into a 183-room hotel
and serviced residences with panoramic views of Victoria Harbour.
Construction work has commenced in full steam since December
2015 and business operations at the hotel are expected to commence
before mid-2017 under the direct management of the Group.

Tai Po, New Territories

The Group had acquired a 262,000 square feet plots of land in Tai Po
district, New Territories. The management has initiated the studies for
rezoning and intends to seek eventual conversion of this land for

future development.

Chong Hing Bank Centre £ #8817
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PRC

Residential Project, Foshan

In 2007, the Group acquired a plot of land with site area of over
260,000 square metres in Luocun, Foshan through government land
auction at a cash consideration of RMB476 million. This is a
comprehensive development and will be developed by phases.
Situated at 1 Guilong Road, Luocun in the Nanhai District of Foshan,
it is conveniently located within half an hour’s drive from the Foshan
financial district and within 5 minutes’ drive from the new Foshan
West Station (under construction).

The Grand Riviera, Foshan

Phase 1 of the development consists of 12 blocks of 6-14 storey
residential apartments with unit sizes ranging from 55 square metres
to 380 square metres. The retail and commercial portion occupies
approximately 8,600 square metres and there is a standalone
clubhouse of approximately 6,800 square metres offering recreational
facilities such as an outdoor swimming pool, gym, snooker room,
table tennis room, karaoke rooms and card rooms. If including the
carparking spaces mainly built at the basement level, total
construction areas are over 181,000 square metres. Phase 1 provides
847 units and 1,126 carparking spaces. As at 2 March 2016, a total
of 487 units (representing 57% of available units) and 216 carparking
spaces (representing 19% of available spaces) had been sold,
generating cash proceeds of approximately RMB406.2 million.

Grand Jardin, Foshan

Phase 2 of the development consists of 12 blocks of 14 storey
residential apartments of 3 unit types, being 60, 90 and 120 square
metres in size. If including the retail and commercial areas of
approximately 2,100 square metres, other amenities areas of
approximately 3,500 square metres and carparking spaces mainly
built at the basement levels, the total developable area of Phase 2 is
over 191,000 square metres. Construction of Phase 2 of the
development began in June 2013 and pre-sales was launched in the
first quarter of 2014. As at 2 March 2016, the Group had successfully
sold 1,243 units (representing approximately 81% of total 1,542
available units) returning sales proceeds of approximately RMB706
million. The management will continue to sell the remaining units of
the project. Given the recognised quality of the building, the remaining

units were expected to be sold in 2016 at an increased selling price.

Construction of Phase 3 of this project had been commenced in
2015.
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Grand Jardin, Foshan sales events 1L J 8 B2 RE 4 €555 B)

BUDGET HOTEL PROJECT

Since 2008, the Group had started to operate a budget hotel
business. The Group operated four budget hotels, two in Shanghai,
one in Beijing and one in Guangzhou. All of these budget hotels are
managed by and under the brand name of Hanting. Due to the
restructuring of the Group’s investment strategy, one of the Shanghai
hotel had ceased its operation since October 2015. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, total hotel revenue decreased by
approximately 15% from approximately HK$49.2 million in 2014 to
approximately HK$41.7 million in 2015.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s shareholders’ funds decreased from HK$11,009.2
million as at 31 December 2014 to HK$10,916.1 million as at 31
December 2015, representing a net decrease of HK$93.1 million. The
decrease in shareholders’ funds was attributed to (a) profit attributable
to the owners of the Group of HK$410.4 million; (b) net decrease of
investment revaluation reserve, property revaluation reserve and
exchange reserve totalling HK$348.3 million; and (c) dividend paid of
HK$155.2 million.
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FINANCE AND TREASURY OPERATIONS

BANK BORROWINGS MOVEMENT

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net cash balance (being cash
and deposits less borrowings) was increased from approximately
HK$485.4 million to approximately HK$522.3 million.

The management expected that the bank balance could be increased
further by receiving sale proceeds from The Grand Riviera and Grand
Jardin, Foshan, and the stable rental revenue from our property

investment.

For next few years, major capital expenditure will be incurred for
Western Habour Centre, the hotel redevelopment project, and the
renovation of Chong Hing Square. The management will ensure all

these capital expenditures within the budget.

BANKING FACILITIES

All the total outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015
was secured with committed basis. In managing the debt portfolio,
the Group has endeavoured to maintain diversified sources of
funding. Currently, the major source of financing is still coming from
the banking sector, in which the Group has bilateral banking facilities
with over 10 banks, most of which have established long relationship
with the Group. The management will consider to widen the funding
source from capital market if both of the market conditions and terms

are favourable to the Company.

The management will closely monitor the Company’s funding position,
internal funding and lower cost external funding will be used for

coming development project.

LIQUIDITY RISK AND CASH BALANCES

It is the Group’s financial policy to maintain positive cash balance and
high liquidity. To maintain sufficient liquidity will not only help the
Group to fulfill all short term payment obligations but also to improve
the Group’s working capital. Liquidity mainly comes from recurring
rental income of various investment properties, cash sale proceeds
from various completed and uncompleted development projects and

committed banking facilities.

Liquidity risk of the Group has been further reduced by early

refinancing and improvement of cashflow.
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LOAN MATURITY ANALYSIS

Liquidity risk could also be reduced by extending the loan tenors. The
Group’s debt maturity portfolio is spread with 63% of debts becoming
due within 1 year, and 33% of debts due over 2 but within 5 years.
Most of the loans due within 1 year are under negotiation to renew in
2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing interest rate and foreign exchange exposures, the Group
may use certain derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps,
cross currency swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign exchange
contracts. It is the Group’s policy to allow using derivatives as hedging
purposes only. With respect to the counterparty risk of the derivatives,
the Group transacts only with financial institutions with strong

investment-grade ratings.

INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

The volatility and uncertainty of the movement of interest rate may
result in a potential negative impact to the Group’s financial position.
Given that, the management will actively involve and review the

movement of interest rate so as to minimize the financial impact.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

It is the Group’s policy to minimize mismatch in currency and not to
speculate in currency movement. As at year ended 31 December
2015, other foreign exchange exposure related to some major
investments in Guangzhou, Shanghai and Foshan projects which
altogether amounted to the equivalent of about HK$5,387.8 million or
41.7% of the Group’s assets.

EMPLOYEE AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policy, having been advised and
determined by the Remuneration Committee, will ensure that the pay
levels of its employees are reasonable and competitive in the market
and their total rewards including basic salary and bonus system are
linked with their performance. The members and the work done of

Remuneration Committee are shown on page 38.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group continues to participate and sponsor various activities
organised by various charitable activities. The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service conferred the Caring Company to the Group for the

eighth consecutive years.
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Corporate Governance Report 1%

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
has substantially complied with the Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code” or the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules with the exception of part of

deviation as set out under the paragraphs below.

GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CHART

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for the purpose of enhancing long term shareholders
value. The corporate governance chart adopted by the Company
could be referred to Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited Simplified

Organization Chart on page 34.

(B) DIRECTORS

() THE BOARD: RESPONSIBILITY FOR LEADERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

° The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leadership and
supervision of the senior management for the purpose of
creating long term shareholders value by sustaining a growing

and successful business.

° The principal task of the Board is to set objective, formulate

strategy and to monitor the operating and financial performance.

o Duties of the Board include approving interim reports and
annual reports, announcements and press release of interim
and final results, considering the dividend policy, and approving
the issue, allotment or disposal or grant of options in respect of

unissued new shares of the Company.

(1) CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR: CLEAR
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

° On 26 February 2014, the Board announced that Dr. Liu Lit Mo,
ceased to be the Managing Director of the Company with
immediate effect. Dr. Liu continued to be the Chairman of the
Board and Mr. Liu Lit Chi was appointed as Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The clear division

of responsibilities under the Code provision was then complied.
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Managing Director assumes overall responsibility for Group’s
operation and performance by delegating duties to different
Executive Directors and senior management to achieve targeted
objectives. The Board gives clear directions to management as
to their powers of management, circumstance in which the

management should make report.

BOARD COMPOSITION: BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, four
Non-executive Directors and five Independent Non-executive
Directors of the full Board. During the year ended 31 December
2015, the Board met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least one-third of the Board

should be Independent Non-executive Directors.

The appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors
strictly adheres to the guidelines for assessing independence set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
written confirmation of their independence from each of the

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board considers that the five Independent Non-executive
Directors are free from any business or other relationship which
might interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment
and each of Independent Non-executive Directors brings their

own relevant expertise to the Board.

The presence of all Independent Non-executive Directors could

ensure that the Board functions effectively and independently.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are also the
committee members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. In short, the three

committees have Independent Non-executive Directors.

In addition, the Company has set up the Corporate Governance
Committee on 7 March 2012 comprising four Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors to

perform the corporate governance duties.

The biographies of the directors appear on pages 78 to 86.
These demonstrate diversity of experience and calibre of the

Board in making management decisions.
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Corporate Governance Report

(IV) APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

Those directors who have been longest in office as at each
annual general meeting will retire from office and be subjected
to re-election.

For newly appointed directors, they are required to submit
themselves to shareholders for re-election to the Board at the

first annual general meeting following their appointment.

All directors have entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company and were appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election and retirement by rotation at least once every three

years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Code provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Under the Article 105 of the Company’s articles of association,
all directors are subject to retirement by rotation except the
Managing Director who shall not be subject to retirement by
rotation under Articles 113 of the Company’s articles of

association.

Details of the term of appointment of all Non-executive Directors

and Independent Non-executive Directors are as follows:

(i)  to perform such functions and exercise such powers as
are appropriate to your position as an Independent Non-
executive Directors or Non-executive Directors of the

Company;

(ii)  to comply with all laws, rules and regulations applicable to
you as a director of the Company, including but not limit to
the Listing Rules; and

(iii)  to notify the Board immediately upon the occurrence of, or
the directors becoming aware of, any matter which may

affect their independence.

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee is available to

review in the Company’s website.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS: GENERAL DUTIES,
SHARE DEALINGS

The directors fully appreciate their role and duties as directors
with supportive commitment of creating a healthy corporate

governance culture.

On appointment, new directors will be given an introduction to
the Group’s major business activities, induction into their

responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

Throughout the year, directors complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules regarding Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Code provision A.6.5 proposes that all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

All directors are well aware of the requirement of attending
continuous professional training for the year ending 31
December 2016.

(VII) COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lee Wai Hung, the company secretary also an Executive
Director of the Company, is a full time employee of the Group
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The
company secretary reports to the Chairman and is responsible
for advising the Board through the Chairman of the Board or
Executive Management Committee on governance matters and
also facilitates induction and professional development of the
directors. All directors have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary to ensure that the Board procedures, all
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the
year, the company secretary has duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. The biography of Mr. Lee is set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in

the annual report.
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(C) BOARD PROCESS

()]

MEETINGS: MATTERS RESERVED FOR FULL BOARD
DECISION AND GENERAL PROCEEDINGS

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance and
in compliance with the requirement as mentioned under
Appendix 14 — Corporate Governance Code, the Board has
performed to hold full Board meeting at least quarterly during
the year 2015.

The Executive Management Committee was established on 30
October 2014. The current members of the committee
comprised of Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung. Based on the
duly approved terms of reference by the Board, the committee

is authorized:

(1) to discuss, formulate policies and make decisions on all
matters relating to the daily management and operations
of the Company and its subsidiaries;

(2) to discuss significant daily operational issues;

(3) to review key business performance and take prompt

corrective actions as appropriate;

(4) to discuss and formulate financial policy, including review
and presentation of final and interim results of the
Company to the Board, as well as make recommendation
of interim and/or final dividends or other distributions to
the Board; and

(5) to discuss business opportunities arising from changing
conditions so as to formulate policies to sustain the growth
of the Company.

The main function of the committee could help to relieve the
Board of detailed review of information and to increase the
operational efficiency among different departments. For the
avoidance of doubt, all matters that require public
announcement pursuant to the Listing Rules or rules of any

other relevant regulatory body must be approved by the Board.
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After the year ended of 2015, the Executive Management
Committee had engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) to provide consultancy services in relation to
enterprise risk management and internal controls. The Board
understands that it is the Board’s responsibility to evaluate the
risks of the Company and to implement the Company’s strategic
objective through an established, appropriate and effective risk

management and internal control systems.

Senior management had discussed with Deloitte the Company’s
existing system and internal controls and an appropriate policy
and detailed work plan will be formulated after having identified

the main area of risk.

Matters reserved for full Board decision include material bank
facilities arrangement, material acquisitions and disposals of
assets, material transactions with connected parties, significant
investments including large capital projects, delegation of
authority, treasury and risk management policy, any matters
involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or
director.

All directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
with and advises the Board on corporate governance and

compliance matters.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the
Board and the Board committee meetings, which are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final signed version is sent to all

directors for their records and open for directors’ inspection.

All directors are allowed to take independent professional advice

at Company’s expense.

There is in place a directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance

cover.
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My

Details of 2015 Board meetings attendance record are set out

ara

B

AL E

/| =

—T-REREEEEERLFLEHT

below: m
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HESHERE HEER
Executive Directors HITES
Liu Lit Mo BAR
(Chairman) (£F) 4/4 100%
Liu Lit Chi BAE
(Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) (BEALIERITRARE) 4/4 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BLiE
(Deputy Managing Director) (FlEEHLHE) 4/4 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (FABFIRBECEREE) 4/4 100%
Lee Wai Hung TR 4/4 100%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Liu Lit Chung BAUA 4/4 100%
Andrew Liu BEm 3/4 75%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BBE 3/4 75%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SHERE 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYEHITES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HEE 3/4 75%
Tong Tsin Ka EES 4/4 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B&ER 4/4 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John B 1/4 25%
Cheng Yuk Wo el 4/4 100%

(I1) SUPPLY OF INFORMATION: QUALITY AND TIMELINESS

The Company attaches great importance to continually improve
on the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of information

to the directors.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring adequate supply of

information to the directors.

The agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent in full
to all directors in a timely manner (we aim to give relevant
documents at least five clear days replacing current practice of
at least three clear days in advance of meeting). Where

appropriate, communications are sent electronically.

(1n
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(D)

All directors are currently provided with quarterly management
reports which shows the Group’s financial and operating results
with detailed analysis of those major rental properties, property

under development and other investments.

A full Board meeting, held by each quarter, were regularly taken
for the purpose of reviewing and updating the Company’s
business and operating results with reference to the quarterly

management report.

Managing Director is currently holding monthly internal
management meeting with various department heads to update
directors on their lines of business and to review performance

for delegated assignment.

Executive Management Committee meetings were held twice a
week to discuss the daily operation and to review the Company
matters by reference to monthly management reports.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
Procedures for Remuneration Committee to set directors and

senior management’s remuneration policy:

The Company has set up Remuneration Committee on 3 March
2005. Its terms of reference are to review and determine the
remuneration packages for all directors and senior

management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four
members, including three of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman), Dr. Ma
Hung Ming, John and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (who became a
member on 19 May 2015) and a Non-executive Director, Mr.
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher. On 19 May 2015, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka
and Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur (both are Independent Non-
executive Directors) ceased as a member of the Remuneration

Committee.
The committee meets at least once per annum.
The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on or determine
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;
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(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payment, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office

or appointment;

(iii) to make recommendations to the Board on or determine

the remuneration of Non-executive Directors;

(iv) to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals

and objectives.

Details of 2015 Remuneration Committee meeting attendance

record are set out below:

My

ES

(il BEREFENRTEEERERE
BABZHEMEFE SREEDH
7 RAREBMNEEEER &
BEMRERKIEBBREREL

BR1E

(i) PEEFNTEEZFMAES
SRR

vy REEZGZARERKENSE
B M HE B IR B N

—T-HFEFMNERE SR LFRLER

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEERRY HEE

Members of Remuneration Committee FMESEZES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) BRE () 11 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 1/1 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John EEs 0/1 0%
Cheng Yuk Wo B A 1/1 100%
Cavior Liu (Secretary) BHEmz) 11 100%
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The committee is authorized by the Board to oversee and
determine the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior

Management.

No director is involved in deciding his own remuneration. On
matters other than those concerning him, the Chairman or
Managing Director may be invited to committee meetings to give

advices.

Committee members are allowed under certain procedures to
take independent professional advice at Company’s expense for

making and determining the remuneration package proposal.

The committee will present a report to the Board after each

meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

The committee will make recommendation to the Board
regarding the remuneration, comprising directors’ fees for all
Non-executive Directors, for shareholders approval at the annual

general meeting.

ZEREEFRREEERETHITE
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RERRZ BRURHE
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EERRSREERANEFELRE
METIEERREBER L B -
ZERERFIE - QEREIRGT
EE2EFRLAEERIELRE - I
AR A RRAE AR -



(E)
)

(1n

Details on the mandate and summary of the work by the
Remuneration Committee during the year are set out in the

Remuneration Committee Report on page 38.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s

website.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING: BALANCED, CLEAR AND
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF COMPANY’S
PERFORMANCE, POSITION OF PROSPECTS

The Board believes that it presents a comprehensive, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and

prospects in all shareholder communications.

The Board fully appreciates its responsibilities regarding the

preparation of financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND AUDITORS: TERMS OF
REFERENCE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT
AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee currently comprises four members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman), Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Au
Kam Yuen, Arthur and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo. On 19 May 2015,
Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John (Independent Non-executive Director)
and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher (Non-executive Director)

ceased as a member of the Audit Committee.

All members have experience in reviewing and analyzing
audited financial statements of public companies or major

organization.

The committee meets not less than twice per annum. Meetings
are also attended by invitation by the Chairman, the Managing
Director and Executive Director who is in charge of finance
matters. The committee also meets not less than twice per

annum with the Company’s auditor.
The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)  to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external

auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;
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(ii)  to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards;

(iii) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services;

(iv) to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in
them;

(v) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

(vi) to discuss the internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have
an effective internal control system;

(vii) to consider major investigation finding on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and management’s response to these findings;

(viii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

(ix) to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management
about the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response; and

(x)  to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to
the issues raised in the external auditor’s management
letter.

o Details of 2015 Audit Committee meetings attendance record

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)
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are set out below: HoT -
Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEEERE HEE

Members of Audit Committee ENEBEZE
Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman) ERR(ER)
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses HRE

Au Kam Yuen, Arthur E#R

Cheng Yuk Wo EA

Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) Rl B2

2/2 100%
2/2 100%
212 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%




° Under its terms of reference, the committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with external
auditors, to review the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements, and to evaluate the Group system of internal

controls.

° There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to

take independent professional advice at Company’s expense.

° The committee presents a report or makes advice to the Board

after each meeting, which addresses its work and findings.

o Details on the mandate and work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year are set out in the Audit Committee
Report on pages 35 and 36.

° The terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

(1) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the auditors had received
from the Company and its subsidiaries approximately HK$3.23 million
for audit and audit related services (2014: HK$3.46 million) as well as
HK$0.2 million for non-audit services (2014: HK$1.35 million).

(IV) INTERNAL CONTROL: SOUND AND EFFECTIVE SYSTEM
TO SAFEGUARD SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS AND
COMPANY ASSETS

o Risk management is a crucial part of the Group’s strategic
management to monitor the Company’s overall financial position
and to protect its assets.

o The Group is committed to implementing effective risk
management policies and internal control procedures to identify

and manage the risks that the Group may be exposed to.

° These policies and procedures are reviewed regularly by
Executive Management Committee together with the assistant
by external auditors during the course of audit to ensure their
effectiveness and compliance with Code on Corporate

Governance Practices.

o The Managing Director and Executive Directors will discuss with
external auditor in the Audit Committee meeting at least twice a
year on key issues in relation to internal controls, audit finding

and risk management.
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(F)

As concluded in 2015 Audit Committee meeting, no irregularities

and major weakness in control were found by the auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 7
March 2012, which is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board. The committee shall comprise members not less than
three and a majority of the committee was Independent Non-

executive Directors.

On the date of establishment, the Nomination Committee is
chaired by the Dr. Liu Lit Mo, Chairman of the Board.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Lit Chi, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka
(an Independent Non-executive Director) and Mr. Kho Eng
Tjoan, Christopher (a Non-executive Director). As at 2 March
2016, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo was appointed as additional member
of the committee.

The committee will meet at least once per annum.
The main duties of the committee include the followings:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience required) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
directors of the Company and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of

individuals nominated for directorships;

(iii) to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the directors and
succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Details of 2015 Nomination Committee meeting attendance

record are set out belows:

—E-hEERAZECERHF L
T

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEBBRY HEE

Members of Nomination Committee BEZEEEZS8
Liu Lit Mo (Chairman) BRI (Z7) 111 100%
Liu Lit Chi BaE 1/1 100%
Tong Tsin Ka ERR 1711 100%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SRR 111 100%
Cheng Yuk Wo EEA 1/1 100%
Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) R (E) 11 100%

e Committee members are allowed to take independent o ZES®ZEASKBUEXER EH
professional advice at Company’s expense. AARNE T -

e Details of the mandate and summary of the work by the o FAREZZES2EERTEFBFER
Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the FIVAZIRBEZEESHREEN -
Nomination Committee Report on page 37.

e  The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are o HAHERZZES BESE  AS

(@)

available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Company has set up the Corporate Governance Committee
on 7 March 2012, which is mainly responsible for performing

the corporate governance duties of the Board.

The Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Dr. Liu Lit
Mo, Chairman of the Board.

Its other current members are Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston, Mr. Liu
Kwun Shing, Christopher and Mr. Lee Wai Hung, all of them are
Executive Directors of the Company and two Independent Non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur and Dr.
Ma Hung Ming, John (both were appointed on 19 May 2015 for
replacement the position of Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and Mr.
Tong Tsin Ka).

The committee will meet at least once per annum.
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° The Corporate Governance Committee determines the policy for

the corporate governance of the Company. The duties
performed by the Corporate Governance Committee include the
followings:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the directors of the Company
and the senior management;

(ii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to the directors and the employees of the
Company;

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report as required under the Listing Rules;
and

(vi) to hold regular meetings with all department heads from
time to time requesting them to review their corporate
governance within the department and require them to
submit proposal or remedy action to redress the matters.

° Details of 2015 Corporate Governance Committee meeting

attendance record are set out below:

(i) HIFTRBEARRZEEERK
REER UMEFSRLER

(il BAMREEARAFNEERERE
BABZEINBEERER

(iii)

(iv) HIET - B RERBERRAR A
%%&EEZH%#W?

s

V) BEARRERLETEEEARST
B R ELBRE EMRAZRER
EERREIELESE &

(vi) REMAMMAEIEEHRITE

F BREEFRAEFMARNZE

%E/m WiE2EH KT
MEAM=E -

“T-hFELEER
FOERESIEAT -

ZEgERLE

Number of Attendance
meeting attended rate
HEERRHY HE=

Members of Corporate Governance Committee TEEARZERZE
Liu Lit Mo (Chairman) BAR (F5) 171 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BRI 71 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 171 100%
Liu Kam Fai, Winston BEE 1/1 100%
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher =88 111 100%
Lee Wai Hung E3EY 111 100%

o Committee members are allowed to take independent

professional advice at Company’s expense.

o The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee

are available on the Company’s website.
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(H) DELEGATION BY BOARD

()]

(n

RELATIONSHIP WITH MANAGEMENT

The Board and management (include different departmental
heads) fully appreciate their respective roles with supportive
commitments of creating a healthy corporate governance

culture.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the processes that
management (include different departmental heads) has in
place to identify business opportunities and risks.

The Board’s role is not to manage the business which
responsibility remains vested with the Executive Management
Committee and different departmental heads. The management
is accountable to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES: SPECIFIC TERMS OF REFERENCE
AND REPORT TO FULL BOARD

The Board currently has five Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and Executive

Management Committee with specific written terms of reference.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Tong Tsin Ka and all

members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheng Mo Chi,
Moses and has a majority of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the
Board and has a majority of Non-executive Directors and

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises four Executive
Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors of the

Company.

The Executive Management Committee comprises four

Executive Directors of the Company.

Each Board committees present their respective reports to the
Board after each meeting, which addresses their work and
findings.
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() SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION POLICY
() PREAMBLE
This policy sets out the Company’s standards and practice in relation

to communicating with its shareholders and prospective investors.

o The Company is committed to maintaining a policy of open and
timely disclosure of relevant information on its activities to

shareholders, subject to applicable legal requirements.

° The Company believes that providing regular communications to
its shareholders and the market is important to ensure they have
the available information reasonably required to make informed
assessments of the Company’s strategy, operations and financial

performance.
o Communication channels
Communication is made through:

— the Company’s annual and interim reports, which have
been enhanced to present a comprehensive, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group position and

prospects.

— notices of and explanatory memoranda for annual and
other general meetings, which have been enhanced to
provide shareholders with additional information in an

understandable manner.

—  press releases on major developments of the Company

and its subsidiaries.

— disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant regulatory

bodies.

—  Company’s website at http://www.Ichi.com.hk from which
shareholders can access information on the Group. The
website provides, inter alia, corporate announcements,
business development and operations, press releases,

annual reports, and corporate information of the Group.
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(1) SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (n BEX=Z

e The Board welcomes moves towards a more constructive use of e EFeBIREERERAFAD HIRHE
annual general meeting and regards the annual general meeting BEXREZESE UAKRERBRAFRZ A
as the principal opportunity to meet private shareholders. BERIEREE Y T E#E o

° Details of director’s attendance record of the annual general e BHE—_T—HAFt+-_A=+—"HBHIEFE
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meeting of the Company held for year ended 31 December ZARNTIREASES B ELeEEH5 a0 8
X
2015 are set out below: N 3
b
=3
m
Number of Attendance [2)
meeting attended rate e
HESHRE HER .
Z
>
Executive Directors HTES cZ)
m
Liu Lit Mo (Chairman) B (EE) 171 100% "
Liu Lit Chi B %
(Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer) (EELETEFITHES) 1/1 100% =
Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director) BERE (GEEEEE) /1 100% &
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, g
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) (FREASELEZERES) /1 100% e
Lee Wai Hung FRIE 1 100%  [Rad
o
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Liu Lit Chung Bz /1 100%
Andrew Liu B 0/1 0%
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BE=E 0/1 0%
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher SRR 11 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHTES
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses #EeE 0/1 0%
Tong Tsin Ka ERX 1711 100%
Au Kam Yuen, Arthur BB 111 100%
Ma Hung Ming, John BB 0/1 0%
Cheng Yuk Wo ENEA 1/1 100%

e  The Company arranges for the annual report and financial e AFERREETHRERER  ARRLHE

statements and related papers to be posted for shareholders so MR EAFRERIE D21 ARKRR

as to allow at least 21 days for consideration prior to the annual S UBmERRAEXMY - Mt A

general meeting. And all other general meetings to be sent at HEMEEREARems @ AIAERNSEITA

least 14 days. 14 B EXBEA o 67
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The Board encourages and supports shareholder participation
in general meetings. Shareholders are encouraged to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if

they are unable to attend such meetings.

Mechanisms for enabling shareholder participation will be
reviewed on a regular basis by the Board to encourage the

highest level of participation.

Chairman of the Board, appropriate members of the Board
committees and the external auditor of the Company will attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions from the

shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Inquiries from shareholders, investors, media or the public are
responded by the Executive Directors, Director of Finance,
Company Secretary or the appropriate members of senior

management.

The Company will respond in a timely manner to shareholder

queries and concerns.

THE ADMINISTRATION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
All ordinary shares of the Company have equal voting rights.
Annual general meeting proceedings are continually reviewed in
the light of Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors.

Preparation of a comprehensive annual general meeting circular

containing:

° re-election of directors;

° general mandate to buy-back shares;

° general mandate to issue shares;

o amendments to the Articles of Association, if any;
° voting at annual general meeting; and

o comprehensive information on each resolution to be

proposed.
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The Company’s Articles contain the rights of shareholders to demand
and the procedures for a poll voting on resolution at shareholders’
meetings. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars in relation to shareholders’
meetings and will be explained during the proceedings of
shareholders’ meetings. In case poll voting is conducted, the poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on the business day following the shareholders’ meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.Ichi.com.hk where the Company’s
announcements, business development and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information

are posted.

Information on top 10 largest shareholders and location of
shareholders are set out in Directors’ Report on pages 29 and 30

respectively.

(V) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING (“GM")

o Shareholders holding not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders having a right to vote may request to call a
GM of the Company.

o The written request: (a) must state the general nature of the
GM; (b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM; (c) must be
signed by the shareholders making such request, and (d) may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more of those shareholders. A request by joint holders of shares
must be signed by all such holders.

° The request should be deposited at the registered office of the

Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.

° The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the Company
Secretary will convene a GM on behalf of the Board by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
or applicable rules or regulations to all the registered

shareholders.
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If the request is verified to be not in order, shareholders
concerned will be advised of the result and no GM will be

convened.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the request proceed to convene a GM, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may themselves
convene a GM, but any GM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of

the request.

In the case of a GM at which a resolution is to be proposed as a
special resolution, the directors shall be deemed not to have
duly convened the GM if they do not give such notice as is
required by section 578 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622,
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company must give notice of a
resolution if it has received requests from the following number
of shareholders:

(i)  Shareholders holding at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote on the
resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
request relates; or

(i) not less than 50 shareholders who have the right to vote

on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which

the request relates.

The written request: (a) must be signed by all the shareholders
concerned; (b) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
at the registered office of the Company; (c) must identify the
(d) must be

authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (e) must

resolution of which notice is to be given;

be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or if later,

the time at which notice is given of that meeting.
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o The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar
and upon its confirmation that the request is valid, the Company
will give notice of the resolution or circulate the statement
provided that:

(a) if the request relates to an annual general meeting,

(i)  the proposed statement is received in time to enable
the Company to send a copy of the statement when
the notice of annual general meeting is despatched;

or

(i)  otherwise, the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than

7 days before the annual general meeting.

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an annual
general meeting), the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in regard thereto not later than 7
days before the GM.

o If the request is verified to be not in order or the shareholders
concerned have failed in the above manner to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes,
the shareholders concerned will be advised of the result and no

action will be taken by the Company in that regard.

° Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under section 615 of the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expenses to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after,

it gives notice of the meeting.

The above procedures are subject to applicable legislation and
regulations, in particular, the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws
of Hong Kong). For further details on the shareholder qualifications,
and the procedures and timeline, shareholders are kindly requested
to refer to Sections 566 to 567, 571, 578, 580 to 582, 610 and 615
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622, Laws of Hong Kong).
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(VIl) PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Subject to applicable laws, rules and regulations, including

Companies Ordinance (Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and the

articles of association of the Company as amended from time to time,

if any shareholder(s) of the Company intends to propose a person

other than a director of the Company for election as a director of the

Company at any GM, the following procedures shall apply:

o a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
with the Board at the registered office of the Company;

o the minimum length of the period during which such notice(s)
are given shall be at least 7 days and that the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the GM appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of
such GM; and

° in order for the Company to inform shareholders of the Company
of that proposal, such notice(s) for the nomination of a director
must state the full name of the person nominated for election as
a director and include the person’s biographical details as

required by the Listing Rules.
(J) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were changes to the Company’s Articles of Association during
the year. In the annual general meeting held on 29 April 2015, the
shareholders of the Company approved the amendments to the
Articles of Association of the Company. The changes were carried out
in compliance with the latest Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) which came into effect on 3 March 2014. Details of the
amendments are set out in the circular dated 26 March 2015 and it

was sent to the shareholders together with 2014 Annual Report.
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Corporate Information Ar]& #

As at 2 March 2016 R=Z—x<E=A=H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Mo, LLD, MBE, J.P.
(Chairman)
Mr. Liu Lit Chi
(Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston
(Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher
(also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Lit Chung, MBBS (Lon), MRCP(UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)
Mr. Andrew Liu
Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher
BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC,

Assoc. AlA, Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John, php, BBS, J.P.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, Msc(Econ), BA(Hons), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA (Practising)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lee Wai Hung
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Corporate Information A &%& &

As at 2 March 2016 R=Z—~4=H=H

AUDIT COMMITTEE BZESE

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka (Chairman) BRXREE(FE)
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BRZET

Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur B8R E

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BIERAN 7T &

Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) BIESE (E)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REESE

Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman) BRREL (£E)
Mr. Liu Lit Chi BB %A

Mr. Tong Tsin Ka BERRTE

Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TR R

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (appointed on 2 March 2016) BT E(RZE—"F=AZHEE)
Mr. Lee Wai Hung (Secretary) TEERE (BE)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMESE

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (Chairman) ECRASE ()
Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher TR R A

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John BesE LT

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo ERERAN ST &

Ms. Cavior Liu (Secretary) BHErL: (WE)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TEXEELRESE
Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman) BRIRE T (£/E)
Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur &8RRI E

Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John BIRRIE T

Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeEkt

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher BRI S A

Mr. Lee Wai Hung TEERAE
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE BWITEEZST
Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Chairman) BRRSE ()
Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston BeEitE

Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher BRI S A

Mr. Lee Wai Hung TEERE



SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DEPARTMENT HEADS

Ms. Eva Liu

Mr. Luk Chi Chung

Ms. Cavior Liu

Ms. Yan Yuet Lam, Charmaine

Mr. Cheung Ka Kwun, Vincent

Mr. Pan Sze Yuen, Cecil

Mr. Lau Ping Leung, Stephen

Mr. Jan Kwok Wai, Kim

MANAGERS

Mr. Tam King Hung

Mr. Tong Tse Hon

Ms. Tsia Fung Yee, Tina

Ms. Wong Yuk Man

Mr. Wong Wing Hung, Carlos

Ms. Kwan Chung Yan

Mr. Kwan Chi Wo, Kelvin

Director of projects and maintenance
Director of finance

Director of human resources

and administration
Director of business development
General manager
Assistant Director of projects
Assistant Director of maintenance

Assistant Director of projects

Senior project manager

Property manager (leasing)
Accounting manager

Accounting manager

Head of sales and marketing (hotel)
Real estate manager

Property manager

(property management)
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Corporate Information 2 Al

As at 2 March 2016 R=Z—~4=H=H

SOLICITORS

Deacons
Gallant Y.T. Ho & Co.
P.C. Woo & Co.

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Credit Suisse AG Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited
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REGISTERED OFFICE
25th Floor Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2983 7777 Fax: (852) 2983 7725

GUANGZHOU OFFICE
18A Office Tower A

339 Huan Shi Dong Road
Yue Xiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (8620) 8375 8993 Fax: (8620) 8375 8071

SHANGHAI OFFICE
Room 3105, Chong Hing Finance Center

288 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (8621) 6359 1000 Fax: (8621) 6327 6299

FOSHAN OFFICE
First Phase, The Grand Riviera

1 Guilong Road

Luocun Social Management Office, Shishan Town
Nanhai District, Foshan

Guangdong Province, PRC

Tel: (86757) 6386 0888 Fax: (86757) 6386 2218
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT MO
LLD, MBE, J.P.

aged 78, is the Chairman of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited. Dr.
Liu resigned as the Managing Director of the Company on 26
February 2014 after serving the Managing Director since 1972. He
has also served the Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee, and as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Liu is an Independent Non-executive
Director of China Motor Bus Company Limited, which is a public
company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His other
directorship in public listed companies in the last three years include
Chong Hing Bank Limited, which is also a public listed company in
Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Liu did not hold any
directorship in any other listed public company in the previous three
years. As for community service, Dr. Liu was the Chairman of Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals in 1967 and had been serving as an Adviser
of the Group for a number of years. He had also been President of the
Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce, Chairman of Hong
Kong Football Association and District Governor of District 3450,
Rotary International. Presently, he is a member of the Board of
Trustees of United College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. He was awarded Silver
Jubilee Medal by Her Majesty the Queen in 1977. Dr. Liu was
conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by Lingnan
University in 2005. Dr. Liu is the brother of Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu
Lit Chung, the father of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and an uncle of Mr.
Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU LIT CHI

aged 76, is Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since 26 February 2014. Mr. Liu has been an Executive
Director of Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited since 1972. Mr. Liu
also serves as the Chairman of Executive Management Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee as well as a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu, who was educated
in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom, is also a director of a number
of other companies in Hong Kong and elsewhere. His other
directorship in public listed companies in the last three years include
Chong Hing Bank Limited, which is a public listed company in Hong
Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship
in any other listed public company in the previous three years. Mr. Liu
is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, an uncle of Mr.
Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston
and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LIU KAM FAI, WINSTON

BA., MSc.

aged 49, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company since
1997. He was re-designated as the Deputy Managing Director of the
Company in August 2008. Mr. Liu holds a Master degree in
Economics from the University of London, specializing in Finance and
Macro Economic Policy. Mr. Liu oversees the Company’s strategic
development, project implementation and business operations. Mr.
Liu also served as a member of Corporate Governance Committee and
Executive Management Committee as well as a director of number of
subsidiaries of the Company. His other directorship in public listed
companies in the last three years include Freeman Financial
Corporation Limited, which is a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not
hold any directorship in any other listed public company in the last
three years. Mr. Liu is the son of Dr. Liu Lit Mo, a nephew of Mr. Liu
Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu
Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. LIU KWUN SHING, CHRISTOPHER

aged 40, is an Executive Director of the Company, a position which he
has held since August 2008 following a re-designation from his
previous role since 2000 as Non-executive Director of the Company
and alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung (who is a Non-executive
Director of the Company). Mr. Liu also serves as a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee and Executive Management
Committee as well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Liu is a holder of a Master of Arts degree in
Jurisprudence from the University of Oxford. He is also a qualified
solicitor in both Hong Kong and England & Wales. Prior to joining the
Company on a full-time basis, he was a partner of Deacons in Hong
Kong, with a primary focus in corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions and private equity matters, and currently remains an
advisory legal counsel of the international law firm. Mr. Liu is a
member of the Foshan Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC) as well as a director of both
Beijing Chinese Overseas Friendship Association and Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association (COFA). Mr. Liu is also a
director of the Federation of Hong Kong Foshan Association Limited,
Hong Kong GuangFoZhao Fraternity Association Limited, the
Federation of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Community Organization, Hong
Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce, an executive director of
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors, a Vice-chairman of Foshan
Investment Chamber of Private Enterprises, a board member of
Entrepreneurs’ Organisation (Hong Kong), a member of Hong Kong-
Shanghai Economic Development Association Limited and a director
of Shanghai Huang Pu District Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment. With a passion for the betterment of society and
education, he is also a member of the Institutional Review Board of
Hong Kong University/Hospital Authority Hong Kong West Cluster and
the Joint Chinese University of Hong Kong — New Territories East
Cluster Clinical Research Ethics Committee as well as a school
manager of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. His other directorship in
public listed companies in the last three years include Chong Hing
Bank Limited, which is a public listed company in Hong Kong. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other
listed public company in the previous three years. He is the son of Dr.
Liu Lit Chung, a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu Lit Chi, a cousin
of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu Kam Fai,

Winston.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. LEE WAI HUNG

LLB, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ATIHK, MBA, PgD in CRE

aged 53, is an Executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Lee is also serving as a member of Corporate
Governance Committee and Executive Management Committee as
well as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee
holds a Bachelor of Law degree, a Master of Business Administration
degree and Postgraduate Diploma in Construction and Real Estate.
He is also a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising) and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the Company, Mr. Lee
had worked in an international accounting firm for over six years. Mr.
Lee has over twenty five years of experience in corporate finance and
accounting. Mr. Lee joined the Company in 1992 and was appointed
as director in 1994. Mr. Lee is primarily responsible for the Company’s

finance and secretarial matters.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. LIU LIT CHUNG

MBBS (Lon), MRCP (UK), F.R.C.P. (Lon)

aged 66, became a director in 1979 and also the Deputy Managing
Director of the Company for over ten years. He holds a Medical
degree from King’s College Hospital, London University and is a
Member of the Royal College of Physicians of the United Kingdom.
He was awarded the Fellowship of Royal College of Physician of
London for his work in Motor Neuron Disease. In 2005, he was further
awarded the Honorary Fellowship by the Hong Kong College of
Physicians. Dr. Liu is the brother of Dr. Liu Lit Mo and Mr. Liu Lit Chi,
an uncle of Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred and Mr. Liu
Kam Fai, Winston and the father of Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MR. ANDREW LIU

aged 60, has been a director since 1979. Mr. Liu is the Chairman of
Unitas Capital Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as CCMP Capital Asia Pte.
Ltd.). Mr. Liu, holder of a Master of Arts degree from the Oxford
University in England, was a solicitor with Slaughter and May in
London before joining Morgan Stanley & Co Inc in New York in 1981.
Mr. Liu was promoted to Managing Director in 1990 before relocating
to Morgan Stanley Asia Limited in Hong Kong, where he assumed the
position of President and Managing Director until his resignation in
September 1997. Mr. Liu remains associated with Morgan Stanley as
an Advisory Director. His other directorship in public listed companies
in the last three years include Freeman Financial Corporation Limited,
which is a public listed company in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed public
company in the last three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Dr. Liu Lit Mo,
Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Liu Chun Ning,
Wilfred, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing,
Christopher.

MR. LIU CHUN NING, WILFRED

BSc.

aged 54, has been appointed as director of the Company since 1997.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in economics from University of
Newcastleupon-Tyne (UK). Mr. Liu is also an independent non-
executive director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited, which is a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His
other directorship in public listed companies in the last three years
include Chong Hing Bank Limited and Get Nice Holdings Limited,
both are public listed companies in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Liu did not hold any directorship in any other listed public
company in the previous three years. Mr. Liu is a nephew of Dr. Liu
Lit Mo, Mr. Liu Lit Chi and Dr. Liu Lit Chung, a cousin of Mr. Andrew
Liu, Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston and Mr. Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
MR. KHO ENG TJOAN, CHRISTOPHER

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,
Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

aged 53, served as Non-executive Director of the Company since May
2011 and he is now serving as a member of Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Kho holds a
Bachelor of Environmental Studies degree on Urban and Regional
Planning and a Master of Architecture degree. He is an Authorized
Person under the Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect under
the Architects Registration Ordinance, a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Architects, a corporate member of Royal Institute of British
Architects, an associate member of Royal Australian Institute of
Architects, a member of Royal Architectural Institute of Canada and
an associate member of American Institute of Architects. Mr. Kho was
an Executive Committee of the University of Waterloo Alumni
Association and a Committee Member of the University of Manitoba
Alumni Association from 1989 to 1990. During the year from 1997 to
2003, he was a Director and Council Member of the Wah Yan (Hong
Kong) Past Students Association Limited. Mr. Kho is also a Committee
Member of the Professional Committee of the Hong Kong Federation
of Fujian Associations since 2009. Furthermore, Mr. Kho is appointed
as a Supervisor of Fukien Chamber of Commerce and Director of
Fukien Chamber of Commerce Education Fund Limited since 2015.

EBITEE(F)
PR AL

BES, M. Arch, HKIA, RIBA, ARAIA, MRAIC, Assoc. AlA,
Registered Architect, A.P. (Architect), MHKIoD

F+=m BT ——FRABEAAAR
AIEMTEZRMIRETARRAFTMES
ERIREEEGLRE - HAEEHEBUTARE
RETERBRERBATEN - BREEY
GBI T 2 SR AT A (FEERAD ) K 22 22 A = il ik
DIz LR - BEEEEMBEEE -
B 2 RE LR 2 ival K LERD
g mz EMBEGEME
g8 .ﬁf‘ﬁib* VIWAVIR:S
NEFHAREMERNEHERNER
TZERMEXARHERERRE
TR—AWNEtFE_TT=FHHY
FEBECELCEEREE - FEEH
TETNFREEATARETERSEE
ATZEGZE - )N FEEB-T—H
FEZERKERERNSESNIKBRER
EHEESARDAEERES -

\

+_\_\
T =

>E

1B

2
1

’

s
22

oo
=H

e
=
=

|
@ o W

Xt HY
‘u]]u 8

Z8
aw

(w)
o
)
)
o
=
=
m
>
2
(w)
(72]
I
>
)
m
I
o
r
|w)
m
P
%
=
il
o
X
s
=
o
P
5
al
&=
f==:]
paE]
2
W

evagscwme R

e

B



®©
N

GT0Z 1¥Od3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES

GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.

aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in August 1999 and he has served as the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Dr. Cheng is a practising solicitor and the Consultant
of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong. He is the Founder Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and
Chairman Emeritus. He was also the President of International
Alliance of Practising Lawyers. Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships
in China Mobile Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited (Formerly known as China Resources Enterprise, Limited), K.
Wah International Holdings Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited,
Tian An China Investments Company Limited, Towngas China
Company Limited and Kader Holdings Company Limited, all being
public listed companies in Hong Kong. Dr. Cheng is also an
independent non-executive director of ARA Asset Management
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore Exchange
Limited. His other directorship in public listed companies in the last
three years includes Hong Kong Television Network Limited, which is
a public listed company in Hong Kong. Save as disclosed above, Dr.
Cheng did not hold any directorship, whether in Hong Kong or

overseas, in any other public listed companies in the previous 3 years.

MR. TONG TSIN KA
FCA (AUST.), FCPA, FCIS

aged 77, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company in September 2004 and he has served as the Chairman
of Audit Committee and a member of Nomination Committees of the
Company. Mr. Tong is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants respectively. In 1968, Mr. Tong commenced his own
public accountancy practice and in 1970 founded his own
accountancy firm, T. K. Tong & Co. (Chartered Accountants (AUST.).

Certified Public Accountants), and has remained its principal to date.

BIAFBITESE
MEEEL

GBS, OBE, LLB (HK), J.P.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

MR. AU KAM YUEN, ARTHUR

aged 76, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 3 December 2012 and he also serves as a member
of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company. Mr. Au studied Law in Sydney and London respectively. He
was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1975 and in Hong Kong in
1976. He is a sole proprietor of Arthur Au & Co., a firm of solicitors
established since 1979. Mr. Au is a Notary Public and was a member
of the Notary Public Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He is also a School
Management Committee Member of the Clementi Secondary School.
He now serves as legal adviser to the Association of Hong Kong
Nursing Staff (previously named as the Association of Government
Nursing Staff) and The New Territories North District Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Au is an active Rotarian, he
was a District Governor of Rotary International District 3450 (Hong
Kong/Macao/Mongolia) in 1990-1991.

DR. MA HUNG MING, JOHN
PhD, BBS, J.P.

aged 49, was appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 3 December 2012 and he has also served as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Dr. Ma currently is the managing director
of Carrianna Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of Carrianna Group
Holdings Company Limited, is responsible for property development
operations. He has extensive experience in the catering industry, as
well as property management and development. He was awarded the
Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of
Philosophy by Morrison University in 2004. As for the community
service, Dr. Ma was the Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for
the year 2002. He is a member of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
Advisory Board, the Standing Committee of Shenzhen Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and the President
of Youth Council. He also serves as the Vice Chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations and the Vice
President of Kowloon Federation of Associations. On 1 July 2015, Dr.
Ma was appointed to Justices of the Peace by The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. In addition to his
directorship in the Company, Dr. Ma is an executive director of
Carrianna Group Holdings Company Limited. This is a public
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Save
as disclosed above, Dr. Ma did not hold any directorship in any other
public listed company in the last three years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)
MR. CHENG YUK WO

Msc (Econ), BA(Hons), CA, FCA, FCPA, CPA(Practising)

aged b5, was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 March 2014 and he has also served as member of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from London School
of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng
has over 20 years’ of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate
advisory services. Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-
executive director of Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, Chong
Hing Bank Limited, C.P. Lotus Corporation, CS| Properties Limited,
HKC (Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Top Spring International Holdings Limited and
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (Formerly
known as UDL Holdings Limited), the abovementioned companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. His
other directorship in public companies in the last three years include
Imagi International Holdings Limited, Huanxi Media Group Limited
(Formerly known as 21 Holdings Limited) and South China Assets
Holdings Limited (Formerly known as South China Land Limited),
those are public companies listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any
directorship in any other public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last

three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MS. EVA LIU

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Kingston), MA (City), ARB (UK), RIBA

aged 52, Director of Projects & Maintenance. Ms. Liu is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degrees, in Architecture from
the University of Cambridge, and Property Valuation And Law from
The City University in London. She was in architectural practice in
England before joining the Company in 1999. She is the daughter of
Dr. Liu Lit Mo and the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MR. LUK CHI CHUNG

FCCA, CPA (Practising), MAEB

aged 48, Director of Finance. Mr. Luk is a professional accountant,
holding Master of Arts Degree in Electronic Business and has over
twenty five years of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Luk
joined the Company in 1995 and is in charge of Finance Management

Department and Information Technology Department.

MS. CAVIOR LIU

aged 51, Director of Human Resources & Administration. Ms. Liu
holds a Bachelor degree in Psychology from University of British
Columbia. She joined the Company in 2000, in charge of Human
Resources & Administration Department. Ms. Liu is a school manager
of Liu Po Shan Memorial College. She is the daughter of Dr. Liu Lit Mo
and the sister of Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston.

MS. YAN YUET LAM, CHARMAINE

aged 41, Director of Business Development. Ms. Yan was educated in
Vancouver, Canada. Before joining the Company, Ms. Yan had
worked with various mainland companies at senior management post
for leading and handling numerous successful real estate projects
including the Shanghai Forest Manor, one of the top residential villa
projects in Shanghai. In addition, Ms. Yan has extensive experience in
business club operations both in Beijing and Shanghai. Ms. Yan is
currently in charge of the Company’s budget hotel business and

education projects in China.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
MR. CHEUNG KA KWUN, VINCENT

BSc (Hons), MSc, HKIS, RICS

aged 44, General Manager. Mr Cheung holds a Bachelor Degree in
Real Estate, a Master Degree in Facility Management and he is a
qualified General Practice Surveyor in Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors and Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. He has over
twenty years of professional experience in China and Hong Kong
projects specializing in property asset appraisal, property
development, leasing and management. Mr Cheung joined the
Company since 2015.

MR. PAN SZE YUEN, CECIL

MA (Cantab), DipArch (Cantab), RIBA

aged 52, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Pan is a Chartered
Architect (UK), holding Master of Arts Degree in Architecture from the
University of Cambridge, and has over twenty years of experience as a
practicing architect in both UK and Hong Kong. Mr. Pan joined the
Company in 2006.

MR. LAU PING LEUNG, STEPHEN

FHKIS, FRICS, MHKIE, MHKICM, P.FM, RPE, RPS

aged 63, Assistant Director of Maintenance. Mr. Lau is a professional
surveyor and professional engineer and has over thirty years of
experience in property development, building construction and

quantity surveying. Mr. Lau joined the Company in 2009.

MR. JAN KWOK WAI, KIM

BEng (Civil), CEng, MICE

aged 47, Assistant Director of Projects. Mr. Jan joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Jan is a professional engineer with over twenty years of
construction and project management experience representing
Clients, Consultants and Contractors on both private-sector and

government funded projects in China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting &R B F iRy

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Liu
Chong Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) for the year 2016
(“2016 AGM”) will be held at 27th Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre,
24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 27 April

2016 at 11: 00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and adopt the audited Financial Statements together
with Reports of the Directors and Auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

To approve the payment of the final cash dividend of HK$0.26
per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 (“2015 Final
Dividend”).

To re-elect (a) Dr. Liu Lit Chung, (b) Mr. Andrew Liu, (c) Mr. Au
Kam Yuen, Arthur and (d) Dr. Ma Hung Ming, John as directors
of the Company and to fix the directors’ remuneration for the
year ending 31 December 2016.

To re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix their

remuneration.

As special business to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without

modifications the following ordinary resolutions:

B

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

“THAT:

(@) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
Buy-back shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) or on any other
stock exchange on which the shares of the Company may
be listed and which is recognized by the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong and the Stock
Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws and the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
or of any other stock exchange (as amended from time to
time), be and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting RERBEFREEE

6.

(b)

(c)

the aggregate number of shares of the Company which the
Company is authorized to buy back pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate number of issued shares of the Company as
at the date of passing of this resolution, and the said

approval shall be limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of

the Company;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required
by the articles of association of the Company or the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) to be held; or

(i) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting.”

“THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes and
any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby

generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorize the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including bonds, warrants, debentures, notes
and any securities which carry rights to subscribe for or
are convertible into shares of the Company) which would
or might require the exercise of such power after the end
of the Relevant Period;
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(c)

(d)

the aggregate number of shares allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the exercise of
any rights of subscription or conversion under any
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and any securities of
the Company which carry rights to subscribe for or are
convertible into shares of the Company; (iii) an issue of
shares of the Company upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to any options granted under
any share option scheme adopted by the Company; (iv) an
issue of shares as scrip dividends or similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or
part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association from time to time; or (v) specific
authority granted by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
number of issued shares of the Company at the date of
passing of this resolution, and the said approval shall be

limited accordingly; and
for the purpose of this resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of

the Company; or

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is required
by the articles of association of the Company or the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) to be held; or

(d)
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(i) the date on which the authority set out in this
resolution is revoked, renewed or varied by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the

Company in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period
fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares
or any class of shares of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares as at that date (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognized regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any

territory applicable to the Company).”

“THAT conditional upon Ordinary Resolutions Nos. 5 and 6 set
out in the notice convening this meeting being passed, the
general mandate granted to the directors of the Company to
exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No. 6 set out
in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby extended
by the addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate
number of shares of the Company bought back by the Company
under the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution No.
5 set out in the notice convening this meeting, provided that
such extended amount of shares so bought back shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate number of issued shares of the

Company at the date of passing of this resolution.”

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Liu Lit Mo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2016
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Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM is entitled to
appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A member who is
the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to attend on the
same occasion. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with
the Company’s Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Record dates of entitlements of the Members:

(a) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2016 AGM to be held on Wednesday, 27 April 2016, whose name
should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders book on Tuesday, 26 April
2016. The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
25 April 2016 and Tuesday, 26 April 2016, both days inclusive. In order to
qualify for attending and voting at the 2016 AGM, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged with the
Company’s Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4: 30 p.m. on Friday, 22 April
2016.

(b) For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for the 2015 Final
Dividend, whose name should be recorded in the Company’s shareholders
book on Friday, 6 May 2016. The Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 4 May 2016 to Friday, 6 May 2016, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all share certificates with
completed transfer forms either overleaf or separately must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 3 May 2016.

As at the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises Executive
Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Mo (Chairman), Mr. Liu Lit Chi (Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer), Mr. Liu Kam Fai, Winston (Deputy Managing Director), Mr. Liu Kwun
Shing, Christopher (also alternate director to Dr. Liu Lit Chung) and Mr. Lee Wai Hung;
Non-executive Directors: Dr. Liu Lit Chung, Mr. Andrew Liu, Mr. Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred
and Mr. Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher; and Independent Non-executive Directors: Dr.
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses, Mr. Tong Tsin Ka, Mr. Au Kam Yuen, Arthur, Dr. Ma Hung
Ming, John and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.
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Market Price Movement and Market Capitalization Chart
mEEZNTEER

Closing Price per Share &MU E

Last Trading Date Closing Price per Share Marketing Capitalization
of Each Month SRIEHE HiE March 2014 to December 2015
BRARKXSH (HKS 7% ) (HK$ in million B EET) —T-ME=AE-T-RHE+=A
HK$ &4
30/01/2014 15.280 5,785
18
28/02/2014 15.920 6,027
16
31/03/2014 16.000 6,057
30/04/2014 14.860 5,626 14
30/05/2014 9.750 3,691 12
30/06/2014 9.180 3,475 o
31/07/2014 10.200 3,862
8
29/08/2014 10.200 3,862
6
30/09/2014 9.630 3,646
SBEEHE EEEE
31/10/2014 9.810 3,714 T EE N EEE
Sl B Bl oo o lo
28/11/2014 9.830 3,721 2 = =1 =l IS = =1 =l RS
N N NN NN NN
o O [eX) N o O (o)) N
2=l e = O N NoOIN =
31/12/2014 9.800 3,710 . HEEEB EEEE
30/01/2015 9.590 3,631
27/02/2015 9.660 3,657

Market Capitalization H{&

31/03/2015 9.710 3676 March 2014 to December 2015
: : - WE=AZ-F-A5+=A

HK$ in Million A% EET

30/04/2015 10.300 3,899
7,000
29/05/2015 10.240 3,877
30/06/2015 10.160 3,846 6,000 -
31/07/2015 9.700 3,672
5,000
31/08/2015 9.100 3,445
30/09/2015 8.190 3,101 653
o A
30/10/2015 9.170 3,472 -
3,000
30/11/2015 9.360 3,544
31/12/2015 9.300 3,521 P50 B R
N Y =)
O 0N
o o o
1,000 = B B
oo lo
/N iy N
note:  Closing price (HK$) are extracted from the web site of The Stock Exchange of Hong 8 8 S
Kong Limited.(Stock code: 00194) G = =

Mk BTUmENHETEHEXZMARDREM - (R{MHHA : 00194)



Liu Chong Hing Group Simplified Corporate Structure Chart
Be|HEB LR EE

As at 31 December 2015
R-Z—HF+=-A=+—H

20.81% 34.95% 44.24%

*LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED

*BRIETEERAT

Property Property Property Trading & Hotel
Investment Development Management Manufacturing Business

MERE VISR R MHEEE EENESES BB SRS

Chong Hing
Bank Centre
A EERAT O

Western Harbour
Centre

B

Liu Chong Hing
Property
Management &
Agency Limited

ERIEY TR
RREARAF

Maanshan Gaoke
Magnetic Material
Company Limited
B8 L BN
MEERAR

Hanting Express-
Shanghai,
Shang Nan
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100% 100% 100% 51.54% 100%
The Grand Riviera/ Guangzhou Wealth :
] Grand Jardin, Good Property el R pIGEES
Chong Hing Management Beijing,
Square Company Limited Da Guan Yuen
RIEES A ERERIE
by ERRBEE
= NG
100% 90% 100% 100%
Hanting Express-
Chong Yip Centre Voo X Eu
ESGE ERERE
BMNBSERE
100% 100%
Fairview Court
EEH
95
100% "
m
B
[
Chong Hing #
Finance Center, af
Shanghai 2
EsRIEE RO o
100% I
A
I
B
*Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. ;
*HRBEBBMERZHAER AR Eh F
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Schedule of Major Properties Held by the Group

AEBEZ2YER

As at 31 December 2015 R=E-FF+=-A=1+—-A

Description

it

Interest in
the property
attributable
to the Group
AEEEGZ
MERER

Approximate
site area
(sq. ft.)

B ERER
(FAR)

Total gross
floor area

(sq. ft.)
BEEREER
(EAR)

Existing use

BRAR

Investment properties
Hong Kong:
&5

1. Chong Yip Centre
402-404 Des Voeux Road West
e
BEET 402-404 3%

2. Fairview Court
94 Repulse Bay Road
22K

BB 95,

3. Chong Hing Bank Centre
24 Des Voeux Road Central
Bl BSRAT A
BEER U5

100%

100%

100%

32,400

30,000

7,100

54,000

26,000

110,000

C/P

R/P

190,000

Kowloon and New Territories:

NEERHR :

4. Chong Hing Square
601 Nathan Road, Mongkok
=
HEARIE60L

5. Bonsun Industrial Building
364-366 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
B&I%AE
87D 1 364-366 3%

6. Chatham Gate
388 Chatham Road North
Hung Hom
S
AR
REB 38855

100%

100%

10%

12,300

18,000

40,700

182,000

8,200

305,000
61,000

/P

556,200




As at 31 December 2015 R=FE-FF+=-A=1+—-A

Interest in
the property Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existing use
AEEEGZ B ERER BEEREER
#at MERER (FAR) (FAR) RRA%
Investment properties
Peaple’s Republic of China:
HE
7. Chong Hing Finance Center 100% 55,000 103,000 ©
No. 288 Nanjing Road West 413,000 0
Huang Pu District 180,000
Shanghai
RIEERAH L
L
PR 2885
696,000
1,442,200
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Schedule of Major Properties Held by the Group

AEBEZ2YER

As at 31 December 2015 R=E-FF+=-A=1+—-A

Interest in
the property  Approximate Total gross
attributable site area floor area
Description to the Group (sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Existinguse  Status
AEEERz BONEER 2 AEEREEE
Bt MERS (FAR) (FER) RRAR IREE
Properties under development/Properties under development for sale
BREINE HERRTYE
Hong Kong:
&
8. Western Harbour Centre 100% 10,800 162,000 H  Construction in progress
181-183 Connaught Road West EITETH
BB
THB7 181-183 5%
9. Various Lots in D.D. 29 100% 262,000 n/a n/a  Planning
Ting Kok Road, Tai Po TNEA TER  FEw
KT A%
DR
People’s Republic of China:
] -
10.  The Grand Riviera/Grand Jardin 90% 2,755,000 5,840,000 R First and second phase:
West of Luocun 350,000 © Completed
Luocun Social Management Office 2,097,000 P H-REZH ERK
Shishan Town 63,000 S
Nanhai District 85,000 T Third phase:
Foshan Construction in progress
ZHENEER EERE = mIETP
Bl
MmEE Fourth phase:
BLEENHEEER Planning stage
PWRBLR SEIE « Sl
8,435,000
8,597,000

C=Commercial % H=Hotel BJ&

I=Industrial ¥ P=Car Park E{u
S=Clubhouse and recreational facilities & 7R BE4t:5 i

R=Residential £% 0=0ffice BF1&
T= Others (including kindergarten, property management office, etc.)
St (BREYHE  WEEERES)



Shareholders’ Information & ZE &k}

o
o
X
FINANCIAL CALENDAR As at 2 March 2016 3
MBS -—T-—xF=A="H =
m
RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT >
EEAM S
(%2
Interim Results : Announced on 5 August 2015 %
for six-month ended 30 June 2015 m
HEZZT—AF~A=1HIE BERZZE—RFNHAABAMH =]
NIEA 2 R ER AR m
Annual Results 2 Announced on 2 March 2016 S
for year ended 31 December 2015 5
BE_ZT—hFT-HA=+—HI ERZZE—R"F=AZHAMH 2
FEZEFER =
o
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING =
= 5>
BEXS »
Annual General Meeting 2 To be held on 27 April 2016 E
N \ = oA
BREFAE MR =T —RNFMAZ+EHRT o
Latest time to lodge transfer forms 2 4:30 pm on 22 April 2016 g
BB P XM &g AR R AFHAZTZATFER=T5
Closure of Register of Members 2 From 25 April 2016 to 26 April 2016
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements (both days inclusive)

to attend and vote at the 2016 Annual
General Meeting)

TiEmERNBEELFE —E-ARFONA+RAE_ZT—FERA=-+/<H
(EEARLEFE-_ZE—~F (BEEMABIEEN)
REBAFAE RIER
CASH DIVIDENDS
Raks
Interim cash dividend 2 HK$0.16 per share
FHIIR SR E BB 0.16 7T
Paid on 2 23 September 2015
X fTHE —E-RAFAAZ+=H
Proposed final cash dividend g HK$0.26 per Share
BRARHIR IR E BB 0.26 7T
Payable on 2 12 May 2016
XA HEER —E—R"FRATZ=H
Ex-dividend date of final dividend 2 29 April 2016 99
KBRS —E—XEMA=+AA .
A
Latest time to lodge transfer forms : 4:30 pm on 3 May 2016 v
R R P X1 BAR - RNFRAZHTNFEE=1TS :
Closure of Register of Members : From 4 May 2016 to 6 May 2016 .
(for purpose of ascertaining entitlements (both days inclusive) -
to receive the final dividend) .
EieRERDBPELFE —E-ARFRANBE_ZT—RFHANRH N
(A REWEAR R E) (EEMABIEEA) a

4 x|
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Shareholders’ Information

Share Registrars and transfer office

Mth B RE R

Share listing
IR = Hhh

Stock Code

AR R 5%

Board lot

BEEE

No. of issued ordinary share
BEITEBRRNER
Company’s e-mail address
A EE A

Investors and Shareholders contact

REE MRS

H

REF

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BERREFELBRAR
BEAEBHFERKNBR1835

AL TEE—tE——FE—t— R

The Company’s shares are listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
RRAFRENEBHARSHMBER LA
HEEE

00194

00194

2,000 shares
2,000 %

378,583,440 shares
378,583,440 iz

info@Ichi.com.hk
info@Ichi.com.hk

Attention: Mr. Lee Wai Hung / Ms. Nelly Ng
23rd Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2983 7779

Fax: (852) 2983 7723

Website: http://www.Ichi.com.hk

B REMEE AEE/NA
BEREEHET — THREIERITRO =1
B 5% ¢ (852) 2983 7779

f5H& : (852) 2983 7723

#E : http://www.Ichi.com.hk
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INndependent Auditor’'s Report &3

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIU CHONG HING
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 105 to 212,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report B ZEB AR ES

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
2 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-F-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

I
=
>
=
o
2015 2014 ;E
—E-%F —E-mF B
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 S
e
WiaE BETT BET T =
b
Continuing operations BERE ko
Revenue iz 8 1,193,032 565,875 ﬁ
Direct costs HERAR (576,584) (133,237)
616,448 432,638
Other income Hiplg A 9 1,980 12,970
Administrative and operating expenses THREERL (180,516) (186,641)
Other gains and losses Hinlh Rz R EE 10 98,138 252,943
Finance costs B A AR 11 (74,526) (82,428)
Share of results of joint ventures FribaEtEEE 3,509 (184)
Profit before tax BRBLATER 471,033 429,298
Income tax expense FER L 12 (48,778) (26,492)
Profit for the year from continuing operations BESERFERT 422,255 402,806
Discontinued operations BRIELE
Profit for the year from discontinued operations BRI EREREEHF 37 = 2,983,607
Profit for the year KEERA 13 422,255 3,386,413
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company ~ 2ERAAR ARREMNAEE R
— from continuing operations —REFELE 410,366 393,600
— from discontinued operations —REBRLEEE = 1,963,335
410,366 2,356,935
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests 5 3E 42 A% IR SR i MO RN &£ 57
— from continuing operations —REFELSE 11,889 9,206
— from discontinued operations —REBALEE = 1,020,272
11,889 1,029,478
422,255 3,386,413
Basic earnings per share SREARA
— from continuing and discontinued operations — RABERCAILEE 16 78 45 HK$1.08 75 5 HK$6.23
— from continuing operations —REBELE 16 755 HK$1.08 VS HK$1.04
105
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m
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e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income #HRefEmkEMmEmlias
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(2]

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

2015 2014
—E-EF —Z-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Profit for the year AEEER 422,255 3,386,413
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hir2m () W
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: BENFEN B2 ERKZIER
Exchange differences arising on translation BREFMEEVELER (246,483) (11,557)
Fair value (losses) gains on available-for-sale investments ARHEREZ A HEE
(F18) /W (107,625) 49,752
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon disposal of AHERNHHEEREEN
available-for-sale investments BN ENERRC SR (5,373) (26,803)
Reclassification adjustments for amounts transferred to HERBRAREHEHDE
profit or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries RRERTRREC SR = (90,376)
(359,481) (78,984)
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: BAFCES P BEZEREZIER
Gain on valuation upon transfer from property, plant and BYE BERRBEERZ
equipment to investment properties REMERNEENR = 1,469,601
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year (net of tax) REZEMEE (H) hE (BRFE) (359,481) 1,390,617
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEXHANSEE 62,774 4,777,030
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2ARBREIER
Owners of the Company ARERER 62,028 3,780,072
Non-controlling interests FERRRER 746 996,958
62,774 4,777,030




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e B R JL R

As at 31 December 2015 R=E-HF+=A=1—H

2015 2014
—E-IF —Z-mF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
WiaE BETT BET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties REYE 17 7,888,772 7,776,590
Property, plant and equipment NE - BERRE 18 104,678 102,401
Properties under development BREANE 19 736,725 714,892
Interests in joint ventures SREERER 20 1,228 2,584
Investments in securities BERE 21 726,789 825,978
Advance to an investee company BARRENT 22 4,902 4,891
Fixed bank deposit with more than three months to BEAZEA&IES
maturity when raised THRTER 25 - 380,276
Deferred tax assets BENREEE 28 1,846 7,235
9,470,940 9,814,847
Current assets TBEE
Properties under development for sale AHERRDYE 19 390,974 1,055,855
Properties held for sale HHEME 19 1,012,405 566,908
Inventories FE 23 18,786 21,995
Trade and other receivables BEREMEWRRR 24 136,967 143,599
Investments in securities BERE 21 13,197 359,055
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BEAZEA&IE
maturity when raised THBRTER 25 822,502 1,553,835
Other bank balances and cash HuRTERRES 25 1,043,618 1,138,582
3,438,449 4,839,829
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables ESREMEMERR 26 213,930 354,843
Taxation payable FEHBR 2,181 4,664
Borrowings — due within one year BH—RN—ERZH 27 861,772 137,483
1,137,889 1,096,990
Net current assets REBEETH 2,300,560 3,742,839
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 11,771,500 13,557,686
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Rental deposits from tenants BRFRRzEERS 105,719 105,828
Borrowings — due after one year BH—RN—F%2H 27 489,717 2,196,764
Deferred tax liabilities EENEERE 28 231,133 218,318
827,169 2,520,910
10,944,331 11,036,776
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBIR AR

As at 31 December 2015 R=E-HF+=A=1—H

2015 2014
—E-EF —Z-mF
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
WiaE BETT BETT
Equity BT

Share capital R 29 381,535 381,535
Reserves #iE 10,534,533 10,627,724

Equity attributable to: RESER
Owners of the Company ADERR 10,916,068 11,009,259
Non-controlling interests FERBRES 28,263 27517
Total equity IREEz 10,944,331 11,036,776

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 212 were EHRF 105E 212 B 2 LA PRBRRE N -Z
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 2 —/"E=ZA —HEZF it & RIRERET

March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: WHETIATREESE
DR. LIU LIT MO MR. TONG TSIN KA
BRHEL BERR%E
CHAIRMAN CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
EY3 EERZETEE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAREBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-F-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

L
=
>
=
[}
Atributable to owners of the Company >
AARRRER ™
: m
Property Investment Capital Non- o
Share Special revaluation revaluation redemption Exchange  Accumulated controlling ;%
capital reserve Teserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total =
NEER  REER  RARE FER g
BE  BHEE 1 | i e EXRE  EEEN ai  BRREs @zt S
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HiKS 000 HikS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 13
BETT  BRTr  ERTn  BETR  BMTx  BRTr BB B%Tn  B¥Tn EBTx it
(note a) (note b)
(GED) (GED)
At 1 January 2014 R-E-mF-F-A 378583 13915 1,711,859 245,035 2,95 588,094 6,177,881 9,118,319 3,898,003 13,016,322
Profit for the year AEERR - - - - - - 2,356,935 2,356,935 1029478 3,386,413
Exchange differences arising on translation BEFEEvERESE - - - - - 2951 - 2,91 (14,508) (11,557)
Fair value gains (losses) on available-for-sale ATt ERE 2 ATEE
investments 5 (Fi8) - - - 67764 - - - 67,764 (18012) 4975
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon HEHEEREEY
disposal of available-for-sale investments EfPBLERER SE - - - (26,803) - - - (26,803) - (26,803)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon REENBAREHE
disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HABNEREL
SH (ML) - - - (68,406) - (21,970) - (90,376) - (90,376)
(Gain on valuation upon transfer from property, — ¥41% « BERRE
plant and equipment to investment properties ~ EBEREREMERH
(note 18(c)) hEWE (HEE18() - - 1,469,601 - - - - 1,469,601 - 1,469,601
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year A EE#2ERE (R E) - - 1,469,601 (27 445) - (19,019) - 1423131 (32,520) 1,390,617
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year ZZ 2 ERE (X H) B3 - - 1,469,601 (27,445) - (19,019 2,356,935 3,780,072 996,958 4777030
Transfer upon abolition of par value under the new #8455 & 38 2 S
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (note c) BERABSHEER
(CGED) 2952 - - - (2952) - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) HEMBAR () - - (224,643) - - - 204,643 - (3893588)  (3,893,588)
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 15) ~ BRRAIRZRE
(M 15) - - - - - - (1889132  (1,889,132) - (1,889,132)
Dividends to non-controlling interests TRFERRRERRE - - - - - - - - (973,856) (973,856)
At 31 December 2014 e g 381,535 13915 2,956,817 27,590 - 569,075 6,870,327 11,009,259 1517 11,036,776
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAREBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

Atributable to owners of the Company

ARARRER
Property Investment Capital Non-
Share Special revaluation revaluation redemption Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
NEER  REER RAERE FER
BE  RKERE & 1] E ERRGE  2RER & RRER @zt
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HiK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
BT BETn  EBTr  E%Tx BT BT E¥Tn  E%Tx BT BT
(note a) (note b)
(MizEa) (MizED)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1§-F-AH 381,935 13915 2,956,817 217,590 - 569,075 6,870,321 11,009,259 21517 11,036,776
Profit for the year AEERF - - - - - - 410,366 410,366 11,889 122,05
Exchange differences arising on translation BEFEE v ERESE - - - - - (235,340) - (235,340) (11,143) (246,483)
Fair value losses on available-for-sale investments A HERE 2
AEEERE - - - (107,625) - - - (107,625) - (107,625)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss upon R ETHEHEREEY
disposal of available-for-sale investments ENPRREER S E - - - (5,373) - - - (5,373) - (373)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEMRERE - - - (112,998) - (235,340) - (348,338) (11,143) (359,481)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year  ANEFE2E () WS E%E - - - (112,998) - (235,340) 410,366 62,028 746 62774
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 15) ~ BRZBSRZRE
(M 15) - - - - - - (195,219) (195,219) - (155,219)
At 31 December 2015 RB-RE+-A=1-H 381,935 13915 2,956,817 104,592 - 333,735 1125474 10,916,068 28,263 10,944,331
notes: BT
(a)  Special reserve represents the difference between the consideration  (a) EhEEEAEEREEZE -_TENF+-_A=+—
paid and the carrying values of the underlying assets and liabilities ALFERHEE-S——F+-_A=+—HILFE
attributable to the additional interest in a subsidiary acquired during the 1) — T Bl B8 2 ) T S 1<% X (88 B (i 52 B B 8 )RR 1
year ended 31 December 2004 and the year ended 31 December o HAEERABREEZEZRE
2012.
(b) Property revaluation reserve represents the reserve arising from (b)) WEEFHEESRAREMEEL  HEDE W
valuation of properties under property, plant and equipment upon B RBREE TEMELENRERE -
transfer to investment properties.
(c)  The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares have no  (¢) B#HEBARKEAIREERE BB T —NF=

par value since the commencement date of the new Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (i.e. 3 March 2014).

A=ZB) e ARBWEEERAR - BRI EE

-




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #R&HREMERX

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-F-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

I
=
3
2015 2014 =
—2-5% —EF-mE R
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000 [
Bzt EMT T CLaT =
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH ;E
Profit before tax BB AR R ﬁ
— from continuing operations —REFELE 471,033 429,298
— from discontinued operations —RACRLEE = 3,002,023
471,033 3,431,321
Adjustments for: o
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties REVEAHEEZE NG (281,997) (152,503)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale-investments HETHRHERE WS (8,080) (26,853)
Dividend income from investments REREKRA (10,884) (10,031)
Interest income — non-financial services FEWA — L RRHE (117,578) (69,216)
Imputed interest income on non-current interest-free RIRE A RAMEHIERE
advances to investee companies REBZ 2 HEFISWA (109) (3,045)
Share of results of joint ventures Frtag s (3,509) 184
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERREINE 1,852 10,115
Finance costs — non-financial services BRI — & BiRA 14,526 82,428
Losses (gains) on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment FEEE (ki) 266 (739)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BFHENEZRE
properties held for sale EERR 20,546 =
Gain on disposal of Chong Hing Bank Limited HERIERTRR AR 37 - (2,891,156)
Gain on initial recognition of available-for-sale BREANMHHE
investments REWE - (84,159)
Net interest income — financial services FISHA S5 — SRR = (154,534)
Net charge of impairment allowances on EXUREEENR
loans and advances = 5,352
Net losses on fair value hedge AV EH 2 FER = 1,883
Exchange adjustments [E &% - 9,221
Operating cash flows before movements RTEEESLE
in working capital REBERE 152,066 148,268
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

> llg

o

i
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gl

2015 2014
—Z-n% —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Decrease (increase) in operating assets: BEEE R (Em)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BOAVEEARR
ZEREE 338,183 (320,779)
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HMERRR 2,669 (29,960)
Properties held for sale BHENE 440,736 22,153
Properties under development for sale BEPSHE)E (322,925) (388,384)
Properties under development BEAYE (21,833) (12,692)
Inventories FE 1,925 (3,527)
Other advances to customers HtEFER - 1,821,817
Bills receivable ERZE = 11,744
Placements with banks and other financial institutions B=ERAHS o EHRIT
with original maturity over three months REMEBEERE = 1,330,449
Money at call and short notice with original B=EAAHEAR
maturity over three months BHER - 1,980,725
Other accounts HitiRE = 38,229
Trade bills EPESH - (160,675)
Exchange fund bills with original maturity B={HR B2 HNE
over three months HeZE - (89,983)
(Decrease) increase in operating liabilities: EEEBZ )& :
Trade and other payables ESREMEMERR (62,063) 260,931
Deposits from banking customers RITEFER = 593,061
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial B=EB SRR EAM
institutions with original maturity over three months BBHEED R A6 - (1,009,567)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REERETHEZSREE = 167,159
Certificates of deposit FHE - 100,685
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA - 30,034
Cash generated from operations REEBHERASE 528,758 4,489,688
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFEHR (20,232) (16,393)
The People’s Republic of China Enterprise Income Tax paid ERPEAREMELERED (21,606) (8,119)
Overseas tax refunded CREENH o 156
Dividend received on investments BRRERE 10,884 10,031
Interest paid ERFE - (76,090)
Interest received BWFIE 111,578 267,907
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R TERE2 RS TE 615,382 4,667,180




2015 2014
“Z-1% —E-mF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrst BETT BET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of REHERIERTER 37
Chong Hing Bank Limited DRAIZBEEREFE - (14,048,928)
Purchase of available-for-sale investments RaRHEREZREELM (13,516) (186,996)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERR (11,255) (571,704)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE BEXK
REMEHE - 3,146
Purchase of investment properties BERENE - (1,671,422)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREYERETE 5,110 -
Placement of fixed bank deposits with more than three BEAZERER S
months to maturity when raised EHRATEFIE M (216,387) (1,569,732)
Release of fixed bank deposits with more than three BHE=ERARH
months to maturity when raised EHRTER 1,327,996 =
Repayment from investee companies BHEREDNT - 191,714
Proceeds from sale and redemption of HERBERHEE
available-for-sale investments REMBEA 15,560 48,078
Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity securities — EEEHSZEIH Y & pHEEIE = 1,087,711
Interest received on available-for-sale investments and ~ WEIAIHERERES
held-to-maturity securities AMARF AR - 37,018
Dividend received from Chong Hing Bank Limited WEAIERTERAR
ZBE - 986,876
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBNE (R 2B 38 1,107,508 (15,694,239)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
New borrowings raised HEVSER 1,470,000 1,216,263
Repayments of borrowings BERER (2,997,711) (2,064,676)
Dividends paid ERRE (155,219) (1,184,967)
Interest paid on borrowings B ERAE (104,774) (109,594)
Interest paid on loan capital EREEERFIR - (11,673)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETBFAZASFE (1,781,704) (2,154,647)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BeRAEEEER
ROFE (64,814) (13,181,706)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR E#zBHE KRB LEEEE 1,138,582 14,322,810
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES HEHBRES o e (30,150) (2,522)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR, FRZASRBELEHEER
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH PRTERRES 1,043,618 1,138,582

L
<
>
=
=
>
-
X
m
o
o
A
—
=
S
#
#t

-

EvEHEXITEERE

HEH T - &

-3 7



-t
=
»

GT0Z 1¥0d3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR IS mER M At

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company is

disclosed in the Corporate Information section to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries and joint ventures are shown in notes 38 and 20

respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™) for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out

in these consolidated financial statements.

1. —REIR
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HIFAHIFE 38 K. 20 ©
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with Customers!
Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
sr e I IS R R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was

subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for the

classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for

derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements for

general hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was

issued in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment requirements for

financial assets and (b) limited amendments to the classification and

measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other

comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain

simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is

presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit

event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in
HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have

also been introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have a material impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a

detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a

performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or

services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15. The directors of the

Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future

may have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures

made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of

HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of these new and revised HKFRSs will
have a material effect on the amounts recognised in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and
audits became effective for the Company for the financial year ended
31 December 2015. Further, the disclosure requirements set out in
the Listing Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly,
the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
have been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended 31
December 2014 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements. Information
previously required to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or
Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are

not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS

2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size

and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

3. EEEHBE(E)

TESFBEREIIMT -

HEEE
RAEMBRREEARA RBARRE FREHK
BAREG 2 ERZMBTHRE - ZEHELA
YNSIDEE=TE

AIEIREHRITERED
s H2HERBEURIZEXBEGHERES

""""" #E®R &
o BRENBEHKREHRITHEEENMEE
E Bl -

HWEEERBRAER DR =ZBESHEZHR 2
—HEHZRNBEL  AEESEHMFGE
EREREHRERZHIRE -

HAREREEAR R FREREOAZH
AIERERENHTASREERENENE
BEREHR ZBREHFANHREHRE
BN - AREEFEARRAHEREHR 2
BRERRORNETEERENEZ BB EMH
FERBR B

o  AEEMFZREEREEENEME
SRFAACIREERE RRED UL
=

s AEE HRERFAASIHEMAL
FA 2 BEREE

o  H@AORHELZEN: &

o  RANFBEELIRER - NEEH AT
MBS IEEARRA S L EME

BRIER (BERZARERH 28
FHH) -



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains

control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties

sharing control.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group'’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when the
investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the joint venture at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in
the joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a

reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation. Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in

profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.

For a transfer from properties under development for sale to
investment properties (which is evidenced by commencement of an
operating lease), any difference between the fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

For a transfer from investment properties to properties under
development for sale which is evidenced by the commencement of
development with a view to sale, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the date of transfer and its previously carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss. The property’s deemed cost for

subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the
relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained

profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development which are intended to be held for sale
are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the
costs of land, development expenditure incurred and, where

appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised during construction period.

Properties under development for sale are transferred to properties
held for sale when the relevant completion certificates are issued by

the respective government authorities.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to

estimated selling price less selling expenses.

3. EEEHBE(E)

M WERRE(R)

EWE - BMEARBEBERXETBER
HEREAZNEMBREREMER %A
BRERE A REERENFEERTMAE
EREMEERERRALNEEGHER
ite BRHEABBEZEER  HBAEMGRH
R EZREAREER -

RW%E  BERREHEB LERNEEFTT
GRS EEMEEME SR REE R -
ZEME  BERREBARLER - AHE
HIFRYE - BB MREEEB MES ZER
W BERHEMSRIRFREZAEE
ZIEEEZ ZRERE - WNEBRRER -

HHERRPYE BRPYE

FFHEERT Y EARA LR B FERE
RZREEAR KABRIMWAAN  BE
EERFAS R (ER) ZEHRERCHE
FHEERTMERB BRFKEEZ LA
BRTREAXME  BREFHEDE -

HHEYME
FHEMRIIRA AL SR FERER Z
BIEE AR - ATRBFED2E A EER
HERSMETE



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group

entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised

cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the

relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points

paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,

transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the

expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
(i) contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies, (ii) held for trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading or

contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a

business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise

arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided

internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract

(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included in other gains
and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 6¢.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as

available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)

held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment of financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss

when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see the

accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including

advance to an investee company, trade and other receivables, fixed

bank deposits with more than three months to maturity when raised,

and other bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment

(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that security below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial asset

because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the

impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the

impairment loss directly for all financial assets.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income

are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

3. EEEHBE(E)

EMIR(E)

EREE(R)

NEHERA AR REE - HRERARE
BIEAZEENREERARERFN KR
BEARRBREREZREZER -

TRMEERDESRIRBEMRD -

IR A EZEREEMS @ WER
BEEBZSENERBIMZEF R A EE
M ERERMEBREAELEZEMHHE A
SRR RMERBER ENRERER -
REERER 2 EERMET R R
RIRMERT 2 HEFHRAR

ERATEEARITHEESREERNR R
A TORER - ST R A At 2 U R RERR
REBRNENM D BERERMEZASZE

AHEERAREME @ LR BERRT®
REOBEBBETSNBERRED - REEES
BREGZEMAFEEREMNEMZEK
nEEER URNREEMRBRETE -
RAIHHEZERRENS  HEREZA
FEERMAFERAERBREBRREE
ZEMHE  AREBEeRELED -

SRIBRRKRATIR
HEBERERTZESMEATARMGIL
ZENRFABARERABIERATAZ
EENERTRABHRATE -



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and bank and
other borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of

the time value of money is material).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying

amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any

such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is

estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and

rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;
° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of

financial position under current liabilities.

Service income (including management fee and agency fee of
property management, and hotel operation income) is recognised

when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing

below.

LEASING
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as ‘prepaid lease payments’ in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and

equipment.

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference

arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
TAXATION (CONTINUED)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to
hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting policies

below); and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from

equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and concluded that (a) the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, (b) the
Group’s investment properties in the PRC are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties
in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties
located in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes
on disposal of these investment properties.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2015 at their fair value, details of
which are disclosed in note 17. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations conducted on
these properties by an independent firm of property valuers using
property valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
prevailing market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding adjustments to the
changes in fair value reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the carrying amount of these properties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The carrying amount of
the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2015 is
HK$7,888,772,000 (2014: HK$7,776,590,000).

Impairment of properties under development for sale/properties
held for sale

The Group’s properties under development for sale and properties
held for sale in the PRC and Hong Kong, details of which are set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position and note 19, are
expected to be recovered through future sales. In case the future
selling prices, less all related direct selling expenses, are less than
their current carrying value plus further costs to complete the
properties under development for sale to a saleable condition, the
Group will recognise losses. Future selling prices of properties in the
PRC will be affected by a combination of political, economic and other
factors that are beyond accurate prediction. The carrying amount of
properties under development for sale and properties held for sale of
the Group at 31 December 2015 is HK$390,974,000 (2014
HK$1,055,855,000) and HK$1,012,405,000 (2014:
HK$566,908,000), respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONTINUED)

Recognition and allocation of construction cost on properties under

development for sale

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties under

development for sale during the construction stage and will be

transferred to profit or loss upon the recognition of the sale of the
properties. Before the final settlement of the development costs and
other costs relating to the sale of the properties, these costs are

accrued by the Group based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated cost of each phase as a percentage of the
total estimated cost of the entire project, or if the above is not
practicable, the common costs are allocated to individual phases

based on saleable area.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost allocation is
different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in the
development costs and other costs would affect the profit or loss in

future years.

Fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investments that are stated
at fair value are determined with reference to market values of
underlying assets, or arrived at using valuation techniques, including
market multiple approach and discounted cash flow techniques,
which included some assumptions that are not supportable by
observable market prices or rates, the inputs may include prices
information, volatility statistics, liquidity statistics and other factors. In
determining the fair value where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best
estimates, earnings growth factor and the adjusted discount factor.
The carrying amount of the Group’s unlisted available-for-sale
investments at 31 December 2015 is HK$388,088,000 (2014:
HK$475,673,000).
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B E 2 &EMEFTTFIARE -
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REH - BERFX-HPERHABZIEERA
SIERZBMZRAANR - ZFREE 2 KAR
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W7 HAERARREBEAEERRIEES
H o
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EREEENAR RS BB B &)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)
Income taxes
As at 31 December 2015, a deferred tax asset in relation to unused
tax losses of HK$96 million (2014: HK$94 million) has been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
HK$381 million (2014: HK$338 million) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal takes place.

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
the borrowings disclosed in note 27, cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues

as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

4. EEGHHAERETTHABE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. & TH
6A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6A. ERITH R
2015 2014
“Z-EF “R-IE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets LtREE
FVTPL BOFEETAER
Held for trading BEEERRZ 13,057 11,972
Designated at fair value RERATETIR 1,674 346,942
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) BERREWER
(BfEReR B2 SEER) 1,998,407 3,186,878
Available-for-sale investments ntHERE 719,255 826,119
Financial liabilities ¢REE
Amortised cost BEMA 1,501,796 3,026,511

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in

securities, advance to an investee company, trade and other

receivables, fixed bank deposits with more than three months to

maturity when raised, other bank balances and cash, trade and other

payables and borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

6B. MEEIGEEEHERBRK

AEENTIZSRTARERESKRE 2
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kBRE BHREMBENERRRER
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign

currencies and, hence exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the end of the reporting period that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant entities
are as follows:

6. &R IR (&)
6B. MEEEEBFERBIK (&)

i E B
(i) EEER
REBEHENRZRZNIINEETT - FIIAE

7, R iz T o B 4
XIEER)ZENFE o

R|BEHR - AEBARBEERDEEE N
SNETIE - B BEREY B EREENT

Assets Liabilities
£E fafE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—Z-1f —Z-nF “E-If —EZ-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BETT BT T
HK$ it 657 7,054 245,195 258,100
United States dollars (“US$”) ES A 277,032 294,276 - =
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR 344,830 2,423,317 = =
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZE-ZE—-A&+=-A=1t—-BILEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of US$ against HK$
and of the HK$ against RMB. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 1% (2014: 1%) increase and decrease in HK$ against
US$ and 10% (2014: 10%) increase and decrease in HK$ against
RMB. The respective percentages are the sensitivity rates used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for the respective
percentages change in the exchange rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit or equity where the HK$ weaken 1%
(2014: 1%) against US$ and 10% (2014: 10%) against RMB. For a

6. EMIA(E)
6B. MBEIEEBFERBK (&)
i EK (48)
() EEm@EE
BREN

(%)

AEEFEERETHBERBELARE
fEXREER - TRAHANEELBER
ETEREARTREI%(ZT—ME : 1%)
AR EE L ARE EARTRE10% (ZF—KM
F:10%) R E - FIEA D LEBREA
MFErEERASERNEAMANGRELE
RETEEEBHEXSEAEEENEHH
i o BRRED T EBEUINETERNRE
BEKIER  UHEXEAMNE S LNE

FRAR - TRPEHRTABBHETRE
1% (ZZ—WF :1%) R ARKEREL%
(ZZT—MF : 10%) B R F sk iEzs®me &
AR ETHEI%(ZT—UE  1%) K3

1% (2014: 1%) strengthening of the HK$ against US$ and 10% A RBABEI0% (= Z—P04F : 10%) 8 - ¥
(2014: 10%) against RMB, there would be an equal and opposite % Fl|siiEz e G REBEMRR TR TE
impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be T[3|&EHpe2 a8 -
negative.
2015 2014
—E-1F “E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Profit or loss B
HK$ ik (20,419) (20,962)
Uss$ Ey 1,472 1,445
RMB ARM 28,793 202,347
Other comprehensive income Hitr2EKa
Us$ ES 1,008 1,212
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative BIE&EREHWZ B - SURE DT 4 B A o
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does FERE[G I TNEAR RN - B AFKRETH RS

not reflect the exposure during the year.

W ML RS B R -



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a

financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed
rate structured deposits designated at FVTPL and debt securities
classified as available-for-sale investments (see note 21 for details).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate structured deposits, bank balances and borrowings (see
notes 21, 25 and 27 for details of these financial instruments). It is
the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rates of interest so

as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly attributable to fluctuation
of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”).

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for the Group’s derivative and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis points (2014: 50 basis points) fluctuation is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

6. ERIT R ()
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IR E R (48)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA B ISR R MY R
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

6. &M IR (&)
6B. MEEMEEBFERBIK (&)

Market risk (Continued) ThiGEE (48)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i)  FEmEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT ()
2015 2014
—E-Af “Z-NE
Change in basis points Change in basis points
EYEE HEBEF
+50 -50 +50 -50
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BET T
Profit or loss (net of tax) B SEE (REE) (1,207) 1,207 (8,747) 8,747
Other comprehensive income Eh2EE (1,376) 878 (3,354) 1,304
Numbers in bracket mean decrease. BRPETARD

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

(iii) ~ Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through their investments in
equity securities. The management will closely monitor the price
movement of the securities and regularly review the performance and

asset allocation of the portfolio.

The Group’s equity price risk are mainly concentrated on listed and

unlisted equity securities.

RIEEEENER  BREDITEERNF
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W R BRE AR R o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) -~ Price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the

exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 10%
(2014: 10%) higher/lower:

o the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2015 would increase/decrease by HK$1,090,000 (2014:
HK$1,000,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of

investments held for trading; and

o the Group’s investment valuation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$66,659,000 (2014: HK$77,526,000) as a

result of changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

The Group's sensitivity to price risk has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance its operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of

bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had available unutilised
bank loan facilities of approximately HK$1,638 million (2014
HK$745 million). Details of the amounts utilised at the end of the

reporting period are set out in note 27.

6. €T HR(E)
6B. MBEIGEERHERBRK(E)
hiZEE (4)
(i) 1EFEE R
BEE AT
TXHEE DT TR R RS B BE S AR

BRRET °

(%)

AERIBEBREATENE
—PO4F : 10%) * A

ﬁﬁ/—rlzfﬁ 10%(—7

s AEEAEE_ZT-HFtT-_A=1+—H
MERBT RSN LM m B

1,090,0007c( = & — 11 F: & #
1,000,00070)  RAZFHIEEERBE
BN FEEES : &

o  AKERREMEREBSENORDE
#66,659,0007C( — T — [P0 4F : 7 B
77,526,00070) + RARAIHEERE
MRAFEESZ

AEEHERRRNSRERTFLYES

MENE & B

EEERDE SRR  NEBEZRERRE
EEERR/EANRE LRSFEERKYF
REXBZERHESYRERSREND
M E - BEBERRITERZERMRR R
FEIRE T B TR E5E o

REBKBIRITERIEARDESC ZEER
BeRZF—RFFT_A=1T—0 K5H

E‘J@Jﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁrﬁﬂihﬂxﬁi ERE AL
1,638,000,000T( — & — M F: B #&
745,000,0007T ) © ##&iﬁﬂf‘ﬁ,uﬁaaéﬂﬁ

SR ZFIFENME7 -

L
<
>
=
=
>
r
)
m
o
o
A
—
=
S
#
#t

-t

EEEMH#(“IEE‘!&

BWEE T &= |



-t
ul
»

GT0Z 1¥0d3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. &RMTR(H)

6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 6B. UBEEMEEHERBE(8)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) HRENE SRS ()

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity AREBRIETELS B E R BIEFRESDOFE

for its non-derivative financial liabilities and financial guarantee £ ZF|/HRH5R TH - TR 2B EFRILES

contracts. The tables below have been drawn up based on the REBGBEBREZRENBMNELRNEHEMmMSIE -

contractual maturities of the undiscounted financial liabilities M&&XF|ANERNE L ZSFETH -

including interest that will accrue, with reference to their respective  J32BAHEHRSFATISFEME °

contractual interest rate, and for those variable-rate instruments, by

using the appropriate prevailing market rates at the end of the

reporting period as stated in their contracts.

Repayable Repayable Repayable

Weighted Repayable after after after Total
average  on demand 1 month 3 months Tyear undiscounted
interest or within hut within hut within hut within financial Carrying
rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5years liabilities amounts
EZR% iz ES =fRE -5z KRR
e —f@AR =fERR —£R IFR SREE
Ti9FI= HE HiE &g &g ekl REE
notes % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
i BETT BETT  E¥%Tn  A%Tn B%Tx BET T
At 31 December 2015 N-E—1E
+=B=1+-H
Trade and other payables ZEREMENERE - 150,307 - - - 150,307 150,307
Bank borrowings RITIER (i) 183 4,276 242,396 637,152 521,042 1,404,866 1,330,395
Amount due to a joint venture B—-faetE
HIE - 1,158 - - - 1,158 1,158
Amounts due to non-controlling FEfF IR IR
interests shareholders RERER
— Interest bearing —itE 1.63 8,797 - - - 8,191 8,797
— Non-interest bearing —%E - 11,139 - - - 11,139 11,139
Total 1% 175,677 242,396 637,152 521,042 1,576,267 1,501,796
At 31 December 2014 NZE-M&E
T=R=+-H
Trade and other payables BaREEMKRE - 92,264 - - - 92,264 92,264
Bank borrowings with repayableon  ESBERSER &R
demand clause R z®iTER i) 138 10,000 = = = 10,000 10,000
Other bank borrowings HRITREN (i) 312 7,588 16,436 774,015 2,349,556 3,147,595 2,902,482
Amount due to a joint venture Et—EaE
ERE - 1,498 - - - 1,498 1,498
Amounts due to non-controlling B FER
interests shareholders RFRER
— Interest bearing —iE 1.9 9,069 - - - 9,069 9,069
— Non-interest bearing — %8 - 11,198 - - - 11,198 11,198

Total o 131,617 16,436 174,015 2,349,556 3,271,624 3,026,511




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
notes:

(i) The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

(i) The Group’s bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 December 2014, the aggregate carrying amounts of
these bank loans were HK$10,000,000. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$10,138,000.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to

discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk of debts, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
management has regular liaison with the borrowers to understand
their financial position and to identify any early sign of potential
problems. Should any potential default situation arise, management
will take prompt actions to safeguard the Group’s assets. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. 2RTH(4E)
6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 6C. M T EATEEEME
INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value atthe ZAEBEHLHTREEINSHEHRN AT E
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information (Hit 2 - TRIEHEHEEMEEZ AT EE
about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in  FARANER (BREmE @ BMHEFENREA

particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). R A E) o
2015
—®2-IfF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R5 St ] E=RA ot
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BET T
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEEGABRRE
ZEREE
Non-derivative financial assets BEEEREY
held for trading FTESRERE 13,057 - - 13,057
Financial assets designated EERDFEETA
as at FVTPL BReREE - 1,674 = 1,674

Available-for-sale financial assets At HESFHEE

Listed equity securities iR AES 278,506 - - 278,506
Unlisted equity securities FEmRAES - - 337,532 337,532
Listed debt securities IHEEES - 52,661 - 52,661
Investment funds REES - - 50,556 50,556
Total Fak ] 291,563 60,335 388,088 139,986




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. ERTR(E)
6C. ERITHAFEEBHEHFFE(H)

2014
—Z-mE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1HA E= A E=HA Fob ]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BT T BT T
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEEGARR
ZERMEE
Non-derivative financial assets — EEBERR 2T
held for trading LEREE 11,972 - - 11,972
Financial assets designated BERAFEBTA
as at FVTPL BReREE - 346,942 - 346,942
Available-for-sale financial assets Tt HESREE
Listed equity securities ERRARES 299,582 - - 299,582
Unlisted equity securities ELHRAES - - 402,875 402,875
Listed debt securities FhEKES - 50,864 - 50,864
Investment funds REES - - 72,798 72,798
Total k) 311,554 397,806 475,673 1,185,033

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined with

reference to quoted market bid prices from relevant stock exchanges.

The fair values of debt securities classified as available-for-sale
investments are determined based on indicative prices provided by
the dealers and brokers. In addition, the Group makes comparison of
the indicative prices with the prices obtained from pricing services
providers to substantiate the indicative prices of the debt securities.
The key inputs used in the valuation models are the interest rate data,
which are observable at the end of the reporting period. The objective
of valuation models is to arrive at a fair value estimation that reflects
the price of the financial instrument at the reporting date, which
would have been determined by market participants acting at arm’s
length.

FARN-F— B_RE=RPzRAMEEE
EfEE -

ERBRABSF T2 EEBBR ST 5T
SOAAMmBEABEEAFEE-

BEAAHEERENEBESFNAFEE
RIFEHEBRE L APTRREOETEERE
E o WS AREE AR EEAR B E B R
BHERT LESOEBMALE - LSE
ELFNEREEREMIRE - {HERN
MERBAZBSHNREE  ZBBERS
IR A ABRGTE - AEEANBERIE
HARBRERTAERSARRMS2EE
NAFEBAEERNAHEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of structured products designated as financial assets

at FVTPL are calculated using discounted cash flows analysis derived

from quoted interest rates, which are observable at the end of the

reporting period.

The fair values of investment funds are determined by using valuation
technique of market approach, which included some assumptions
that are not supportable by observable market prices or rates. The
inputs used in estimating the value of investment funds include the
original transaction price, recent transactions and market multiple of
the same or similar instruments, completed or pending third-party

transactions in the underlying investment.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined with
reference to market values of underlying assets, which mainly
comprise investment properties held by the investee company and
take into account the discount for lack of marketability. The valuation
of the properties was principally arrived at using the comparison
method, in which property is valued on the assumption that the
property can be sold with the benefit of vacant possession.
Comparison based on prices realised on actual sales of comparable

properties is made for similar properties in the similar location.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group’s other financial assets recorded at amortised costs in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

6. ST R(E)
6C. ERITHAFEEBHEHFFE(H)

BERBRATEEFABENSREENS
BUEEMNLATFEE ERBREREASRS
fratE - HBRENRDRERERRERE
2y -

BEREESHNAFEERRARMMISMG
BENRE ERERINERRTISER LT
X —LBRE - BEHREESNEER
AN AZE  BRERANKRE TR
SEMSZEERARBUNTE  TRKE
FE=ZNRXHHEBKRE -

FEESF L MIRAE ZH R FEEE2E R
BENMSEE TEEEMRERARFA
MREMENTSEE REBRERZMS
HEMEL I - WERGEEETRZERLBOL -
BRZDELTHERNMELNYEMLE -
HBRRBEREART L EMERBUNYEER
P EEROERHEERTE -

ARFRZEERRAKERGEEMBHREA
AE SR A AR E & BE & 2 Bk (5 82
HAFEERS -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. &M TR (H) =
6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL 6C. EMTRAAFEEHTE(H) %
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) §
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial SRIEEE=RAAFEAEAAE _'
assets g
Available-for-sale ﬁ
investments
AHHERE
HK$'000
BETT
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-E-ME- A - ALk 404,651
Total net gains recognised in other comprehensive income REMZENEAED 2 FRE 104,431
Purchases BE 13,455
Matured/disposals B/ BE (46,864)
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+=A=1+—- A4 475,673
Total net losses recognised in other comprehensive income REMZENGARIZFER (93,272)
Purchases BE 13,516
Matured/disposals B/ e (7,829)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RIE-RE+-B=+-H&H 388,088

Included in other comprehensive income is a loss of HK$93,272,000  H & Uz A6 = #93,272,000 7T &5 18
(2014: a gain of HK$104,431,000) related to available-for-sale  (=ZF—py4E : ## 104,431,000 Tz ) - 62
investments held at the end of the reporting period. RMEPEEER AN HESEREER -

The majority of the Group’s investments are valued based on quoted AKEB KIS MNIHEBELEETISNEE
market information or observable market data. A small percentage, S(AIEIERNTIBEHIEMETE - (EAREFEEE
3.0% (31 December 2014: 3.3%), of total assets of the Group, is EMR/NEH - 293.0%(ZZE—WFE+—_8
based on estimates and recorded as Level 3 investments. Whilst such  =4+—H : 3.3%) * JIiRIEAREEE =K B1E
valuations are sensitive to estimates, it is believed that changing one  &{HE & AR o G EE(EHERSNEE HRK
or more of the assumptions to reasonably possible alternative g — Ak ZEABEESES5IE KA fEK
assumptions would not have a big impact on the Group’s financial R - MBS T2 ¥ A £ B KRR &
positions. RERZE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

6C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The management performs regular reviews to determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurement.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers or other service providers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The respective management team reports the findings to the
Board of Directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of

fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities is disclosed

above.

6. ST R(E)
6C. ERITHAFEEBHEHFFE(H)

AFEEFEMTEAE
BHEEE SRS AEEEEN A FEER
EM{BERMME AR -

AEEGFEELRENRFEEISERAA
RzTESBEBE - E5 A5 AR
AR AEERAE=F5ERMERMNE
fRGHEHETEE - EEBEEERD
SNEE R ERME YA B EE S ERM
M AR - AT EERD AIEHEAR
FNEEFEREEENBENAFEERD
HAEERTEREREA -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources
allocation or assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods and services delivered or provided. No operating segment
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated

in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments under

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:
1. Property investment — investment and letting of properties
2. Property development — development and sale of properties

3. Property management — provision of property management

services

4. Treasury investment — dealings and investments in securities

and other financial instruments

5. Trading and manufacturing — manufacture and sale of

magnetic products
6.  Hotel operation — management and operation of hotels

An operating segment comprising the financial services operations
carried out through the Chong Hing Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
(“CHB” and collectively the “CHB Group”) was reclassified as
discontinued operation during the year ended 31 December 2013.
The segment information reported set out below does not include any
amounts for these discontinued operations, which are described in
more detail in note 37.

7. EEH

AARANTES  DEBELREA 2
BRAMBTRAERBEM2 R HEER -
ThiR B B FTIR L B AR IS MR R D
WEE - BEAH EBLLREABAZE
BHBAERAEE Y /A

REBMGREERNESREESHALE 2
EBREHmMAEMT
L. MERE —YERELHEE

2. PEBR —VEBRNMHEE
3. YERERE —REMEREERS

4. HBERE — FLHLREMESBTANR
5 MIE

5. EBZREE —MUERRENREE

6. HERE —AERENERE

FRAIERTAR AR REM B AR (88
RIT] R [IERTEE ] ETSER
BEENEBER_E—=F+=-A=+—
BIEFEERSBERKIEEE - TXE2®RD
DEEHUTTEEZEERIEEEXEBOE
&5 - BRILEERE—PFBRHNME
37 ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. SEEH(E)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS STEWRERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from AT~ ABIREHLREF DB REBFERE
continuing operations by reportable and operating segment. Wizs R 2B DT ©
Property Property Property Treasury Trading and Hotel
investment development  management investment  manufacturing operation ~ Segment total Eliminations Consolidated

WERE  MEBR MEEE BBRE  ERBE EESE  AB4R Hi &a
K000 HK§ 000 K000 kS 000 K000 kS 000 K§000 kS 000 HK§000
BMTn  EWTn  BETx  ERTn RBBTx BRTR RWTx BRTn BRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015~ BZ=5-HF
TZR=t-ALEE
Segment revenue ARG 315,23 603,300 nm 103,624 52,032 41,612 1,203,809 (10,173) 1,193,032
Comprising: 8
— revenue from customers —BFli& 315,256 603,300 16348 103824 5203 4141
— inter-segment transactions (note) —EBRRS (M) - - 10,173 - - -

Operating expenses 2ERX (131,530) (495,890) (18,231) (22,084) (50,070) (42,078) (759,693) 10,173 (149,120)
Gains onchanges in fair value of BLATEBABRZ

financial instrments at FVPL SRIALNTEEZING - - - 259 - - 2592 - 259
Net exchange (osses) gains ELF (BB ha (16,709) (20,386) 255 (136,829) - (50) (113119) - (113119)
Losses on disposal of propety HENE  BERREESE

plant and equipment - - - - (266) - (266) - (266)
Gaing on isposal o avallabe-forsale — HE T ERE U

investments - - - 4,060 - - 8,060 - 8,060
Gain on changes infairvalue of investment. - SHEME AT EBLENE

properties 281997 - - - - - 281,997 - 281,997
Impairment loss recognised in espectof — # HEME R BB RED

properties held for sale - (20,346) - - - - (20,546) - (20,546)
Segment profit (oss) AR (FR) 509,014 06,478 9,145 (4ad00) 1,6% (456) 542,050 - 542,050
Finance costs BIHAA (74,526)
Share ofresuts o int ventures fbaetEsE 3509
Proft before tax from continuing operations - B E BFATER 471,033
note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. Misr : KEANHEERERTEIIE -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. pEEH () -
=

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED) DHEKERESE(E) =
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from AT AKRESBREEEDE T A EBIFEQCY §
continuing operations by reportable and operating segment. W as R ZEE DT © ;
Property Property Property Treastry Trading and Hotel S

investment development management investment ~ manufacturing operation Segmenttoal Eliminations Consolidated ﬁ

WERE  MEBR NEEE BBRE  EAREE  EESE  S%4 oy &a
K000 HkS 000 Hi§ 000 HkS 000 Hi§ 000 HkS 000 Hi§ 000 HkS 000 HK§ 000
Ehtn  EBTn BT ERfx BETr  #NTn #BTx BBTn ERTx

Forthe year ended 31 December 014~ HZE-E-WF
TZAZT-HLEE
Segment revenue PEkE L9 25,530 20467 78,669 16,007 19,240 575,200 (9,325) 565,875
Comprising: af:
— Tvenue from customers —&FlE 350,989 2,530 15,628 18391 16,097 19,240
— intersegment trensactons (ote) ~~— — EEARS (i) 8 = 88% i - -

Operating expenses 2ERY (98943) (48.693) (16:373) (61,69) (43728) (47.443) (316,839) 9921 (306,908)
Losses on changes in farvalue of BATEEHABR 2SR

financial instruments at FVTPL IANVEEZDER - - - (1152 - - (1,152 - (1,15
Netexchange (osses) gans ERE () s (1728) 11,656 i (19.35) - ] (8410 - (8410)
Losses on disposal o propet, LENE  BERRELSE

plant and equipment - - - ) t)] - (10) - (10)
Gainsondisposalof valable-or-sale — HETRBERE N

nvestments - - - 26,853 - - 26,853 - 26,853
Gain on changes n fairvalue ofimvestment $RE N E AT BESENE

properties 152503 - - - - - 152503 - 152503
(i on il rcognitio o BRBATHLERE NS

available-for-sale investments - - - 84,159 - - 84,159 - 84,159
Segment profit (oss) ARER (BB 403,029 (11467) 8,116 107475 231 1,79 511,308 602 511910
Finance costs B AR (82.428)
Share ofresuts o int ventures iR £ (18)
Profitbefore ta fom continuing operatons 5B AR R AR 1292%
note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. Mis : KEANHERERFMEIIE -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as  E5D B2 &t BEEWEIM sz AEES
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit/  5HEERMER o D8 F], K18 £ Rt AR
loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment without (& EPEEERMBRAZIBEATEDE
allocation of share of results of joint ventures and finance costs. In ~ FrBEZ %R 52 2618 « o - BB
addition, administrative costs incurred by the treasury investment &N HEth EE D ERNE R 2 ITHK

163
segment on behalf of other segments are allocated to respective A IRARIEE D BRI WHEDHE .
operating segments on the basis of revenues earned by individual &EHHE - KAEBZ UKD B AR TEL .
operating segments. This is the measure reported to the chief ZREAZR  WHEEREDE MF&ED g
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and ~ 3&3R © .

performance assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segment:

7. SHEHEH(E)
PHEEERARH

NTREEFRDBZASEEENBES

Segment assets NEEE
2015 2014
—E-1f —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Continuing operations BERE

Property investment MERE 8,126,509 8,054,537
Property development S 2,900,455 3,003,448
Property management MEERE 3,722 9,595
Treasury investment BIIRE 1,773,153 3,473,315
Trading and manufacturing goREE 83,402 86,565
Hotel operation EESE 13,074 17,397
Total segment assets PEEELE 12,900,315 14,644,857
Interests in joint ventures SELEER 1,228 2,584
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 1,846 7,235
Consolidated assets HEBE 12,909,389 14,654,676

Segment liabilities NEEE
2015 2014
ZE-5F —2-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Continuing operations BERE

Property investment MERE 183,979 186,728
Property development YIEBR 176,041 249,722
Property management MEERE 3,234 3,379
Treasury investment BHRE 1,183 796
Trading and manufacturing BaREE 10,596 12,103
Hotel operation EESE 4,616 7,943
Total segment liabilities PEAGEE 379,649 460,671
Taxation payable B 2,181 4,664
Borrowings EEN 1,351,489 2,934,247
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 231,733 218,318
Consolidated liabilities SEEE 1,965,058 3,617,900




7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments, all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than interests in joint ventures and deferred tax
assets. All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

taxation payable, borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

7. TEEHAR)
SHEAERARE(F)
REZNBERARNHBEESRER  BR
ARDEMERERETHABEN  MEA
EUHREEB IR MBEABK - B
RELRBEREIN - FEABYHBEEY

INK
DHR e

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HitoBEEH
Continuing operations BEgE
Property Property Property Treasury  Trading and Hotel

investment  development  management investment manufacturing operation  Consolidated
NERE  WERE  WEEE HEBRE EIREE  EELE &

Hik$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HiK$000 HiK$000 HiK$000 HiK$'000
BETT  BMTRn  A¥TR  BETx BT E¥TR  B%Trn

Amounts included in the measure BEGTEDBEER

of segment results and PREEZSH.!

segment assets:
2015 —E-EF
Capital additions BEAREM 4,503 1,685
Depreciation wE 5,693 31
Interest income FIEWA = -
2014 —E-MEF
Capital additions AL 5,459 576
Depreciation nE 4,868 657
Interest income FIEBA = =

= = 9,067 = 11,255
2 2 1,729 49 1,852
= 117,578 = = 117,578
= = 855 2,465 9,355
3 685 1,619 2,083 10,115
= 69,216 = = 69,216
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and other parts of
the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
from external customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is

presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

7. SEEH(E)

HaHEEH(R)
WEEH

REBEBURNBERTEE MR -

ERASERERLZIKREP 2R ERTS
RBEXBARBR2®R - FHEAKEIER
BEEMNENAREEMTEME2R -

Revenue Non-current assets
e EREBEE

2015 2014 2015 2014
—B-nf —2-IF —E-1f —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BETT
Hong Kong Eye) 329,299 280,525 6,550,490 6,381,826
PRC HE 863,733 285,350 2,907,702 3,420,895
1,193,032 565,875 9,458,192 9,802,721

Non-current assets exclude advance to an investee company and

deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014 contributing over 10% of

the total operating revenue of the Group.

FRDEENBREBMNBIRE QR KIEER
HEE -

FEEFREH
HE-_ZT—AF+-A=+-—BEk=Z—@©
F+ZA=+—BLEFE UEKREREFZ
Wanh AR B AL E KRR 10% °



8. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing

operations is as follows:

8. W#

AT BRAEERFELENRFRE RSN

2015 2014
—E-1f —Z-MmF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Gross rental income EHEWA 375,256 350,989
Sales of properties held for sale FHEYEHE 578,662 25,530
Sales of goods EMHE 52,032 46,097
Interest income on structured deposits, available-for-sale ERMED THEERE
investments, bank deposits and bank balances RITERRESZFIEHA 117,578 69,216
Property management and agency fees MEEBERNEE 16,948 15,628
Hotel operation income EREEWA 41,672 49,240
Dividend income from listed investments held for trading IR EEERERRECREBA 142 128
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments AHRHEREZREKA 10,742 9,047
1,193,032 565,875
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HtA
2015 2014
—Z-1f “E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Continuing operations BELY
Imputed interest income on advances to investee companies BHRFHRBERRAZHENEWA 109 3,045
Others Hith 1,871 9,925
1,980 12,970
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. Hib ez R 518

2015 2014
“Z-1% —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Continuing operations HELY
Gain on initial recognition of available-for-sale investments BREANHEERERS - 84,159
Gains (losses) on changes in fair value of BOAFEETABEZERIA
financial instruments at FVTPL ZAFEEZBWE (BE) 2,592 (1,152)
Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties RENEATEELSB NG 281,997 152,503
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments HEATHREERE RS 8,080 26,853
Net exchange losses B FEE (173,119) (9,410)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of properties held for sale FHENEZRESERR (20,546) -
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERREEE (266) (10)
98,138 252,943
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. BB &
2015 2014
—E-ff —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Continuing operations BELE
Interest on borrowings: EZRE
Bank loans RITER 103,796 108,448
Other borrowings Hirfg 5k 978 1,146
104,774 109,594
Less: Amount capitalised as cost of properties under B ABENT 1% ZE6.78%WER
development for sale at a capitalisation rate ranging fElE(ZE—NE 1 190% 2
from 1.73% to 6.78% (2014: 1.90% to 7.38%) per annum 1.38%) FESHERRBNE
BAZERL S5 (30,248) (27,166)
14,526 82,428




12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FiI3#H I H

2015 2014
—E-RE “E-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Continuing operations HELY
The charge comprises: XHEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERANEH
Current year KEE 17,844 15,705
Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE (88) (54)
117,756 15,651
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE SR 10,025 7,516
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") ] 1 it E R 11,580 603
21,605 8,119
39,361 23,770
Deferred taxation (note 28) EIERIE (FiEE 28)
Current year KEE 9,417 2,722
48,778 26,492
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

12. it (8

iR S8

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax ~ AKFE 2§18 & f Hi4 e N ]
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: SRR 2 EERINR
2015 2014
—E-IF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit before tax (from continuing operations) BB ARR (CREBELE) 471,033 429,298
Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) BB E165% (ZF—ME : 165%) &t
B2 BBIEH 11,120 70,834
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures GBI HBTE (579) 30
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose FANHBRAZHEEE 22,614 4,052
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEFHBUAZR B E (77,644) (60,603)
Overprovision in prior years BEFERBERE (88) (54)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEER2HETE 11,319 10,831
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised FRABAS AR BERZRE
£ (1,093) (1,774)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating REMFAERELE HBARTE
in other jurisdictions Girp w7 6,482 2,636
PRC LAT W £ i AR 11,580 603
Others 2t (1,533) (113)
Tax charge for the year (relating to continuing operations) REERBELH (EEELLERH) 48,778 26,492

notes:

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) of the  (a)

estimated assessable profit for both years.

(b)  Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income  (b)
Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2014: 25%).

(c)  The Group has estimated the tax provision for PRC LAT according to  (c)
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development projects and

GEX

BB RIS TR IR (B 4 2 (4 51 8 AR T AR Bl K

16.5% (ZZ—M4F : 16.5%)5T# °

25% (ZZE—PU4 : 25%) °

the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on which the provision

for LAT is calculated.

BHEARKMBERZEMEIE(REMEHED
REERGRARHRAR TEMNBARRER

BREFEBERRUGOEBRE - ARERHERET
Bt R BT o A IR EDRBUAR B BEE
MEREHEANRTREME  HREEAELTAER
REEE IR ET B R E R -



13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. & B it 7

2015 2014
“2-HF —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Profit for the year from continuing operations has been BERE ZKEERA
arrived at after charging: EHRTHIRE :
Directors’ emoluments (note 14) BEME (HizE14) 34,633 32,907
Other staff costs HEIHA 45,802 35,572
Staff retirement scheme contributions, net of HK$3,000 ETRIKBRME -
(2014: HK$131,000) forfeited contributions HBRIR U546 3,000 7T
(ZE—M4F : B 131,000 7T) 2,179 1,919
Total staff costs BT pAEG 82,614 70,398
Auditor’s remuneration REME S 2,458 2,568
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment NE BERRENE 1,852 10,115
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings T REFEERN S 17,405 18,269
and after crediting: WEFA
Gross rental income from investment properties RENMELRSWA 375,256 350,989
Less: direct expenses of investment properties that B EREERSBA
generated rental income during the year ZRENEERZER (38,196) (46,026)
337,060 304,963
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

14 EF  THEBRREEMNS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2014: 14) BEfNSENTIAL(ZE—NE: 148)ES

directors were as follows: 3
Other emoluments =8 &
Performance Retirement
Salaries and related incentive scheme Total
Fees other benefits payment (note c) contributions emoluments
MR FEREN RIRGEH
ik Hitn g Al #HE (M) HE 53 ame
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT BB BB
2015 —B-1f

Liu Lit Mo EE Uy 250 9,155 250 300 9,955
Liu Lit Chi BIE 150 7,901 280 336 8,667
Liu Kam Fai, Winston B 150 5,249 260 304 5,963
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B g 150 2,904 240 21 3,525
Lee Wai Hung E3Cy 150 2,800 20 280 3470
Liu Lit Chung BIIR 150 1,103 - - 1,253
Andrew Liu BHH 150 - - - 150
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BfE 150 - - - 150
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BEE 250 = - - 250
Tong Tsin Ka BRR 250 - - - 250
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher shase 250 - - _ 950
Au Kam Yuen, Authur BigE 250 - - _ 250
Ma Hung Ming, John EEH 250 - - _ 950
Cheng Yuk Wo L=l 250 - - - 250
Total @ 2,800 29112 1,210 1451 34,633




14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

14 E%  THEBRRESEMNS

(%)

Other emoluments At B &

L
<
>
=
=
>
=
)
m
o
o
A
—
=
S
#
#t

Performance Retirement
Salaries and related incentive scheme Total
Fees other benefits payment (note c) contributions emoluments
H R BB RIRGER
e HitgEA ®ES (Ftc) AN ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
2014 —E-ME

Liu Lit Mo (note d) BEUE (FizEd) 250 8,763 2% 300 9,338
Liu Lit Chi (note e) PSR 150 6,924 25 283 1382
Liu Kam Fai, Winston Bt 150 5,266 25 285 5,726
Liu Kwun Shing, Christopher B, 150 2,983 1,010 200 4343
Lee Wai Hung £y 150 2,830 125 261 3,366
Liu Lit Chung BER 150 1,05 - - 1,202
Andrew Liu BER 150 - - - 150
Liu Chun Ning, Wilfred BfE 150 = = = 150
Cheng Mo Chi, Moses BEE 250 _ _ _ 950
Tong Tsin Ka EER 250 - - - 250
Kho Eng Tjoan, Christopher R 250 - - - 250
Au Kam Yuen, Authur B#HR 250 = = = 250
Ma Hung Ming, John EEs 250 - - - 250
Cheng YukWo ELEEA - - - - -
Total st 2,50 21818 1,210 1329 32,907

notes: MaE

(@)  The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2015 and 2014 were (@) Z—ZT—AFER-_T—NFAEEREGEaHAL

all directors of the Group and details of their emoluments are included
in above. No directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors have waived any emoluments during
the year.

(b)

o RNAAEEES  HFMER EXAEE -
HE-ZT—AFR-_T—HNF+_A=1+—HIEF
B MEESHERRTAMS -

FA - AKEREATNEFARAERESFAL(E
BER)XNERAMES  (ER/MARKERINAR
SERE 2 EEEBEBAE FATBEERREIM

173
(c)  The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference (¢) #HEZZFT—AF+_A=+—BUEMAFEERE §
to the individual performance of the directors and approved by the B ZEIRESNERIRREE  WHAEEH ﬁ
remuneration committee of the Group for the two years ended 31 MEEEHAE - ;;
December 2015. at

kol

(d) The Chairman of the Company and as Managing Director up to 26 (d) ARAFFEREFEFALKEEZ_T—NF_A j

February 2014.

The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 26 February 2014.

(e)

i A=

RZE-—ME—A -+ ABREERARAZERE
EIRFRATIRAREL ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. &8
2015 2014
—E-nf —E2-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: FREERDRZKE
Interim dividend paid for 2015 — HK$0.16 per share ZE-RFERPHREEREE
(2014: interim dividend paid for 2014 — HK$0.15per share) 0167 (ZE—MF: ZE-NF
BIRPHRESRER015T) 60,573 56,788
Final dividend paid for 2014 — HK$0.25 per share —E-MEDRRERESRABYE
(2014: final dividend paid for 2013 — HK$0.18 per share) 025 (=2—MF : 28-=F¢
RREREGRAER018T) 94,646 68,145
Special cash dividend paid due to the completion of ARsHEAERTEEAMER2E
disposal of CHB Group — HK$2.80 per share AEERESRBE280 T - 1,060,034
Special dividend by way of distribution in specie (Note) BN R RS 245 RIS
(Ff&E) - 704,165
155,219 1,889,132

Note: For the annual general meeting held on 22 April 2014, a resolution was
duly passed to declare a special dividend to be satisfied by way of
distribution in specie in the proportion of 1 share in the issued share
capital of CHB for every 10 shares in the issued share capital of the
Company. A total of 37,858,344 CHB shares with an aggregate market
value of HK$704,165,000 was recognised as distribution during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 of HK$0.26 per share,
totalling HK$98,431,694 (2014 final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2014 of HK$0.25 per share, totalling
HK$94,645,860) has been proposed by the directors and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Mz RCE-NFNA -+ - HETORRAFRE
tEB-HERERREMRER  UEYDIK
PR - F10RARFEBEITRAIRE 1 A ER
TEBTRA -BE-Z-NF+_A=+—HI
FEHER DK 37,858,344 Ik Al IRITAR 1) - BT
B8 704,165,000 7T °

RRESMKR  BE-_T—AF+=-_A=+—
BIEFEZRBREGREK26T - A3
B#O8431,694 T (T —WF: HE_-ZT
—NF+ZA=+—BUEFEZREREST
BRI 0.25 70 + A M 94,645,860 7T) + &€
HEFEER TEAREERREFAE L
BRI -



16. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

FROM CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$410,366,000 (2014:
HK$2,356,935,000) and on 378,583,440 (2014: 378,583,440)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$410,366,000 (2014:
HK$393,600,000) and on 378,583,440 (2014: 378,583,440)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the basic earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$5.19 which was
based on the profit for the year of HK$1,963,335,000 and on
378,583,440 ordinary shares in issue.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue during the years 2014 and 2015.

16. BIREXEF
REFERERLESE
RARREBIEEREABF IRKEAFE
A RN FEAG 2 55 7 %6 410,366,000 7T (=
T — P4 : B2 356,935,000 7T ) KA EE
B 31T EiBAR378,583,440 % (= ZF — P4 F :
378,583,440 %) 5t o

REFEESE
RARREBIEEREABF IKEAEE
AN R AR R A 2 % 5 6 410,366,000 7T (=
T P4 ¢ B #393,600,0007T) R AREER
B 1T % 3@ % 378,583,440 ( — T — P 4 -
378,583,440 %) 5T & -

RECRILESE
BE-T-—MNE+-_A=+—ALFE K
RAIRREGGRERBF KB AFEAR
X BIRR SR PEAG 2 3 A7 ¥ 1,963,335,000 7T &
ANEE D BITE @R 378,583,440 T E - B
B¥E5197T °

TE-NER T -AFAHEEAEEE
B At EEERENTME2E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. R EM%E

HK$'000

BETT
FAIR VALUE NVEE
At 1 January 2014 WZE-N&-B—H 5,962,913
Currency realignment ERAR (10,248)
Addition (note 18(c)) 121 (B 18(c) 1,671,422
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RENSEEARR 2 A FEEEMFE 152,503
At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=-A=+—-H 7,776,590
Currency realignment ExRER (175,900)
Addition 0 11,195
Disposals HE (5,110)
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss REFSEENER 2 A LEELNFE 281,997
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-RE+=-A=+-H 7,888,772

notes:

(a)

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, it is the Group’s
policy to engage third party qualified external valuer to perform the
valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technique and inputs to
the model.

On 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, independent
valuations were undertaken by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd.
(“Vigers”), an independent firm of professional valuers not connected to
the Group which has appropriate professional qualifications and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

The valuations have been arrived at using direct comparison method by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions or, where appropriate, by
capitalising the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties by
reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation
rate adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by the
valuer for the similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on
the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

PR

(a)

(b)

REBRKEBO/TEUARDES 2 R YHE MR
ERATEERENGE - UOBERIRRREYE -

AFEEFEMGEBRE

EEHREMEN AT EER - "EBOBERTHIER
E=FEARINBHEMETHE - ERERAE
RESMNBEEMZE YA (F - BRIEE A ERIM
REER A SR -

RZE—AF+ZA=+—HAKR=ZFT—NF+=A
=+—A0 ' BUAERAMRITEETEERAR
RN (TR ET ) 1T o UG AT 75 B8 2N 42 (3 7 4 A 222
2B BEMERMT - SRR E Y ERETT
HEREERENERXEEKANER -

REAERLEED2ZHRLERRESELUY
E IS E RS2 E 0] H B A B A9 TR (E A R
IERUMENERBERAERMYERE AL E
femBREGRERE)SH - RMEET  MEMR
BREH B TISHEE2E A H M EAETR
RERAB TR ENEMBEBERFERE -
ERMANEMELL RS E G EML I E R
BUMEBSEMENREER - BEREGERHMA
SRS R E A RS EERARRRA -

EfFMEATEER  MENRRLRERES
HERARE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 17. &M% () >

notes: (Continued) MaE : (48) ;

m

(b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued) (b) AFEEFEMGEBRREE) 8

o

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these THRIBABEEYENATEENAEROEN B

investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation (BESERERFTANGERTOREAZH) UK g

techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into RAFEEFEFHEAZHATUBANGLEE g;

which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) B BAFEEFENEEAFEAERETNLT St
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements (B5—ZFFE=m7) -

is observable.

Investment properties held by

the Group in the consolidated Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEBEHEENRENET FUEABLNSHE
REGERBRRE DYEERE AERDRIESY BEATABRAGLNEH AYEENER

Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3 Direct comparison method

The key input is

(1) Unit sale rate Unit sale rate, taking into account the  An increase in the unit sale rate used
time, location, and individual factors, ~ would result in an increase in the fair
such as frontage and size, between the ~ value measurement of the investment
comparable and the property, ranging  properties by the same percentage
from HK$2,500 to HK$10,000 (2014:  increase, and vice versa.

HK$2,100 to HK$9,700) per square
feet on gross floor area basis for
properties and ranging from
HK$480,000 to HK$620,000 (2014:
HK$400,000 to HK$490,000) per unit
for car park spaces.

ERENORENE F=H3 BRI
TEEAR
(1) BfEEER ZEINE  wERERNEENELS FANBUHEER-ELT €K

FENERRR  PMERERPS  EVMENATEENERAENEHL
B BUHEEREARNESNEGTS BN R2M%-

R e 2,500 L2 E# 10,0007 (=

T[4 : B2, 100 EA#9,7007)

(RpEEmET)  FEFHHEIRE

480,000 L2/ 620,000 7T (=% 177

— P04 : 400,000 72 490,000 ;
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 17. HEVE(F)
notes: (Continued) s : (48)
(b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued) (b)y AFEEFENGHERRE(E)

Investment properties held by

the Group in the consolidated Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEHENRENET FUEAGHLNSYE
REERBERRE DYEERE  HERDRIESY EATABAGLNEH AYEENEE

Investment properties in Hong Kong Level 3 Income capitalisation method

The key inputs are

(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of A slight increase in the reversion yield
the capitalisation of rental income used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the propertyand ~ decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging ~ measurement of the investment
from 2.4% t0 4.8% (2014: 2.5% to properties, and vice versa.

4.8%).

(2)  Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into Aslight increase in the monthly market
account of time, location and individual  rent used would result in a significant
factors such as frontage and size, increase in the fair value measurement
between the comparable and the of the investment properties, and vice

property, ranging from HK$29 to versa.
HK$265 (2014: HK$29 to HK$280)
per square feet per month on lettable

area basis.
EEBNRENE E=1H WaEARE
TERHA
(1) BHEHEHRE ERIMSBERAENL - MERE FANRRENEREEGEH LA -
LEETR  BIRERTA2I%E  SSRENENRTEENESAEAT
48%(ZE—ME : 25%5E48%) B R2ZMKo
(2 ERmEHES EERINE HHGRUBNEENER HFANSATSREEBEM LA €

FZENENRE  MFARFR & SREVENATEEIEAEAL
AmEASARTLREESETS Fro RZTA-

R 29 LB 26570 (2T~

FABOTEERB0T)



17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

Investment properties held by

17. x&8M% (1)

Bt - ()
(b AFEEENHERRE(E)

the Group in the consolidated Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEBEHEENRENET FUEAGHLNSHE
REGERBERRE DYEERE AERDRIZSY BEATABRAGLNEH AYEENER

Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Direct comparison method

The key input is

(1) Unit sale rate

ERENRENE E ] BRI

(1) BRHEEER

Unit sale rate, taking into account ~ Anincrease in the unit sale rate
the time, location, and individual used would result in an increase in
factors, such as frontage and size,  the fair value measurement of the
between the comparable and the investment properties by the same

property, ranging from RMB6,000 to  percentage increase, and vice versa.

RMB24,700 (2014: RMB6,550 to
RMB24,700) per square meter on
gross floor area basis for properties.

ZERIEE S REBRNEANE MANENEEER-BLA 82
AZHNERNER  MPERER RENENATEEERABNS
PR BUEEERTASTARE AHEN RZMA-
ARE6,000mE AR 24,7000 (=

T-MEF : \ARE6S0TEARE

24,700 T) (REBEEES) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued) s : (48)

17. #E8M% ()

(b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued) (b)y AFEEFENGHERRE(E)
Investment properties held by
the Group in the consolidated Fair value Valuation technique(s) Significant Relationship of unobservahle
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEHENRENET FUEAGHLNSYE
REERBERRE DYEERE  HERDRIESY EATABAGLNEH AT EENER
Investment properties in the PRC Level 3 Income capitalisation method
The key inputs are
(1) Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account of A slight increase in the reversion yield
the capitalisation of rental income used would result in a significant
potential, nature of the propertyand ~ decrease in the fair value
prevailing market condition, ranging ~ measurement of the investment
from 6.5% to 7.0% (2014: 6.5% to properties, and vice versa.
7.0%).
(2)  Monthly market rent Monthly market rents, taking into A slight increase in the monthly
account of time, location and market rent used would result in a
individual factors such as frontage  significant increase in the fair value
and size, between the comparable  measurement of the investment
and the property, ranging from properties, and vice versa.
RMB164 to RMB821 (2014:
RMB164 to RMB821) per square
meter per month on lettable area
basis.
EREMNRENE E=1H WEERL

(1) HEHEHRRE ERIELERMAEAY  MERE
REBTR  ETREEER65%E

7.0% (ZE—TUF 1 65%E7.0%) °

ZRIR SRR EENE
g ZBNENRR  miRkE
B 5 ATSRET AR AR
SHETAKEAREIMTEARS
QIT(ZZ—NF: \RE164TE
ARE8217T) °

FRMESRNEREEFEM LT -
SYREANENNTEEFEEERT
B R -

FRNEATSESEREM LT -
SORENENLTEEHEAER
Lt R



17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

notes: (Continued)

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

The fair values of all investment properties at 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2015 were measured using valuation techniques with
significant unobservable inputs and hence were classified as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group used market observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs
where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.

17.
GEE

(b)

REME (&)

€
RFEEAENGERRE (B)

TN+ A=+—BER=-ZT—AF+=A
=+—HFEREVENATFEBENFRETAE
BBHEOERBAZE 2 MERT  WOERAT
BEREE=HA -

AR A NE O DT BEN - AKBET
BEROBSITRBEATS EARUBGE - 5
—BAMARBLTAS  AREEERE=HA
BB AR ERE DR E - EERE
K - REERAERIBISEBEN AR AR
U RETE-ARRE=RHATEE R0 E
ERGREARY - ARBEHARBTOTE
RENLE PR GV S
WIRAE MR - $E BB ASBL T
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - BMERRE

Furniture,
fixtures,

Leasehold land motor vehicles

=
[
N

GT0Z 1¥0d3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

and buildings Plant and and computer
(note a) machinery equipment Total
HELH B -
REF £E BHH
(HisEa) RER#KES REMRE #E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BETT BETT BETT
CoST B
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-NF-A—H 304,961 31,015 123,593 459,569
Currency realignment ERFE - (92) 1,320 1,228
Additions 21 - 855 8,500 9,355
Transferred to investment properties ERTREME (MzFc)

(note ¢) (223,477) - — (223,477)
Disposals HE - (75) (669) (744)
At 31 December 2014 N-E-ME+=-B=+-H 81,484 31,703 132,744 245,931
Currency realignment EXRRFE - (1,612) (3,710) (5,322)
Additions by - 5,067 6,188 11,255
Disposals HE - (113) (5,327) (5,440)
At 31 December 2015 W-E-RE+=-A=1+-8 81,484 35,045 129,895 246,424
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION TEREHE
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE-NF-A—H 29,372 16,814 109,861 156,047
Currency realignment ExRE - (51) (191) (242)
Charge for the year REEXH 1,531 1,619 6,965 10,115
Transferred to investment properties ~ ERZREWE (MEc)

(note ¢) (21,656) - - (21,656)
Eliminated on disposals R EREE - (67) (667) (734)
At 31 December 2014 N-E-ME+=-A=+-8 9,247 18,315 115,968 143,530
Currency realignment ERAE - (958) (3,504) (4,462)
Charge for the year AEEXHE 1,738 1,729 4,385 7,852
Eliminated on disposals RN ER - (101) (5,073) (5,174)
At 31 December 2015 RZB-HE+=ZRA=1+—-H 10,985 18,985 111,776 141,746
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2015 W-E-RE+-B=1+-H 70,499 16,060 18,119 104,678
At 31 December 2014 N-E-mE+=-A=+-H 72,237 13,388 16,776 102,401




18.

notes:

(a)

(b)

19.

As at

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

This includes certain leasehold land as the allocation between the land
and building element of certain properties cannot be made reliably.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term
of the lease or 2% to 3%

10%

10-20%

Leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles
and computer equipment

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s owner-occupied
property with carrying value of HK$201,821,000 was transferred to
investment properties upon commencement of an operating lease to
CHB Group, subsequent to the disposal of CHB Group. Fair value of the
owner-occupied property at the date of transfer amounted to
HK$1,671,422,000, resulting in a gain on valuation of
HK$1,469,601,000 credited to property revaluation reserve during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PROPERTIES
UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE/PROPERTIES
HELD FOR SALE

31 December 2015, the carrying value of properties under

development for sale is HK$390,974,000 (2014: HK$1,055,855,000), of
which HK$390,974,000 (2014: HK$301,686,000) is expected to be
realised after twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at

31 December 2015, properties under development amounting

to HK$736,725,000 (2014: HK$714,892,000) represent the cost in
relation to the redevelopment of a property located in Hong Kong into

a hotel.

The cost of properties held for sale recognised as an expense during

the y

ear amounted to approximately HK$441,067,000 (2014

HK$22,153,000).

18. Y%  BERRE(H)

GEE

(@) HRETYEREELMIBFEERBAENLD
i METHELMANAGRIERR -

(b) LM% - BERREEB HIREREEATIF

RITE
HELBREF BEE 2 BHFY
% 2% % 3%
B = B e 25 10%
B KB EWMK 10-20%
B

(©) RZIZE-—WEF+ZA=+—BFR AEEHER
FIRTTHRER - EFREAFERTRENEEHD
B $BRTE(E A ¥ 201,821,000 T8 B B ¥ 8
BEREVET - BAVEHRAFEEREHER
& 1,671,422000T R T -WMFE+ A
Zt-HEAMESHERETAGERSEER
1,469,601,0007T ©

19. BRPYE HHEERTY

¥/ HHEME

R-T—hF+-A=+—0 FHEZEEH
Y 575 #390,974,0007T (— T — P04 : 8
#1,055,855,0007T ) + & # 7 # 390,974,000
T (ZZ— M4 : % 301,686,0007C) FEHIE
WS HIRE A AR ER o

R-T—hE+-_A=+—0 BRHDYE
5 A& ¥5736,725,000 L ( ZF — M F : B
714,892,000 70 ) K&/ M —HLL R BB H ) %
B ERAOAE BB o

FR - EBBR/AIZEHEMERLTLN R
7 #441,067,0007C( = T — P 4 B
22,153,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. EEEER
2015 2014
—E-nf —E2-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Cost of investments in joint ventures — unlisted RENGECECZRAR-F LM 3 3
Share of post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income, FrEEREER EM2E I
net of dividends received HBREWERE 1,225 2,581
1,228 2,584
notes: BT

(@) As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group had the (a) R-Z—AE+-_A=t+—HAEK-_Z—NE+_A

following interests in principal joint ventures: =B AEEHE T ETBABRE I MR
Place of incorporation/ Proportion of
Name of joint venture operations Class of shares held Ownership interest voting power held Nature of business
RELEER ML e FRERAER FEREER BERERZILA EBME
2015 2014 2015 2014

Z2-Rf —2-QNF ZB-Rf —ZT-NF

Falconmate Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% 50% 50%  Property investment

(b)  The summarised financial information below represents the aggregate  (b) LA 2 S ERHE A S BRERFER2EE
amount of the Group’s share of its interests in joint ventures which are R BT
not individually material:

2015 2014
—2-nf “E-IE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETT
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income (expense) for the year KEERF(HE) R
AN (X)) 2% 3,509 (184)

(c)  There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint venture to  (¢) HRUBREBRENFEAAAEEEEZE S EEAR
transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay SEMEMERKBR S CEF@ERE NI ES
loans or advances made by the Group. KB ©



21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

21. BHRE

Financial assets at FVTPL
BRAVEEFAER2EREE

Available-
Held  Designated for-sale
for trading  at fair value investments Total
B EER
EERE AVEEIE IHHEERE bl
notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BiaE BT BT BETT BT
2015 —Z-1F%
Equity securities: RAHES :
Listed in Hong Kong BELEm 13,057 - 271,125 290,782
Listed overseas /LT - - 781 781
13,057 - 278,506 291,563
Unlisted ¥Em (a) - - 331,532 331,532
13,057 - 616,038 629,095
Debt securities: BERES
Structured products HRUTE (b) - 1,674 = 1,674
Other debt securities HiEBES
— Listed -t (c) - - 52,661 52,661
- 1,674 52,661 60,335
Investment funds REES (d) - - 50,556 50,556
Total: Mg
Listed in Hong Kong BELEwm 13,057 - 330,386 343,443
Listed overseas /LT - - 781 781
Unlisted kEm - 1,674 388,088 395,762
13,057 1,674 719,255 739,986
Market value of listed securities: THESETE:
Listed in Hong Kong BELE™H 13,057 - 330,386 343,443
Listed overseas /LT - - 781 781
13,057 - 331,167 344,224
Analysed as: NEH:
Non-current assets FRBEE 726,789
Current assets REBEE 13,197
739,986
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets at FVTPL

BAVEEN AR EMEE

21. BHHBE(E)

Available-
Held Designated for-sale
for trading at fair value investments Total
B BER
BEERE AVEEIER UHHEERE 1z
notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt BETT BETT BETT BETT
2014 —E-NF
Equity securities: RAZS :
Listed in Hong Kong BELEm 11,972 - 298,549 310,521
Listed overseas /LT — - 1,033 1,033
11,972 - 299,582 311,554
Unlisted ¥Etm (a) - - 402,875 402,875
11,972 - 702,457 714,429
Debt securities: BRES
Structured products HEEMETE (b) = 346,942 = 346,942
Other debt securities HiERES
— Listed -km (c) - - 50,864 50,864
- 346,942 50,864 397,806
Investment funds REES (d) - - 72,798 72,798
Total: Mg
Listed in Hong Kong BB 11,972 - 349,413 361,385
Listed overseas /LT = = 1,033 1,033
Unlisted kLt - 346,942 475,673 822,615
11,972 346,942 826,119 1,185,033
Market value of listed securities: THESETE:
Listed in Hong Kong BB 11,972 - 349,413 361,385
Listed overseas /LT - = 1,033 1,033
11,972 - 350,446 362,418
Analysed as: 2EAH
Non-current assets kRBEE 825,978
Current assets REHEE 359,055

1,185,033



21. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2015, unlisted equity securities classified as
available-for-sale investments held by the Group amounting to
approximately HK$337,532,000 (2014: HK$402,875,000) are carried
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

(b)  As at 31 December 2015, structured deposits of HK$7,674,000 (2014
HK$346,942,000) held by the Group have maturity date in 2019 (31
December 2014: in 2015) and carry interest rates at LIBOR (2014:
coupon rate, LIBOR or LIBOR plus a variable margin). Such structured
deposits are designated as financial assets at FVTPL.

(c) Asat 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, debt securities listed
in Hong Kong comprised a perpetual capital securities issued in
September 2014 with a fixed distribution rate of 6.5% per annum
payable semi-annually for the first five years and reset to the prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury plus the initial margin every five years thereafter.

(d) The investment funds invest in unlisted equity securities issued by
private entities incorporated in Asia Pacific region. They are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Investment funds with
less than 12 months operation period before voluntary liquidation from
the end of reporting period are classified as current portion in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has committed
to contribute a pre-determined capital amount in these investment
funds and the realised gains or losses of these funds are recognised in
the profit or loss. These investment funds may call upon further capital
contribution if required up to the pre-determined capital amount (note
33). There was no capital returned to the Group from the investment
funds during the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014.

22. ADVANCE TO AN INVESTEE COMPANY
The advance is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed
repayment terms. The effective interest rate used in calculating the

present value of the estimated discounted future cash flows of the
advance is 1.99% (2014: 2.23%).

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the investee company will
not fully repay the advance in the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and, accordingly, the amount has been classified

as non-current asset. There is no collateral for the advance.

21. EBHEE(E)

GEE

(@) MZT—HFT-A=+—0 FEEMBENE
HHRANATEENE  DERAHEENIEL
TR A FEH 4 B8 337,532,000 0 (= — P 4F -
75 402,875,000 7T) ©

(b) RIZTE-—ARFFTZA=+—B FEEFENEE
MHERBEBETE74000T( —F—MEF: BE
346,942,00070) © B XEFRZBHRITRERE
ZHEFR(ZF—M4F  REEAE - RBURTT
FIEFERMBRITRER S MFEEREFEZ
RiB) YRR -_T-NFEHM(CT—MOF : B
—E-RFHE) c ZFEBUEERRETRAT
BEMAREZEREE -

(c) WZT—AF+-A=t+—BR=-T-—NF+=A
=+—H BELTEBESFER  BE-HEER
HMEAES  ZBEFN_T—UFNAHET K
RETATF65%  BAFESEFRE X - Hik
FESRFUXERESRNBAVNERBRES -

d) ZEREESTHRERETABFMRIZAEE
BEEFTEITHIE ETIRAES - BRRERREHR
RAFEENE - ARSHRURR BFEELAE
BHORTZEAZREESRGEFBRRERA
IR ERARDEE - AEBAERZZREESRK
BEEABIEZEME MHAEESZEEHKE
SEBIRBRRENER - ZSREES A NEE
HESNTERNEA  EATEEERBE AR (M
B) R=ZT—AF+-_A=+—BR=-ZT—HEF
TZA=+-BLFERN ZEREESWEMAAK
EEREFE -

22. B HI/EAT
ZEBRABRER RAREETEXY-
HEZSRRZHHEREARRLRER
R 2 BEFE A1.99% (-2 —P4F :
2.23%) °

WARBEEZZER  WRERATER®
SHEREF KRR T —EARNEREEZS
Bk Bt WRBREARIERBDEE -
%R AL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

23. INVENTORIES 23.B&
2015 2014
—E-RE —E-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT

The Group’s inventories comprise: AEEFERE:

Raw materials B 1,864 1,830
Work in progress ¥R GR 3,718 6,169
Finished goods B @ 13,204 13,996
18,786 21,995

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year WRAFEERABSIE 2 FEKAKNLY ABE
amounted to approximately HK$37,999,000 (2014: HK$33,658,000). 37,999,000 7t ( =& — P04 : ## 33,658,000

JT) °

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B 5 R H fih FE W AR 7K
2015 2014
—E-%F —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Trade receivables AN 16,336 16,527
Deposits for construction costs BERARILS 20,504 21,980
Other deposits, prepayments and receivables HEbRiI S » BARAREUERT: 100,127 105,092
136,967 143,599




24.

notes:

(a)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed periodically. Majority of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no default
payment history.

The Group’s credit policy allows its trade customers an average credit
period of 30-90 days, other than proceeds from sales of properties
which are settled in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreements, normally within 60 days from the date of agreement. The
aged analysis of trade receivables of HK$16,336,000 (2014:
HK$16,527,000) presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

24.
P -

(a)

BESRHEMEKIRNR (&)

EREFMESA  ARERGEEEFPZERE
ERREEFPZEELR - BFLREHREE - K
MO E SRR A HRE - BERARE -

AEENEERRARSERL (TREREEEGN
NRZEEWHE) REFIH0-0AZEFEH —
BRRAKHBHEORA - RARSHAR - KERAH
7 116,336,000 7T ( —F — M4 : ¥ 16,527,000
TL) ZERE DA

2015 2014

—E-RF —E-|mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Within 30 days 0BER 6,606 6,086
Between 31 days to 90 days 3IE9A 6,272 1,557
Over 90 days BiBYA 3458 2,884
16,336 16,527

As at 31 December 2015, debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$3,458,000 (2014: HK$2,884,000) were past due and aged over 90
days at the end of reporting period but the Group has not provided for
impairment loss for these balances as management considers that the
fundamental credit quality of these customers has not deteriorated. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

All of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the functional
currency of the individual entities within the Group.

(b)

(c)

REZZB-—RE+ZA=+—H S ATEERKE
A2 HABRTEE R7E 1 3,458,000 7T (=T — M4 : 8
#2,884,0007T) + HERECHN RS HIARE @A B 90
B RNEE B FEG R AR RERE
REREEBRRASEF 2 EAEEERLEA
R o AKEYEAZFEBRITETAERY -

AEEMERSBUREFIALEERNERE 2
ZHEEEBIE -
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25. FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH MORE THAN THREE

MONTHS TO MATURITY WHEN RAISED/OTHER

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01%
to 0.35% (2014: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum. The fixed deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.33% to 3.75% (2014: 1.00%

to 5.39%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and fixed bank deposits that are

denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the

relevant group entity are set out below:

25. FA=ERA BB 2 EHIRIT
ER/HMBRTERRRS

RITERMB AT IS EGFEOFE  NF
BF001%ZE035%(—ZF—MNF : 001% =
0.35%) - EMERMEREFNE N FEF
033%ZE3.75%( = T — M 4 :1.00% &
5.39%) °

AKEAFRAESEEEENEEREDN
RITFR N EHRRITER - RIAT

Denominated Denominated

in RMB in US$

UAR¥SIE UETFIE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

As at 31 December 2015 W=B-RF+=A=+-A 344,830 168,608
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-WE+=A=+—-H 2,094,595 154,860

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. B 5 & H fib & £ BR 3K

2015 2014

—E-1f —E-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BRI

Trade payables BHEMNEX 11,483 10,977

Construction costs payables A EBERAK 111,895 45,643
Deposits received and receipt in advance in respect of REVEZCWESRERAS

rental of investment properties 33,470 37,270

Receipt in advance on properties sold SHEMERWR 90,153 225,309

Other payables HiEA IR 26,929 35,644

273,930 354,843




26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, included in trade and other
payables are trade payables of HK$11,483,000 (2014:
HK$10,977,000) and the aged analysis of which presented based on
the invoice date is as follows:

26. B5 RHMEMRRK(E)
RREAEEER BEZENEFEE
11,483,000 7T (= — P94 : ## 10,977,000
TO) BB EB G AE S RE M E IR
HERE AT -

2015 2014

—E-%F —E-MmF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Within 30 days A 11,483 10,977

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that

all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

BEEYZFHEEHRAR30A - AEEDH
E SRR B IRIBE - LAHERFTA B BRK
RIEEHAA
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27. BORROWINGS 27. &K
2015 2014
“Z-1% —E-mE
notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mz BETT BT T
Bank borrowings RITER
Secured =g 1,330,395 1,536,605
Unsecured i = 1,375,877
Total bank borrowings WITEFRERE 1,330,395 2,912,482
Amount due to a joint venture E-BEEERE (a) 1,158 1,498
Amounts due to non-controlling interests shareholders ENEERRRIE (b) 19,936 20,267
1,351,489 2,934,247
The maturity of borrowings is as follows: BRZEBENT
Carrying amount repayable: ABEREDME: ()
Within one year —ER 840,678 715,718
More than one year but not exceeding two years —EABIBAWE 44,267 1,640,072
More than two years but not exceeding five years MEABTBBERE 445,450 556,692
1,330,395 2,912,482
Amount due to a joint venture E-BaEtEHRE 1,158 1,498
Amounts due to non-controlling interests shareholders ENEERBRRE 19,936 20,267
1,351,489 2,934,247
Amounts due within one year R—FEREE R
— Bank borrowings - RITER 840,678 715,718
— Amount due to a joint venture -EN-BagtERE 1,158 1,498
— Amounts due to non-controlling interests shareholders -ENEERBRRFIE 19,936 20,267
861,772 737,483
Amounts due after one year R—EZEE R
— Bank borrowings -RITEX 489,717 2,196,764
1,351,489 2,934 247




27. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 27. &R (&)

notes: BizE -

(@) These borrowings are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are  (a) ZEZEEZAEER 8  WEESRKESE -
repayable on demand.

(b)  These borrowings are unsecured and repayable on demand. An amount ~ (b)  ZEEEEIR R EEZKERLES,797,000
of approximately HK$8,797,000 (2014: HK$9,069,000) bears variable JL(ZZ—PO4F : #%9,069,0007T) 2 KRB EFIX
interest at an effective interest rate of 1.63% (2014: 1.92%) per annum FEAESS  BEMNEREF163%(ZE—N
(repriced monthly), while the remaining amounts are non-interest F:1.92%)(BASRIFEX) - rFERAIARE ©
bearing.

(c)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in ()  BEARFLERBHATRTETEFREHIE -
the loan agreements.

(d)  The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than  (d)  AEBELAFBEEEEEDGEE B 2 Kb EKT)
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: B2 ERIAT

Denominated in HK$

MUBHTIE

HK$'000

BT T

As at 31 December 2015 R=B-RE+=A=1+-AH 245,195
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+=-B=+-H 258,100

(e)

As at 31 December 2015, bank loans of HK$734,192,000 (2014
HK$1,932,569,000) and HK$596,203,000 (2014: HK$979,913,000)
are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR and
prevailing interest rates offered by the People’s Bank of China, plus a
margin per annum, respectively. The effective interest rates ranged
from 1.73% to 6.78% (2014: 1.38% to 7.38%) per annum. Interest
rates are repriced monthly. Details of assets pledged are set out in note
32.

(e)

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—8 RITEFEE
734,192,000t ( = F — PO 4 : 7% % 1,932,569,000
7T ) K& 7% #5596,203,0007T( = F — MW F : B K
979,913,000 7T) 7 Bl BLA B ARITRIZEHF EFT 28
FEER  REFEARBITUBRITEXETESR
MFIZREEZBMER - ERFENTEF1.73%
£6.78% (=T —MF : 1.38% £7.38%) - F|RF
AEMET - CEIREEFBHNME32 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

28. IBEHIE
RENGARBRAXRTES - BT HRLEHE
BERBEDEY - UTARPBEHRE D
ZIEERIBEB AN

2015 2014

—E-%HF —E-mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Deferred tax assets ELERBEEE 1,846 7,235
Deferred tax liabilities EXRIEEE (231,733) (218,318)
(223,887) (211,083)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current
and prior years.

Difference
of accounting

AT AREERAEE R A FEERRY
ITEFEEHERAREAEARLES -

Revaluation
of investment

and tax properties
depreciation in the PRC Tax losses Total
etEin EftETE
FEZZR ZRENE HEEE act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2014 NZE-NE-F—H 27,989 189,574 (8,356) 209,207
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REZERMBRGEA)

— from continuing operations -REEELE 1,444 8,382 (7,104) 2,722
Currency realignment ExR= - (846) - (846)
At 31 December 2014 W_ZE-NE+=A=+—H 29,433 197,110 (15,460) 211,083
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RERERIER (GTA)

— from continuing operations -REFELE 904 8,889 (376) 9,417
Currency realignment E=H% - 3,387 - 3,387
At 31 December 2015 RZE-HF+-A=+—-H 30,337 209,386 (15,836) 223,887




28. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$477 million (2014: HK$432 million) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$96 million (2014: HK$94 million) of
such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining tax loss of approximately HK$381 million (2014:
HK$338 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2015 are tax
losses of approximately HK$96 million (2014: HK$124 million) that
will expire within 5 years from the year of originating. Other tax losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$13,667,000 (2014: HK$8,560,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of these temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

28. BREHIE ()

REREHIR - REE B £)88 477,000,000
T (ZZ—P4F : ## 432,000,000 7T) Z K&
AR IE R B A AIEE R AR T o EHRAE
#096,000,000L( = T — W@ F: & &
94,000,000 TE R F/ELEHIBEE - BN
EEBAKRK RN KRR HBLHNBE
381,000000t( = & — W F: & &
338,000,000 7T ) 2 5t T8 &5 1830 oK HE 2R A R AE
MBEE -R-_T—AF+=-A=+—8"
RERANBEBTEEELAFEERRAFAE
HA ) B B E5 18 4078 1 96,000,000 7T (= ZF —
F : A ¥ 124,000,000 7T ) o H i IE E5 B
BEERIAEEET —FE -

REFEEEMAEHREL B-TFTNF—A
— B - R EHE AR REUE R M E K2
EAGMIEM - AR A KB 5T H 5 o
EREEZER MARERZEAETS
RA R REE - s RS MR R
TENBARRBEEN cEREZERAER
13,667,000 7T ( — & — MO 4F : & # 8,560,000
TOEHIRER R -

L
<
>
=
=
>
r
)
m
o
o
A
—
=
S
#
#t

—

EEEMH#(“IEE‘!&

BWEE T &= |



-t
©
(2]

GT0Z 1¥0d3d IYNNNY | Q3LINIT LINJWLSIANI DNIH DNOHD NI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. Ik &
Number of shares HK$'000
RHEE BETT
Authorised: HERAR
At 1 January 2014 R-E-NF-A—-H
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each BREESE I T2ERR 600,000,000 600,000
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 RZE-NE+=-A=+-HK N/A (Note)
—E-F%+=-8A=1+-A @A ()
Issued and fully paid: BETRAZRA
At 1January 2014 R-E-ME-A-A
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each SREEBS I T2 LEBR 378,583,440 378,583
Transfer from capital redemption reserve upon BEREER SR AED fHEE
abolition of par value - 2,952
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015 RZE-NE+-A=+-8K
“EZ-nE+tZA=t-H
Ordinary shares of no par EEBEsLER 378,583,440 381,535

Note: Par value of the Company’s shares is retired and requirement for
authorised capital is abolished upon the commencement of the new

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on 3 March 2014. BELE -

Mia : BT —NE=A=ZBHBEB RGO ERR - K
NAIEKERBRNEE  RFHEERANEEMRD



30. FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

30. X AT MBRAR

2015 2014
—E-1F —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties RENE 1,681,000 1,675,000
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEREE 588,560 599,894
Investments in subsidiaries MBARZKRE 444,923 394,654
Interests in joint ventures RELECRE 3 3
Investments in securities HERE 110,911 123,732
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENG 4,387,016 4,397,055
Deferred tax assets EEHIEEE 1,846 7,235
1,220,259 7,197,573
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale SHENE 2,808 2,808
Trade and other receivables B5 R EMEWRRG 9,531 24,475
Investments in securities HERE 13,197 359,055
Fixed bank deposits with more than three months to BEAZBAZIScERRTER
maturity when raised 455,947 1,543,111
Other bank balances and cash EtsTrRRkES 568,317 736,820
1,049,800 2,666,269
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade and other payables B REMEMRR 1,854 8,701
Borrowings — due within one year EF - R—EREIH 1,158 678,300
9,012 687,001
Net current assets RBEETE 1,040,788 1,979,268
Total assets less current liabilities BEERGDER 8,261,047 9,176,841
Non-current liahilities kRBAE
Rental deposits from tenants EHEFURzEERS 39,308 39,308
Borrowings — due after one year B -R—FEZE 489,717 1,255,767
Non-interest bearing advances from subsidiaries MWELARZREBR 2,399,685 2,445783
2,928,710 3,740,858
5,332,337 5,435,983
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital [REN 381,535 381,535
Reserves (Note) e (i) 4,950,802 5,054,448
5,332,337 5,435,983

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 2 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf

by:

DR. LIU LIT MO

BRIREL
CHAIRMAN

-

PHRBRENR T RF-_A_HEEES

BUAE R IRERTT - WA FIIATRERERE

MR. TONG TSIN KA
BERRAE

CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

FLEARERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

30.

Note:

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

30. X ATIMBRRAFT (E)

The movements in reserves are presented below: Wizt : BE22BHOT -
Property Investment Capital
revaluation revaluation redemption Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve profits Total
MEERRE REEMRE REABERE 2REF @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
THE COMPANY KT
At 1January 2014 —E-MmE-H—-H 448 28,651 2,952 1,610,714 1,642,765
Profitfor the year KEERA - - - 5,334,971 5,334,971
Fair value losses on available-for-sale ARHEREZATER
investments 3] - (4,401) - - (4,401)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss REEAHRHEREEH
upon disposal of available-for-sale BHOBEBERZ
imestments £ - (26809 - - (26809
Total comprefensive (expense) AEERH (X))
income for the year eyt - (31,204) - 5,334,971 5,303,767
Transfer upon abolition of par value under REFOEE D AEA
new Companies Ordinance BRI BT - - (2,952) - (2.952)
Dividends recognised as distribution ERABIKZKRE - - - (1,889,132) (1,889,132)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-—DNF
+ZA=+-H 448 (2,553) - 5,056,553 5,054,448
Profit for the year KEEEF - - - 81,976 81,976
Fair value losses on available-for-sale ARHEREZ ATERE
investments BB - (26,183) - - (26,183)
Amount reclassified to the profit or loss HETHEEREEH
upon disposal of available-for-sale BRI BEBER2
investments T8 - (4,220) - - (4,220)
Total comprehensive (expense) REEZE(XH)
income for the year gyt - (30,403) - 81,976 51,573
Dividends recognised as distribution ERRADKZRE - - - (155,219) (155,219)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1%
+=ZRA=+-8H 448 (32,956) - 4,983,310 4,950,802




31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 25 April 2002, for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, and expired on 24 April 2012. Under the 2002 Scheme,
the Company could grant options to eligible employees, including
executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company at HK$10 per option. Additionally, the
Company could, from time to time, grant share options to outside

eligible third parties at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares in respect of which options could be granted under
the 2002 Scheme was not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time. The number of shares in
respect of which options could be granted to any individual was not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any

point in time.

Options could be exercised at any time from the date of grant of the
share option to the 5th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise
price was to be determined by the directors of the Company, and
would not be less than the higher of the nominal value of the
Company’s share on the date of grant, the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant, or the closing price of the shares on the date of grant.

No options were granted under the 2002 Scheme since it was
adopted. The 2002 Scheme expired on 24 April 2012.

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 9 May 2012
(the “2012 Scheme”). The terms of the 2012 Scheme and the 2002
Scheme are broadly similar. The 2012 Scheme is effective for a
period of 10 years.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since its

adoption.

31. ix 3 B4 =T &l

ARRBRBENR_-_FZ_FOA - +HBEBE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE=-E-HF+-A=+—-HLLEE

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 32. EERW

At the end of the reporting period, the assets shown as below were RiEHIR > HEED KB FRT - AE
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities made available — AEEEER T —RIBTTRIE ©

to the Group.

2015 2014
—B-I1% —Z-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
CARRYING VALUE REE
Leasehold land and building HELHRET 64,666 66,160
Investment properties REME 4,273,504 5,253,095
Bank deposits BIBER 392,499 414,314
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. 8K ki
2015 2014
—%-%% —2-|F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided EENEBRRGEIERR LBEZ
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: BEREY :
— Property, plant and equipment/investment properties -ME - BRERSE/RENE 8,789 =
— Contribution to the capital of investment funds -REESNERER 21,496 69,835




34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34 (EEHLRIE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE KEEARAA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for  R¥REEAFR - N5 BT A] BUEE & 2 4 &
future minimum lease payments under these non-cancellable ER THFEHABASI N2 ARFERAS X H
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operating leases which fall due as follows: R
2015 2014
—E-%F “E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within one year —F 15,9317 28,409
In the second to fifth years inclusive REZEFR(BEERWE) 43,627 63,502
Over five years hE#% 19,303 40,814
18,4617 132,725

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of the REELHORBIEAEBHBE TESFE  HEY
Group's offices, hotel premises and staff quarters. Leases are ¥ FEIEEZEMNES - HEHEBRAE =

negotiated for a range of one to sixteen years and rentals are fixed +NEAE  BRAHANHESCERZA

throughout the lease period. HIFETEE ©
THE GROUP AS LESSOR EEEBHBAAN
At the end of the reporting period, the Group as lessor had contracted RREHR - AEBEEALEAACIZUA TR
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: REEAS T HEARTL
2015 2014
—E-5Hf —Z-mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Within one year —F 367,129 344,009
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_ZEFR(BEERME) 463,843 635,668
Over five years hE#% 8,563 25,981
839,535 1,005,658

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$375,256,000 FRARMER S KA BE375,256,0007T(=
(2014: HK$350,989,000). All of the properties held have committed =& — U4 : A 350,989,000 T ) © FT B ¥ 3
tenants for the next one to five years. HEEFEEAH—ERFHMELY -
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

For its eligible employees in Hong Kong, the Group operates a defined
contribution schemes registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).

Contributions payable by the Group to the MPF Scheme are
determined based on the rules underlying the respective schemes
and are charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees contribute 5% of the relevant payroll to the
MPF Scheme while the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll
to the MPF Scheme.

In addition, certain employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits
schemes. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these retirement benefits schemes is to make the specified

contributions.

35. B kEFIFTEI
AEERBEZAEREEET —AREMH
a8 AR BIERTE S EE] M (M98

BeEtE ) -

AEERBERESHE ZABRURETETE
BNZHER SaRe2mRaERNEG -8
BeFEEARRARES A EG - &
REBZEENHRE - RIBBED TS
BETRAREABARHERS L NRES S
A MAEETMRIBEAER S TA S 5% A58

BEFT K -

+

BAN - AEERFBEKLZMBRARZET
BEREREERKEBHGIEIZKE -
MEBAREREMEE T A DL FERKE
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36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except for the transfer of property from CHB Group as stated in note
18, the Group had no other material significant transactions with
related parties.

(B) COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL
The emoluments of key management personnel of the Group during

the year were as follows:

36. BBt AN LHTEEIR

(A) FABEALTR S

BT RME 18R R AIER{TEEEEY
2 AEBUEAPHA LT TEARS -

(B) XEEEASME

FR AEETREEABZHFHMOT

2015 2014

—2-HF —E-NE

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Short-term benefits SHER 45523 42,787
Post-employment benefits EBERKEF 2,418 2,188
47,941 44,975

The emoluments of directors and key executives are determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EERIZBTRABZEFN IBFHEES
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 October 2013, the Group entered into an irrevocable
undertaking with Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Xiu
Enterprises”), an independent third party to the Group, whereby the
Group agreed to accept the offer in respect of disposal of a maximum
of 218,359,628 CHB shares (representing approximately 50.2% of
the issued share capital of CHB) held by the Group. CHB Group is
engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services.

The disposal of 167,951,210 CHB shares was completed in February
2014. On the same date, the Group acquired an owner-occupied
property from CHB Group for a consideration of HK$2,230,000,000
and a special dividend of HK$1,960,732,000, representing the gain
on disposal of the property to the Group, was declared by CHB Group.
Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group’s remaining
shareholding in CHB shares was remeasured to fair value and

classified as available-for-sale investments.

The profit from the discontinued operations was as follows:

37. HEMB AT
RZT—=F+A=-+FB AEEHELEF
TrEEER)ARAF(THAERE] BURAK
SENE=F) LT HEEAERZ &
It - AEBEREEA L SRS 218,359,628 %
REBERA ZBIBIRITR D (BB BRITE %
TIRAH)50.2%) 2 B4) - BIERITRBE R 2
B RIRMHIEIT RBE SRR

H & 167,951,210 R AR ERIT AR ) —FE R =
T-MFE_AxTK - BB AEEUARER
# 2,230,000,000 TT A1 A FLER 1T SR B UL B 7 —
BRYE  AIBERTEEEMARAEE DL
EVEFRRUREaERFINMREEE
1,960,732,0007¢ » 5ER HHEFIHR - NEHE
DA BB RIRITIND - BRAFEEEH
AEBYNBEARHEERE -
BERIERZEZGMIT
2014
—ZT-mE
HK$'000
BRI

Profit of financial services operations for the period
Gain on disposal of financial services operations

FEE S RRRERRR
HESRRRER 2 Wit

92,451
2,891,156

2,983,607




37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The results of the financial services operations were as follows:

37. HEMB AT (%)
SRRBEEOEEMT

2014

—Z-MF

HK$'000

BT

Interest income MEWA 248,502

Interest expense FEXH (93,968)

Net interest income FIEWAFE 154,534

Fee and commission income ERRESHA 36,051

Fee and commission expenses BERKEESH (9,716)

Net fee and commission income ERRAESUATE 26,335

Net losses on fair value hedge DNPEBEETF (BE) (31,600)

Other operating income HitgBRA 58,208

Operating expenses EEYH (92,007)

115,470

Impairment allowances on loans and advances ETEER (5,352)

Net gains on disposal of property and equipment HETHHERSKE 749

Profit before tax BB AR 110,867

Income tax expense P (18,416)

Profit for the year KEERER 92,451
Profit for the year from discontinued operations include the following: ~ B IE&EARFE & HBE F5 &8

2014

—Z-mE

HK$'000

BT T

Auditor’s remuneration REMm#e 546

Employee benefit expenses EERFIXE 58,124

Operating lease rentals in respect of land and building TREFEERNzES 5,163

Gross rental income from investment properties RENELHS WA 986

Less: direct expenses for investment properties that B EREEHSWACRENEERLLEER
generated rental income during the year (189)
797
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The net assets of CHB Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

37. HEMB AT ()
HEERERRTEEEEFEMT -

HK$'000
BT T

Cash and short-term funds EFRERENES 19,849,649
Placements with banks and other financial institutions BHEER LM EEER

maturing between one to twelve months —Z+-ABRRISHE 7,161,022
Derivative financial assets TTESMERE 157,264
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAVEESANEGZ2SREE 92,301
Available-for-sale securities A HEES 5,967,497
Held-to-maturity securities SRR S 7,239,011
Advances and other accounts BRREMEE 44,065,070
Tax recoverable FEHR 463
Interests in associates BeEnmER 199,436
Investment properties RENE 136,575
Property and equipment MERRE 631,519
Prepaid lease payments for land BRTwEEER 2,397
Deferred tax assets FEHBEE 2,972
Goodwill kS 50,606
Consideration receivable in connection with the disposal of HEAIBETHOZERARE

Chong Hing Bank Centre 2,230,000
Deposits and balances of banks and other financial institutions BERAMMBEREETR &5 (1,478,698)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements REBHETHEZSREE (1,423,816)
Deposits from customers ZEEH (71,757,965)
Certificates of deposit TR (663,688)
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemERE (141,909)
Other accounts and accruals HEthERERENER (876,837)
Special dividend payable in connection with the disposal of HERIERTHOZEAERIRE

Chong Hing Bank Centre (1,960,732)
Current tax liabilities BN (80,924)
Loan capital EEEX (1,801,057)
Deferred tax liabilities BERERE (9,662)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 7,790,494




37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

37. HEMBAE ()

HK$'000
BETT
Cash consideration received BWEERE 5,994,178
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE (7,790,494)
Non-controlling interests TR R ER 3,893,588
Transaction costs incurred in connection with the disposal BHEAERTEEEEZRIRA
of CHB Group (234,089)
Cumulative exchange reserve and investment revaluation REBERRERREEARBEENIEZEER
reserve reclassified to profit or loss 90,376
Fair value of retained shares in CHB Group classified as BRAERTERRGZATFEE P EAEEERE
available-for-sale investments 937,597
Gain on disposal of CHB Group HeERIBETERKE 2,891,156
HK$'000
BET T
Satisfied by: BHFR
Cash received from disposal of CHB Group HEABRITEBAKES 5,994,178
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESEELENRSREEE
Total cash consideration received KBRS BEEE 5,994,178
Transaction costs incurred in connection with the disposal HERIBBTER 2R ZHAE
of CHB Group (234,089)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BHEZRTESREES (19,809,017)
(14,048,928)
Cash flows from CHB Group: RAFEBTEBRMEZHER
2014
—Z-MmF
HK$'000
BT
Net cash flows from operating activities R TBMEZHENTE 4,927,708
Net cash flows from investing activities REZBFIE2HERTE 1,001,262
Net cash flows used in financing activities BRETBHMECESREE (11,673)
5,917,297
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. X EMBAE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December R-ZE—FF+-_F=+—BE_ZT—MNF
2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows: +ZA=+—8 ARRZEBHERAE
BT
Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ML ERTER A ABECRTRAER
HEARER W RS BA/EmER EMERZ LA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
Hi G}
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1F —EZ-MF ZB-15F —B-IF
% % % %
Abaleen Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
E# B 100,000 7T NERE
Alain Limited Hong Kong HK$9,500 100 100 - — Investment holding
HREBRAF &% BE950 T NERE
Bonsun Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - - Property investment
ESLEERAT B F5852,000,000 7T NERE
Chong Yip Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - — Money lending
BIEBBAERAT i FB#1,000000 7T ERER
Chong Yip (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 100 - — Provision of nominegs
B (RE)BRAF 55 BEIT services
RUREARE
Devon Realty Limited Hong Kong HKS$200 100 100 - —  Property investment
EEBREFRAT i BEA0 T NERE
Donington Company Limited Hong Kong HKS$200 100 100 - — Property investment
E# BT NERE
Golden Harbour International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 —  Property investment
BRERERAR 55 BT NERE
Heng Kin Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - — Property investment
BEREERAF E# BEIT NERE
Honour Speed Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 - —  Investment holding
BEERERAF E# BEIT REER
Hugh Glory Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 90 90 Investment holding
ERERAR % B0 T REZR



38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38. XEMBAE (&)

Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ML CRTER A ABECRTRAER
WEAR AR Wi R/ S BA/EAMER EMERZ LA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
i B
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1F ZZ-IF ZB-1fF —B-IF
% % % %
Hugh Wealth International Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 - - Investment holding
BBERERAF E# B0 REER
Jacot Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 - —  Investment holding
ERBRAR % BT REZR
Ko Yew Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - — Property investment
BEERAT i BT NERE
Liu Chong Hing Estate Company, Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 - — Investment holding
Limited & 710,000,000 70 REER
BRIEEEERAR
Liu Chong Hing Godown Company, Hong Kong HK$72,000,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
Limited Ee F#72,000,000 7T NERE
BAIRAERERAT
Liu Chong Hing Property Management Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 - - Property management
and Agency Limited Eos FE#1,000,000 7T and agency
BRIENEEERREERAT MEBERRE
Luxpolar Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - - 100 100 Property investment
Ee BT NERE
Queen Profit International Hong Kong HK$61,540 83.15 83.75 - - Investment holding
Investment Limited E# SR 500 7T REER
HABRREERLR
Richview Property Management Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Company Limited B 3810000 7T NEER
EENEERERAR
Sino Pink Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 - — Property investment
BRERERAF E# BT NERE
Speed World Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 60 60 Investment holding
ERREERAR % B0 RERR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38. XEMBAE (&)

Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ML ERTER A ABECRTRAERE
WEAR AR Wi R S BA/AMER EMERZ LA TEEK
Directly Indirectly
i G}
2015 2014 2015 2014
-1 —Z-QNF ZE-1f —E-IE
% % % %
Top Team Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
E# B0 T REER
Trade Castle Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
ERBRAT 55 BT REZR
Truggrow Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
BUMREERAR E# BT REER
Wealth Good Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100 - —  Investment holding
RARERERAA E# BEIT REER
Yue Tung Ching Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100 100 - —  Property investment
HREZBRAF B 782,000,000 7T NERE
Foshan Nanhai Hugh Glory (i)  PRC HK$500,000,000 - - 90 90 Property development
Property Development HE 7500000000 T MERR
Company Limited
BUEEERERERRERAR
Guangzhou Chong Hing (i) PRC RMB170,000,000 - - 60 60 Property development
Property Development H AR 170000000 7T MERRE
Company Limited
ENEIEEHERRER AR
Guangzhou Trade Castle Property (i)  PRC HK$8,500,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Consultancy Limited i B 8500000 7T NERE
ENTEREHEZAERAR
Guangzhou Wealth Smart (i)  PRC HK$1,000,000 - - 100 100 Property management
Property Management H 1000000 7T NEER
Company Limited
ENTRRNEERERLT
Maanshan Gaoke Magnetic Material (i)~ PRC RMB65,370,000 - - 51.54 5154 Manufacturing of
Company Limited 3 AR 65,370,000 7T magnetic materials
BRLSREMEMBRERAR BUERMMA



38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38. XEMBAE (&)

Place of
incorporation or Issued ordinary
establishment/ share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
Name of subsidiary notes  operations registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR ERTER A ABECRTRAEE
WEAR AR [ AT VS BA/EMER EMERZ Al TEEK
Directly Indirectly
i G
2015 2014 2015 2014
“Z-1f —Z-NF ZB-1f —Z-IF
% % % %
Shanghai Huang Pu Liu Chong Hing (i)  PRC S$34,600,000 - - 100 100 Property investment
Property Development HE 346000005 7T MERE
Company Limited
LEEREARE L EMR
BRAR
Shanghai Truegrow Hotel (i)  PRC RMB32,500,000 - - 100 100 Hotel operation and
Management Company Limited H AR 32,500,000 7¢ management
LEEMEEERERAF BEEEREE
Blossom Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 100 100 - — Investment holding
HEREERAT Hong Kong ESH REER
EBRLHE/
BB
China Link Technologies Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Hong Kong 1007 REZR
KBRLEE/
B
Determined Resources Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - — Share investment
Hong Kong 100057 RO RE
EBRLEHE/
5B
Terryglass Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Hong Kong LO00E T REZR
KBRLEE/
B
Multi Eternal Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 - - 90 90 Property development
PRC 100%7 management services
EBRLHE/ MELREERE
HE
Sharp Talent International Limited British Virgin Islands/ US§100 - - 90 90 Property marketing and
PRC 100X 7T sales support services
KBRLEHE/ NETEREE
HE TR
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries

that are not material to the Group. The majority of these subsidiaries

38. XEMBAE (&)

EERR BAKEXEREEREATE
ZAREEWNBARREDFHFINLER -EF
RA BREEMHBLARER AR
RILE

18 &

PR B AR B EAFERETEMERE

AR R - AR M A KA R E T
ETBEAMMBLAR « KEHBA P A

operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these subsidiaries ZFHENEBSLE - WEWB AT T EE
are summarised as follows: BIREFNAT

Number of subsidiaries

HEAREE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2015 2014
TEEH TEEENY “E-5F “E-mF
Hotel operation and management PRC 4 4
BELSERER HE
Investment holding Hong Kong 9 9
REER BB
Property investment Hong Kong 2 2
WERE BB
Inactive Hong Kong 1 6
gmER BB
notes: Bt et
(i)  The companies are sole foreign equity ventures established in the PRC. 0) ZERBRRHBKL 2 INEBERE -

(i) The companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in the
PRC.

(i)~ The company is sino-foreign co-operative joint venture established in
the PRC.

(i)  ZFERAPRNRPERZZPIGERLERT -

(i) RARRAPBEKIZIZPIEEEERT
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Fax: (852) 2983 7725
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